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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEEHR

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Chan, Hoi-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Chan, Lok-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)

Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan, Kwok-wai

Leung, Yun-fai"

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Leung, Yun-fai*
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Chan, Hoi-wan (Chairman)

Lam, Kwong-wai (Chief Investment Officer)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Leung, Yun-fai*

Ma, Tsz-chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping (Chairman)

Chan, Kwok-wai

Leung, Yun-fai*

Ma, Tsz-chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Leung, Yun-fai*
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam, Kwong-wai

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Chan, Hoi-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai

" Appointed on 10 March 2023
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SOLICITORS

(Listed in alphabetical order)
Reynolds Porter Chamberlain
S.Y. Wong & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BANKERS

(Listed in alphabetical order)

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited, London Branch

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG
21st Floor, Chubb Tower

Windsor House

311 Gloucester Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A RE#

BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/(852) 2529 6087

OFFICE IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Room 1003, 10th Floor, Oriental Place
No. 9 East Dongfang Road

North Dongsanhuan Road

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

Post Code: 100027

Tel: (8610) 6466 0638

Fax.  (8610) 6466 0238

OFFICE IN UNITED KINGDOM

Front and Rear Suite, Ground Floor
11 and 12 St James's Square
London, United Kingdom

Post Code: SW1Y 4LB

Tel: (4420) 4559 0544

WEBSITE

https://www.chineseestates.com

STOCK CODE

127

BOARD LOT
500 shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:
Tel: (852) 2866 6999

Fax.  (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833

E-mail:  investor.relations@chineseestates.com
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHAN, Hoi-wan, aged 43, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since 2017 and acts as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 2021. She also acts as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is also the chairman of the
investment committee of the Company. She had joined the then associate
of the Group (the Company together with its subsidiaries, collectively the
“Group") from 2002 to 2005 and participated in its cosmetics business,
including Two Girls products. She also possessed of more than 3.5 years'
work experience in media field in Hong Kong and gained experience in
properties and securities investments through her investments. Ms. Chan is
the elder sister of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan, the step-mother of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai
and the sister-in-law of Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai. As at the date of this annual
report, Ms. Chan is a director of certain substantial shareholders of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong).

Ms. CHAN, Lok-wan, aged 38, joined the Group in 2008 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2015. She is the
Manager of Sales and Leasing Department and also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Business and Management (Marketing) from Brunel University
London and a Master Degree of Science in Communication, Information
and Society from The London School of Economics and Political Science.
She is responsible for the Group’s marketing affairs, overseeing the Group's
cosmetics business, including Two Girls products, and participated in the
Group's properties' sales and leasing businesses. Ms. Chan has over 14
years of experience in sales and marketing. She is the younger sister of

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 67, joined the Group in 1989 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2012. Mr. Lam
is the Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company
and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is also
a member of the investment committee of the Company and acts as the
chief investment officer. Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive director
of Lifestyle China Group Limited, the shares of this company are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and holds
a Master Degree of Business Administration from the University of Warwick,
United Kingdom. He has over 45 years of experience in auditing, finance

and accounting industries.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai, aged 42, has been appointed as a Director of the
Company since 2006 and appointed as the Chairman of the board of
Directors since 2014. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from
King's College London, a Master Degree of Laws from The London School
of Economics and Political Science, and a Doctor Degree of Philosophy
in Laws from King's College London. He worked at The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc. and Longview Partners LP, both in London prior to joining
the Group. Mr. Lau is a registered attorney in the State of New York
and a CFA (Chartered Financial Analyst) charterholder. He is the step-
son of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, and the nephew of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan and
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai.

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 70, has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2004. Ms. Lau is also a non-executive
director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, the shares of this
company was previously listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and has withdrawn from listing with effect from 20 December 2022. She is
a retired dentist. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Science and a Doctor
Degree of Dental Surgery from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is
the sister-in-law of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 64, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is the chairman
of the audit committee and remuneration committee, and a member of
the nomination committee and investment committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from the
Monash University, Australia. He is also a member of CPA Australia and
a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He has
over 43 years of experience in finance and accounting industries. Mr. Chan
is currently a director of High Progress Consultants Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of China Investments Holdings Limited,
National Electronics Holdings Limited and Tern Properties Company Limited
respectively; and was an independent non-executive director of Far East
Consortium International Limited for the period from 18 November 2005
to 30 August 2022, the shares of all these companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LEUNG, Yun-fai, aged 65, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and investment
committee of the Company respectively, on 10 March 2023. Mr. Leung
holds a Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration, Finance and
Accountancy from Newport University, United States of America. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He has
over 42 years of experience in auditing, finance, accounting and corporate
advisory industries, including 20 years audit experience at Kwan Wong Tan
& Fong and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Leung is currently a director of
Safestyle Consulting Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont'd)

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 58, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2006. She
is the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Loh was an
independent non-executive director of In Technical Productions Holdings
Limited for the period from 19 May 2017 to 10 May 2022, the shares
of this company are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Loh holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws, both from The University of Hong Kong. Ms. Loh was a
practising solicitor from 1990 to 1997, and has since become a practising
barrister-at-law after she was called to the Hong Kong Bar in 1998. She
was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and the United Kingdom
(1991), and is also a barrister and solicitor in the Supreme Court of the
Australian Capital Territory (since 1991). Ms. Loh is a CEDR (Centre for
Effective Dispute Resolution) Accredited Mediator (2009). Ms. Loh was an
appointed member of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance)
from 2018 to 2020 and has been appointed as a Deputy Chairman of
such penal since 2021. She was appointed Deputy District Judge in 2014
and 2016, and Temporary Deputy Registrar of the High Court in 2018.

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 57, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2008. He is a member of
the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Ma is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 35 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting industries. He is currently a director and the
general manager of Sino-Bridge China Consulting Limited. Mr. Ma is
also an independent non-executive director of Lotus Horizon Holdings
Limited and was an independent non-executive director of In Technical
Productions Holdings Limited for the period from 19 May 2017 to 10 May
2022, the shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board and
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange respectively. Mr. Ma
holds a Master Degree in Business Administration and a Master of Science
Degree in E-Commerce (Business Programme), both from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong as well as a Master of Science Degree in China
Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Ma is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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PROFILES OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES
SRTHRAEEN

Mr. Simon CHEUNG, Sung-fung, aged 41, joined the Group (the
Company together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “"Group”) in
2007 and is the Head of Leasing Department. Mr. Cheung is a chartered
surveyor. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration (Honours)
in Marketing from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master Degree
of Science in Real Estate from The University of Hong Kong. He is also
a member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Mr. Cheung
is responsible for the real estate asset management. He has over 19
years of relevant experience. Mr. Cheung also acts as a director of certain

subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 54, joined the Group in 2000 and is the
Senior Manager — Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms.
Lai is a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree of Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lai is
responsible for the quantity surveying affairs. She has over 32 years of

relevant experience.
Various businesses and functions of the Company are significantly under

the direct responsibilities of the Executive Directors who are also regarded

as senior executives of the Company.
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I am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the "Year") to the
shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$1,152.2
million as compared to loss of HK$3,515.3 million for last year. The
turning from loss to profit for the Year was mainly due to (a) recognition
of dividend income from an investee company; (b) the fair value changes
on investment properties turning from loss to gain; and (c) the decrease
in net loss from securities investments and treasury products during the
Year. Earnings per share for the Year was HK$0.60 (2021: loss per share of
HK$1.84).

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$513.1 million is
excluded (2021: net loss on the major non-cash items of HK$1,395.9
million was excluded but the share of accumulated realised fair value
gain recognised in prior years on disposal of an investment property of an
associate of HK$0.8 million was included), the Group will have a core profit
for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$639.1 million
(2021: core loss of HK$2,1
HK$0.34 (2021: core loss per share of HK$1.11).

18.6 million) and a core profit per share of

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised fair
value gain on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates of HK$513.1 million (2021: net

unrealised fair value loss of HK$1,395.9 million).

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") has

not recommended the payment of final dividend for the Year (2021: nil).

Having considered the Company's dividend policy, to preserve more
cash for the Group's future financial, property investment or securities
investment opportunities, the Board has not recommended the payment of
final dividend for the Year (2021: nil).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
25 May 2023 (the “2023 AGM"), the register of members will be closed
from 22 May 2023 to 25 May 2023, both days inclusive. In order to
eligible to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM, all properly completed share
transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company's Branch Registrar and Transfer
Office in Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712—-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 19 May 2023.

CULTURE

With its 100 years of establishment, Chinese Estates instills a culture
that emphasizes on quality and strives for perfection in all aspects of its
operations; innovation and creativity. Historically, the Group specialised in
developing mid to high-end commercial and residential property projects
and earned its reputation for place making its investment properties

through redevelopment and renovation.

Directors play a leading role in promoting the Company's desired culture.
Management and employees instill the culture across the organisation
through different channels from time to time. The desired culture is
developed and reflected consistently in the operating practices of the
Group. The Company's purpose, values and strategy align with the

Company's culture.
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PURPOSE, VALUES, STRATEGY AND BUSINESS
MODEL

The Group's core businesses comprise property investments for rental and
property development as well as securities investments. Its investment

properties are primarily located in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

The Group's investment properties in Hong Kong include retail and office
assets. Most of the investment properties of the Group are highly accessible
and strategically located in prime commercial areas, and generate stable
and recurrent rental income for the Group. The Group also participates in

developing modern industrial properties in Hong Kong.

In the United Kingdom, all the Group’s commercial and residential
properties are located in the prestigious areas. The Group aims at
enhancing value and recurrent revenue of investment properties through
conceptualising and implementing redevelopment, renovation works and
repackaging programmes for properties as well as actively managing a
balanced tenant mix for retail properties to achieve long-term sustainable
growth. In 2022, the redevelopment and revitalization of its flagship project
“120 Fleet Street” had started. Through the project, the Group strives to
achieve exceptionally high standard of environmental sustainability and
develop a business platform with art and commerce thriving in unison. In
view of the pioneer design and the new feature of the redevelopment,
the Group looks forward to attracting top grade international financial

corporations and first tier professional firms to occupy the office floors.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Group has conducted variety of securities
investment business, such as equity investments, debt investments and
other treasury products, with the aim to yield enhancement for treasury

management.

Meanwhile, the Group is actively grasping the opportunity for acquiring
properties in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and other countries. The
Group continues its strategy in quality partnerships with property developers
or other parties to the extent commercially feasible and beneficial to the

Group's development.

The Group believes that the stable rental income from its investment
properties, together with the property development and trading as well as
securities investment, forms a diversified cash flow stream which allows the

Group to weather the cyclicality of the real estate business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Property Investment and Development

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major

sources of our income.

As at 31 December 2022, the occupancy rate of the shops of Causeway

Place in Causeway Bay was approximately 95.62%.

Olympian City 3 (25% interest), the retail mall in The Hermitage residences
in West Kowloon, the occupancy rate was approximately 98.56% as at 31
December 2022.

Coronation Circle (15% interest), the retail mall in The Coronation
residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was approximately
42.04% during the Year.

During the Year, the average occupancy rate of the Group's office property,

Harcourt House in Wanchai was approximately 70.91%.

Nos. 14—-18 Ma Kok Street is an industrial site in Tsuen Wan. It will be
redeveloped into a 25-storey industrial building (including 2 basement
levels for parking and loading/unloading facilities). Its total gross floor
area is approximately 228,001 square feet. Construction of the new
development is currently underway, with the main contract works
(basement and superstructure) commenced in December 2022. The new
building is expected to be completed by early 2025 and presale of the
industrial units is rescheduled to the first quarter of 2023.

Nos. 86 and 88 Apliu Street is a 25-storey residential-cum-commercial
building in Sham Shui Po with total gross floor area of approximately
17,714 square feet. As at 31 December 2022, retail portion at ground floor
was let while other floors were vacant. Alterations and additions works for
reinstatement and refurbishment of the property other than retail portion at
ground floor are in progress and expected to be completed in around the
first quarter of 2024.

No. 1 Hung To Road (33.33% interest), a 33-storey industrial building
in Kwun Tong, the occupancy rate was approximately 98.03% as at 31
December 2022.

Grand Central (10% interest) is a joint venture development project of
the Group in Kwun Tong awarded by the Urban Renewal Authority, with
a total gross floor area of around 1,853,561 square feet. It comprises two
phases with 4 residential tower blocks and provides 1,999 residential units
in aggregate. Up to 31 December 2022, 978 units of first phase and 935

units of second phase were sold and completed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Mainland China Property Investment

Hilton Beijing (50% interest), a five-star international hotel having 506
rooms. The renovation works of 5th to 14th Floors of the main tower still
remain suspended due to COVID-19 pandemic. Its average occupancy rate
was approximately 24.90% during the Year due to the renovation works

and the pandemic.

Oriental Place (50% interest), a 10-storey office building next to Hilton
Beijing. As at 31 December 2022, the occupancy rate was approximately
85.54%.

Overseas Property Investment and Development

“120 Fleet Street” consists of a freehold office building known as River
Court and the Grade II* listed Daily Express Building, situated at 116-129
Fleet Street, London, United Kingdom. It provides a total net internal
area of approximately 429,980 square feet, together with certain car
parking spaces. As at 31 December 2022, the retail portion and the office
accommodation of River Court were vacant. Demolition works of River
Court are in progress. River Court will be redeveloped into a 21-storey
high rise Grade A office led, mixed use building with 2 basement levels,
and is expected to comprise approximately 540,800 square feet of office
space and approximately 18,600 square feet of retail space and will be
renamed as Evergo Tower, while Daily Express Building will be retained
and refurbished. The project is expected to be completed in the first half of
2026.

“14 St George Street” is a freehold office building located in London,
United Kingdom with total net internal area of around 51,861 square feet.
Office accommodation is arranged over lower ground, ground and four
upper floors. Its average occupancy rate during the Year was approximately
86.48%.

“61-67 Oxford Street and 11-14 Soho Street” is a mixed use freehold
building located in London, United Kingdom, comprising approximately
55,151 square feet in aggregate. The building provides retails, office and
residential accommodation, occupying approximately 33,843 square feet,
13,694 square feet and 7,614 square feet respectively, over lower ground,
ground and six upper floors. As at 31 December 2022, the occupancy rate

was approximately 88.86%.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Overseas Property Investment and Development (Cont'd)

“11 and 12 St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard" is a mixed use
freehold building located in London, United Kingdom. Its total net internal
area is around 82,374 square feet. Office accommodation is arranged
over lower ground, ground and six upper floors. The occupancy rate was
approximately 83.12% during the Year on average. Upgrading works to part
of the office spaces will commence once the relevant government approval

is granted.

Securities Investment

Securities investment is one of the principal activities of the Group.

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management. As at 31 December 2022, the Group's securities
investment portfolio comprised of bonds, listed equity investments and
treasury products. The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of
the Company. The Group's strategy for future investments is to invest in a
diversified portfolio to minimise risks with attractive yield, good liquidity and
issuers from reputable entities, so as to maintain a healthy financial status

and grasp every good investment chance.

The net loss recognised from securities investments and treasury
products for the Year was approximately HK$274.0 million. Details of
the performance of securities investments are disclosed in the “Financial

Operation Review" of this annual report.

The Group will continue to closely monitor its portfolio of securities

investment to achieve satisfactory returns.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Leasing of Windsor House

- Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 March 2022, the Group (as tenant) entered into (i) a new tenancy
agreement in relation to the leasing of Room 3602 on the 36th floor of
Chubb Tower, Windsor House; and (ii) a renewal tenancy agreement
in relation to the renewal of the leasing of the whole of 19th floor, the
whole of 20th floor and the whole of 21st floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor
House with a company at that time indirectly wholly owned by Ms. Chan,
Hoi-wan (an Executive Director, the chief executive officer of the Company
and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of the Company (who are
her minor children)) as trustee for her minor children (as landlord) (the
“Transactions”), in connection with the sale of Nos. 14—18 Ma Kok Street
redevelopment project in Tsuen Wan and for the purpose of headquarter of
the Group respectively. The Transactions constituted connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions for the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as more described in
the Company’s announcement and supplemental announcement dated 28
March 2022 and 30 March 2022 respectively.

Forfeiture of Unclaimed Dividends

As announced on 3 October 2022, all dividends declared on or before 30
August 2016 remaining unclaimed on 2 November 2022 be forfeited and

reverted to the Company.

Mandate for Disposal(s) of Shares in China Evergrande Group

As disclosed on page 15 of the Company's 2021 annual report, the
Company had on 23 September 2021 sought and obtained the written
shareholders’ approval in lieu of a general meeting pursuant to Rule 14.44
of the Listing Rules for the grant of a mandate to the Directors to dispose
of all or part of the shares in China Evergrande Group (the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3333)) (“China Evergrande”)
(the "Disposal Mandate”) held by the Group in the open market of the
Stock Exchange or through block trade(s) subject to a minimum selling
price of HK$0.01 per share (excluding transaction cost) in one or series of
transactions during a period of 12 months from 23 September 2021 to
22 September 2022 (the “Mandate Period”). During the Year and within
the Mandate Period, the Group has disposed of certain shares of China
Evergrande in the open market of the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Disposal Mandate.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to ensure
their thorough understanding of the Group’s strategies and business

development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor relations.

The Company maintains a Company's website (https://swww.chineseestates.com)
to make the Company's information available on the internet, including the
dissemination of statutory announcements and circulars etc.,, to facilitate
its communication with shareholders and to provide important information
to the investing public on corporate governance structure, policies and
systems, profiles of the Directors and senior executives as well as terms of

reference of Board committees.

The up-to-date information of the Group is available for public
access on the Company's website. The Company encourages its
shareholders to take advantage of the Company's website and
welcomes suggestions from investors and shareholders, and invites
them to share their views and suggestions by contacting the Company at

investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company in writing by sending such written enquiries
to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address
disclosed in “Corporate Information” of this annual report or by email
at investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

PROSPECTS

After a prolonged period of disruptions and uncertainties, as enters into
2023, the global economic outlook is less gloomy than previously expected
and is likely to improve in 2023, despite the continued uncertainties like
geopolitical turmoil, surging inflation, pandemic disruptions, monetary policy

tightening etc.

Hong Kong economy has shown some positive signs as the border
re-open, the relaxation of pandemic control measures as well as the
removal of quarantine restrictions. The revival of inbound tourism paves
the way for rebound in local economic activities. We anticipated that
the normalisation will boost the Group’s rental activities and leasing

momentum in 2023 will be accelerated.
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PROSPECTS (contd)

For the industrial market on local front, given the gradually improved
external environment, it is anticipated that overall trading activities will be
resumed and increased. We believe the forthcoming launch and presale of
our redeveloped industrial building in Tsuen Wan could be benefited from

this resurgence momentum.

In the United Kingdom, the Group will continue to devote manpower and
resources to its “120 Fleet Street” flagship redevelopment project. Located
in the central business district of London, “120 Fleet Street” consists of the
commercial building River Court, which will be renamed as Evergo Tower,
and the historical Daily Express Building. Through the project, the Group
strives to achieve exceptionally high standard of environmental sustainability
and develop a business platform with art and commerce thriving in unison.
In view of the pioneer design and the new feature of the redevelopment,
the Group looks forward to attracting top grade international financial

corporations and first tier professional firms to occupy the office floors.

After a turbulent year, we anticipate the equity market has rebound
potential in 2023. However, as risk factors such as pandemic, geopolitical
tensions, elevated inflation, interest rate hike etc. are still present, we would
carefully watch these mutually reinforcing shocks and in the meantime,
watch for opportunities in value stocks which bring stable income and

returns.

For the year ahead, both challenges and opportunities coexist. The Group
will continue to manage its business and investment portfolios with

cautiously optimistic stance amidst economic uncertainties.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision B.2.4(b) of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, since all the Independent
Non-executive Director(s) of the Company (“INED(s)") have served more
than nine years on the Board, the Company should appoint a new INED at

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 10 March 2023,
the Board has appointed Mr. Leung, Yun-fai as an INED, and a member
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Investment Committee of the Company respectively
with effect from the conclusion of the Board meeting approving the said
appointment held on 10 March 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE EXISTING
BYE-LAWS AND ADOPTION OF THE AMENDED
AND RESTATED BYE-LAWS

The Board proposes to amend the existing bye-laws of the Company (the
“Existing Bye-laws") for the purposes of, among others, (i) bringing the
Existing Bye-laws in line with the Core Shareholder Protection Standards set
out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules; (i) allowing a general meeting to be
held as a hybrid meeting or an electronic meeting in addition to a physical
meeting, and the participants of which to attend, participate and vote by
electronic means; and (iii) making certain housekeeping amendments
for the purpose of clarifying existing practice and making consequential
amendments to be in line with the amendments to the Existing Bye-laws
(collectively the "Proposed Amendments”). The Board also proposes to
adopt the amended and restated bye-laws in substitution for, and to the

exclusion of, the Existing Bye-laws.

The Proposed Amendments and adoption of the amended and restated
bye-laws shall be subject to the passing of a special resolution by the
shareholders of the Company at the 2023 AGM, and, if approved, will
become effective upon such approval. Details will be set out in relevant

circular.

APPRECIATION

2022 is the Group's 100th Anniversary. | would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to the shareholders for their continuing support
and would also like to express my sincere thanks to my fellow directors
and all staff members for their dedication and hard work for overcoming
the Group's every challenging moments. | believe that through the hand-
in-hand efforts between the management and our staff, together with the
support from our shareholders, the Group will turn into a new brilliant

chapter of our development.

Lau, Ming-wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 March 2023
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RESULTS

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“Year") amounted to
HK$1,435.0 million (2021: HK$1,299.8 million), an increase of 10.4%
over last year and comprised gross rental income of HK$293.7 million
(2021: HK$327.3 million), gain on sales of investments held-for-trading on
a net basis of HK$28.6 million (2021: HK$183.9 million), dividend income
from listed and unlisted equity investments of HK$1,023.0 million (2021:
HK$169.5 million), interest income from bonds and structured products
of HK$22.0 million (2021: HK$315.5 million), building and property
management services income of HK$52.0 million (2021: HK$50.1
million), others of HK$15.7 million (2021: HK$18.1 million) and property
sales of nil (2021:
mainly due to dividend income of HK$1,014.0 million (2021: nil) from an

HK$235.4 million). The increase in revenue was

investee company engages in property development and trading, despite
of decrease in interest income from bonds and structured products of
HK$293.5 million, decrease in gain on sales of investments held-for-trading
of HK$155.3 million and decrease in property sales of HK$235.4 million

for the Year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$1,376.7 million (2021:
HK$1,017.4 million), an increase of 35.3% as compared with last year
which was also mainly due to dividend income of HK$1,014.0 million from
an investee company despite of decrease in interest income from bonds
and structured products, decrease in gain on sales of investments held-for-

trading and no property sale for the Year.

Property Leasing

For property leasing, the rental revenue in non-retail section decreased
by 9.1% to HK$228.0 million and retail section decreased by 14.1% to
HK$65.7 million during the Year. The total rental income in revenue for the
Year recorded a decrease of 10.3% to HK$293.7 million as compared with
last year of HK$327.3 million.
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RESULTS (contd)

Property Leasing (Cont'd)

Together with the attributable rental revenue generated from associates
and an investee company of HK$87.0 million (2021: HK$104.0 million),
the total attributable rental revenue to the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group”) amounted to HK$380.7 million (2021:

HK$431.3 million), which represents a decrease of 11.7% over last year.

Attributable net rental income for the Year showed HK$325.7 million, a

decrease of 10.4% over HK$363.6 million in last year.
Property Development and Trading

During the Year, the Group did not dispose of any trading property (2021:
sales of a house and certain parking spaces in Beijing, the People's
Republic of China ("PRC") recorded property sales revenue and gross profit
of HK$235.4 million and HK$17.3 million respectively).

In respect of properties held by an investee company, sales of 88 units
and certain parking spaces of Grand Central in Kwun Tong (10% interest)
were recorded by the investee company during the Year. Following the
recognition of sales and profits by the investee company, the investee
company declared dividends and hence dividend income from the investee
company had contributed HK$1,014.0 million (2021: nil) to the Group's

revenue and profit during the Year.

In summary, the Group's investee company recorded attributable sales
of HK$186.8 million (2021: the Group together with its associates and
investee company of HK$2,607.7 million) for the Year.

Securities Investments

The Group has in the ordinary and usual course of business conducted
its securities investment activities, as at 31 December 2022, comprised
bonds, listed equity investments and treasury products. During the Year,
the net loss (excluding gain/loss recognised in financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") reserve)
recognised from securities investments and treasury products represents
loss on investments and treasury products at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL") of HK$274.0 million (2021: net loss of HK$1,995.5
million, comprised loss on investments and treasury products at FVTPL of
HK$2,145.5 million and gain on listed equity investments at FVTOCI of
HK$150.0 million).
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Group disposed of listed investments held-for-trading
and recognised a realised gain of HK$28.6 million (2021: HK$183.9
million) (the gains/losses of which was included in revenue) with
gross proceeds of HK$1,486.8 million (2021: HK$3,977.7 million). In
addition, realised gain on bonds of HK$0.3 million (2021: realised loss of
HK$1,668.0 million) and realised loss on structured products of HK$0.6
million (2021: HK$13.5 million) were recorded during the Year.

During the Year, the Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$318.3
million (2021: HK$947.7 million) representing the changes in fair value
of bonds, listed equity investments and structured product, comprised
unrealised loss on bonds of HK$160.2 million (2021: HK$$606.9 million),
unrealised loss on listed investments held-for-trading of HK$158.1 million
(2021: HK$339.6 million) and minimal unrealised gain on structured
product (2021: unrealised loss of HK$1.2 million), which had no effect
on the cash flow of the Group. The Group believes that the decrease in
price of bonds in the industry of PRC-based real estate in the Year, among
others, was owing to concerns about the liquidity and going concern issues
and the tightening gearing policy over the real estate developers in the PRC.
Given the volatility of the stock markets during the Year, the price of listed
equity investments experienced a downside in general. In addition, certain
of the shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited held by
the Group were suspended from trading during the Year and remained

suspended at the end of the reporting period.

ot ¥ S 75 [0l R

N HE
%%ﬁx%&v
BHEEEME)

RAFE AEBLEREEEZ LWREME

Rz BB H28,600,000/8 T (=T = —F :
183,900,000 7t) (K z BIEE R2ER KA

W) - TS iH% 48 %5 1,486,800,0008 (=T =
—%F : 3,977,700,000%870) ° WEAN + RAFE RS
RABEHFZEERWZEAB300,0008 (2T =—
4 BEIREIE1,668,000,000/870) MK B &4
EmZBE#EEEA600,0008TL(ZE—F ¢
13,500,000/ 7T) °

RAFE  REESISREFIREIEZ18,300,000/%5
JL(=ZZ = —4% 1 947,700,000 70) Jh#EE 4 ~ £
TRARERGEEMERZ ATFEE BEE
H2Z A EIE160,200,0008 L (ZF=—F ¢
606,900,000/ 7T) * FHIEEE 2 EMRE 2 RER
[E518158,100,0008 7T (= F = — 4% : 339,600,000/
TRBEEMERZAZRREBHARI(ZTZ
— & : REINEIE1,200,00087T) - BAEBMBR S
MEBUEZE AEEMERAAFEPEEMETT
¥2BEFERTE®  DEEHSEF)RPEZEH
EFRNEHUADES RFELCEMBURKER
ELEBEMY - RAFEARREMISKE - &

MR E 2 BB EBERS TE © 1o - RAFE
ETHAKRERAZ LMBROREABARZMA

BRAREEFEEEINHEHAREELEES -

“ECCFF®R O EA

Bxem 21



FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW Bt 7% 3£ %% 5] B

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

During the Year, interest income from bonds and structured products (which
were included in revenue) amounted to HK$21.0 million (2021: HK$305.0
million) and HK$1.0 million (2021: HK$10.5 million) respectively. The
substantial decrease in interest income from bonds was mainly due to
a much smaller bond portfolio held during the Year as compared with a
sizeable bond portfolio held during the year 2021; and certain PRC-based
real estate bond issuers have defaulted interest payments as a result of
their liquidity issues. Together with dividend income from listed equity
investments at FVTPL of HK$8.3 million (2021: HK$11.7 million), the
Group recognised interest/dividend income from investments and treasury
products at FVTPL of HK$30.3 million (2021: HK$327.2 million) for the
Year. During the Year, there was no dividend income from listed equity
investment at FVTOCI (2021: HK$156.5 million).

Summing up the realised and unrealised gain/loss and adding the net
income from net dividend income, interest income, other investment
income/expenses and net finance income/costs of HK$16.0 million (2021:
HK$449.8 million), the loss recognised from securities investments and
treasury products was HK$274.0 million (2021: HK$1,995.5 million) for
the Year.

The dividend income from listed equity investments of HK$8.3 million
(2021: HK$168.3 million) and interest income from bonds and structured
products of HK$22.0 million (2021: HK$315.5 million) were recorded in

revenue.
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RESULTS (contd) FEwWw
Securities Investments (Cont'd) HERE(E)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under different

AR AT RER 2 B HFRE WA F S i —
categories are further elaborated below: =3

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or ~ FEB#E# URB A FEZRERHEER

Loss

Details of realised and unrealised gain/loss, interest and dividend income RAFESIEES - HIEES 2 FIREREEMN
EmZBE#RRASRKE HE - FERKRSK

AZFHBWTAR

by each type of bonds, listed investments held-for-trading and structured

products during the Year are shown below:

Realised gain (loss) Unrealised loss Interest/dividend income Total loss
BERNE (FB) RERER HE/REBWA FReE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“g--f -ZF--% C-®B--f -E--% C-B--§ —E--5 C-B--fE —Z--%
HK$ million ~ HKS milion ~ HK$ million ~ HK$milion ~ HK$ million ~ HK$milon ~ HK$ million  HKS$ millon
ABER REETL BEET AEEL BEER BEET AEERT REEL
Bond issuers by industry REFBOIAZOE
Financial institutions SREE 03 97 (18.2) 02 5.8 127 (12.1) 226
PRC-based real estate REREMNE - (1677.7) (142.0) (607.1) 15.2 2923 (126.8) (1992.5)
03 (1,668.0) (160.2) (606.9) 21.0¢ 305.0¢ (1389)  (1,9699)
Listed investments BEEEZLTRE
held-for-trading 28.6 1839 (158.1) (3396) 83 17 (1212) (144.0)
Structured products EREER (0.6) (13.5) - (12) 1.0 105 04 42)
283 (149756) (318.3) (947.7) 303 3272 (250.7) Q118.1)
Other net investment expenses AR ARTFH (143)* (19.9)*
Loss before net finance costs SBERFEAL
EE (274.0) (2,138.0)
Net finance costs BBERTE - (75)
Loss after net finance costs UHERTFERL
BB (274.0) (2,1455)

*

allowance for credit losses recognised in respect of bond interest

receivables of HK$11.2 million (2021: HK$11.9 million) was included in
"other net investment expenses”.
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RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under different

categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income

(@)  Implication on Profit or Loss for the Year

During the Year, no income/expenses was recorded from listed
equity investments at FVTOCI (2021: recorded a net gain of
HK$150.0 million, comprising net dividend income of HK$156.5
million (after transaction cost) from a listed equity investment,

net relevant finance costs of HK$6.8 million and other investment

income of HK$0.3 million).

(b)  Implication on Other Comprehensive Expenses for the Year

During the Year, the Group disposed part of a listed equity
investment and recorded a realised gain of HK$15.0 million (2021:
realised loss of HK$7,869.9 million) (inclusive of transaction costs),
and an unrealised loss on fair value change of the remaining listed
equity investment of HK$105.7 million (2021: HK$3,051.9 million)
was recognised in other comprehensive expenses. Realised gain/loss
on fair value change is a cash item while unrealised fair value change

is a non-cash item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group.

Other Income and Expenses

During the Year, the Group recorded other income of HK$18.0 million
(2021: HK$63.2 million). The decrease was mainly due to consultancy
fee income of HK$23.5 million, overprovision of costs in respect of a
development project of HK$7.1 million and exchange gain, net of HK$17.0

million recorded in 2021.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Other Income and Expenses (Cont'd)

During the Year, administrative expenses increased by 3.9% to HK$358.0
million (2021: HK$344.5 million). Finance costs increased by 27.4% to
HK$133.1 million (2021: HK$104.5 million) during the Year, including
exchange gain of HK$0.9 million on translation of foreign currency bank
borrowing (2021: exchange loss of HK$3.8 million on translation of
foreign currency other borrowings hedged for foreign currency securities
investments and exchange loss of HK$1.8 million on translation of foreign
currency bank borrowing). The increase in finance costs was mainly due to

the increase in average interest rate during the Year.

Other gains and losses for the Year recorded a loss of HK$7.5 million
mainly comprised allowance for credit losses recognised in respect of

advances to associates of HK$7.4 million (202 1: minimal loss).
Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

The share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method
for the Year recorded a profit from the share of results of associates of
HK$45.4 million (2021: loss of HK$106.7 million). The turning from loss
to profit for the Year was mainly due to recognition of an impairment loss

by an associate in 2021.
Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued at 31 December 2022 by B.I. Appraisals Limited (“B.l.
Appraisals”) whereas investment properties in the United Kingdom were
revalued by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited ("LCH (Asia-Pacific)"). B.I.
Appraisals and LCH (Asia-Pacific) are independent qualified professional
property valuers. An unrealised gain on fair value changes on investment
properties of HK$528.5 million (2021: unrealised loss of HK$1,376.6
million) was recorded during the Year. The unrealised fair value change is a

non-cash item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group.
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PROFIT/LOSS, CORE PROFIT/LOSS,
DIVIDENDS, REPURCHASE AND TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES

Profit/Loss

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$1,152.2
million as compared to loss of HK$3,515.3 million for last year. The
turning from loss to profit for the Year was mainly due to (a) recognition
of dividend income from an investee company; (b) the fair value changes
on investment properties turning from loss to gain; and (c) the decrease
in net loss from securities investments and treasury products during the
Year. Earnings per share for the Year was HK$0.60 (2021: loss per share of
HK$1.84).

Core Profit/Loss

Core profit/loss is a non-Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") measure, is arrived at by adding (i) reported profit/loss
excluding unrealised fair value changes on investment properties and other
properties together with their respective deferred tax (if applicable) during
the Year; and (i) accumulated realised fair value changes on investment
properties and other properties together with their respective deferred
tax (if applicable) recognised in prior years. The Group believes that the
presentation of non-HKFRS measure facilitates comparisons of operating
performance from period to period by eliminating potential impact of

certain items.

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$513.1 million is
excluded (2021: net loss on the major non-cash items of HK$1,395.9
million was excluded but the share of accumulated realised fair value
gain recognised in prior years on disposal of an investment property of an
associate of HK$0.8 million was included), the Group will have a core profit
for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$639.1 million
(2021: core loss of HK$2,1
HK$0.34 (2021: core loss per share of HK$1.11).

18.6 million) and a core profit per share of

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised fair
value gain on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates of HK$513.1 million (2021: net

unrealised fair value loss of HK$1,395.9 million).
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

PROFIT/LOSS, CORE PROFIT/LOSS,
DIVIDENDS, REPURCHASE AND TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES (contd)

Dividends

No final dividend for 2021 (2020: HK1 cent per share in total amount of
HK$19.1 million) and no interim dividend for 2022 (2021: nil) were paid
during the Year.

Repurchase

During the Year, the Company had not repurchased any of the Company's

share.
Total Comprehensive Expenses

Total comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable to owners of
the Company was HK$403.8 million or HK$0.21 per share (2021:
HK$14,375.7 million or HK$7.54 per share), which comprised (a) profit
for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$1,152.2
million (2021: loss of HK$3,515.3 million); and (b) other comprehensive
expenses for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$1,556.0 million (2021: HK$10,860.4 million) which mainly included
(i) unrealised loss of HK$862.5 million (2021: unrealised gain of
HK$131.2 million) on fair value change of an unlisted equity security at
FVTOC! as a result of the decrease in the carrying amount of the unlisted
equity security by the corresponding amount upon declaration of dividends
of HK$1,014.0 million (as disclosed in the sub-paragraph headed “Property
Development and Trading” of paragraph headed “Results” above);
(i) realised gain of HK$15.0 million (2021: realised loss of HK$7,869.9
million) (inclusive of transaction costs) and unrealised loss of HK§105.7
million (2021: HK$3,051.9 million) on fair value change of a listed equity
investment at FVTOCI; and (iii) Pound Sterling ("GBP") exchange loss of
foreign operations of HK$484.0 million (2021: HK$30.0 million).
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NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's net asset value attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to HK$13,979.5 million (2021:
HK$14,375.6 million), a decrease of HK$396.1 million or 2.8% when
compared with 31 December 2021. With the total number of ordinary
shares in issue of 1,907,619,079 as at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$7.33 (2021: HK$7.54). The movement in net asset value represented
total comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$403.8 million and forfeiture of unclaimed dividends

recorded in retained profits of HK$7.7 million.

In view of the redevelopment plan of properties in Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
and “120 Fleet Street” in London, United Kingdom, certain redevelopment
expenditures which have been authorised and contracted for have been
disclosed in “Capital Commitments” in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. Going forward, further investment
in capital expenditures for these two redevelopment properties are

planned.

Other than the existing projects and those disclosed in the final results, the
Group did not have material acquisition or disposal of assets and any future

plans for material investment or capital assets.

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management and invest in securities investments and treasury
products with attractive yield and good prospect in order to bring stable

and satisfactory realised return in long run.

Securities Investments and Treasury Products

As at 31 December 2022, the portfolio of securities investments and
treasury products of HK$702.3 million (2021: HK$1,066.0 million)
comprised (a) bonds, listed investments held-for-trading and structured
product (presented as financial assets measured at FVTPL (non-current
and current assets)) in aggregate of HK$592.5 million (2021: HK$701.4
million); and (b) listed equity investment (presented as financial assets
measured at FVTOCI) of HK$109.8 million (2021: HK$364.6 million),
representing 3.6% (2021: 4.9%) of total assets.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Unlisted Securities Investments

The Group also invested in an exempted limited partnership formed under
the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands
(presented as financial assets measured at FVTOCI) and the carrying
amount was HK$425.9 million as at 31 December 2021. During the
Year, the Group has contributed United States dollar ("US$") 1.1 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$8.8 million) which was funded from its
distribution and received distributions of US$5.7 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$44.9 million) (which were included in financial assets
measured at FVTOCI), after deducting the fair value loss for the Year of
HK$99.8 million (which was recognised in financial assets measured
at FVTOCI reserve), the carrying amount was HK$290.0 million as at
31 December 2022, representing 1.5% (2021: 2.0%) of total assets.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the

Group.
EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
were 1,907,619,079.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW Bt 7% 3£ %% 5] B

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total debt amounted to HK$4,975.5
million (2021: HK$5,515.2 million), comprised bank borrowings of
HK$4,886.9 million (2021: HK$5,455.5 million) and lease liabilities
amounted to HK$88.6 million (2021: HK$59.7 million). Cash and deposits
at banks amounted to HK$2,038.8 million (2021: HK$2,479.9 million),
pledged deposits amounted to HK$147.8 million (2021: HK$277.5
million) and net debt (including lease liabilities) amounted to HK$2,788.9
million (2021: HK$2,757.8 million).

Total debt to equity ratio (including lease liabilities) was 35.5% (2021:
38.3%) and net debt to equity ratio (including lease liabilities) was 19.9%
(2021: 19.2%), which are expressed as a percentage of total debt, and
net debt, respectively, over the total equity of HK$14,002.8 million (2021:
HK$14,398.8 million).

If the securities investments and treasury products of HK$702.3 million
(2021: HK$1,066.0 million) are included, the net debt to equity ratio
would be 14.99% (2021: 11.8%).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's bank borrowings of HK$4,886.9
million, 54.9%, 13.8% and 31.3% were repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2
years and 2 to 5 years respectively. Of which the Group’s bank borrowings
were denominated in HK$ (30.5%), GBP (46.0%) and US$ (23.5%)
before entering the cross currency swap. During the Year, the Group has
entered into short term US$/HK$ cross currency swap to enhance interest
payable on borrowing, and as at 31 December 2022, notional amount
of approximately US$147.4 million was outstanding. As at 31 December
2022, the Group's bank borrowings were carried at interest rates calculated
with reference to cost of funds, Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or
compounded reference rate and all the Group's bank borrowings were
on floating rate basis. Except as disclosed, no hedging for interest rate is

subsisted at the end of the reporting period.

30  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

EEREREBBLR

RZZBEZZF+ZA=+—H AEEEXKHEE
#$4,975,500,000% 7t (=& = —% : 5,515,200,000
HBIT) - BERITIEE4,886,900,000/8 T (ZFE = —
£ 1 5,455,500,000/8 7T) WA M FA & & 1£88,600,000
BL(ZZE-—4F :59,700,000/87T) - RER
$R171F 3% £2,038,800,000/8 L (=T = —4F :
2,479,900,000/% 7T) + #1754 147,800,0007% 7T
(ZE=Z—% :277,500,000/87T) * MEKFE(E
EMEAE)H2,788,900,000/8 T (ZE = —
2,757,800,000/7T) °

ERAEERAERLEE(BIEEEAE) B35.5%
(ZZ=—% :38.3%) " MEKFHEAR AL
E(BFRBEARE)AB19.9% (T = —F : 19.20%0)
DOREERAEREB FERUNR AN EREE
14,002,800, ooo;‘%ﬁ(:%:—i : 14,398,800,000
BTBECsES

Mt AFE AR E MBI E ZE 702,300,000 T (=&
——1% : 1,066,000,000/87T) * &7 %58 L2 I A
L EB149%(ZFE=—F 1 11.8%) °

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 KEEZRTE
H4,886,900,000/8 7L+ * 54.9% * 13.8%%31.3%
2, SRR —FR - —FEMFARMEEZERAFAE

E

c MANEEZRITIHEEF - UHEIL(30.5%) « HEE
(46 0%) K 37T (23.5%) GETTE ¥ 1= BARD E1E - B
RNEE  AEBTYEEET B Es g
ZREZEMFE  UERRZZE-Z—_F+= H +
—HAREEZHBES L A147,400,000F T °
T-—F+=ZA=+—H" ZK%ZﬁE?ﬂﬁE%E
BelA  BEBERTRAEFRENEELENETFE
ME - MAEEMARITEEYRZEMEE - RAT
BEEIN - RRE RGBT AL E I+ o



FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged the following assets with

their respective carrying amounts:

(a) The Group’s investment properties of HK$8,869.0 million (2021:
HK$11,334.9 million), properties of HK$38.2 million (2021:
HK$42.9 million) and bank deposits of HK$147.8 million (2021:
HK$277.5 million) were pledged to the banks to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

(b) Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.
FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

Interest income was included in revenue and investment expenses,
net. Interest income for the Year decreased to HK$40.2 million (2021:
HK$320.4 million), representing a decrease of 87.5% as compared with
last year which was mainly due to the decrease in bond portfolio and
hence its relevant interest income and certain PRC-based real estate bond
issuers have defaulted interest payments as a result of their liquidity issues

during the Year.

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank and other borrowings
and lease liabilities; exchange difference on translation of foreign
currency borrowings; and arrangement fee and facility and commitment
fee expenses. Interest expenses (excluding interest expenses on lease
liabilities) for the Year amounted to HK$125.3 million, representing an
increase of 40.8% over last year of HK$89.0 million. Interest capitalised
for the Year was HK$4.5 million (2021: HK$2.3 million). The increase in
interest expenses was mainly due to the increase in average interest rate
during the Year. The average interest rate over the year under review was
2.58% (2021: 1.29%), which was expressed as a percentage of total
interest paid (excluding interest on lease liabilities) over the average total

interest-bearing borrowings.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 498 staff (2021:
474 staff) including about 260 staff (2021: 236 staff) employed under the
estate management company in Hong Kong and 8 staff (2021: 5 staff) in
the United Kingdom.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The executive directors of the
Company continued to review employees’ contributions and to provide
them with necessary incentives and flexibility for their better commitment

and performance.

UNITED KINGDOM AND MAINLAND CHINA

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's investment properties (excluding
properties occupied for own use) in the United Kingdom with carrying
amount of GBP717.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$6,746.3
million) (2021: GBP645.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$6,799.6
million)) incurred a net profit of HK$468.3 million (2021: net loss of
HK$843.8 million) to the Group for the Year, the profit mainly included
in gross profit, other income, fair value changes on investment properties,
administrative expenses, finance costs and taxation. Due to depreciation of
GBP against HK$ during the Year, GBP exchange loss of foreign operations
included in other comprehensive expenses for the Year amounted to
HK$484.0 million (2021: HK$30.0 million). As at 31 December 2022, the
Group's net investment in the United Kingdom amounted to HK$4,570.9
million (2021: HK$4,226.4 million) representing 32.6% (2021: 29.4%) of
the Group's total equity.

Loss incurred by the Group's investment in Mainland China (mainly
included in fair value changes on investment properties, administrative
expenses, other gains and losses and taxation (2021: also included
share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method))
for the Year amounted to HK$28.8 million (2021: HK$135.7 million).
Due to depreciation of Renminbi ("RMB") against HK$ during the Year,
RMB exchange loss of foreign operations (2021: also included share of
investments accounted for using the equity method) included in other
comprehensive expenses for the Year amounted to HK$15.4 million
(2021: exchange gain of HK$11.9 million). The Group's net investment in
Mainland China as at 31 December 2022 amounted to HK$200.8 million
(2021: HK$392.5 million) representing 1.4% (2021: 2.7%) of the Group's
total equity.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

PROPERTY VALUATION

As at 31 December 2022, property valuations in respect of the Group's
investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China were carried
out by B.I. Appraisals, while the investment properties in the United
Kingdom were carried out by LCH (Asia-Pacific), both are independent
qualified professional property valuers (2021: investment properties in
Hong Kong, Mainland China and one of the investment properties in the
United Kingdom were carried out by LCH (Asia-Pacific), for the remaining
investment properties in the United Kingdom were carried out by Peak
Vision Appraisals Limited, both are independent qualified professional
property valuers). The valuations were based on investment method and/or
direct comparison method and/or residual method as the valuation

methodologies and were used in preparing 2022 final results.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$13,396.7 million
(including those presented as assets classified as held for sale) (2021:
HK$13,292.2 million), an increase of 4.1% over 2021 after adjusted for
the additions and exchange adjustments of investment properties during
the Year. The increase in fair value of HK$528.5 million was recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the Year. The
Group also shared a decrease in fair value of investment properties of

associates of HK$4.2 million for the Year.

The increase in fair value of HK$528.5 million was mainly derived from
the increase in fair value of investment properties located in the United
Kingdom and a redevelopment property located in Hong Kong. The
unrealised fair value change is a non-cash item and will not affect the cash

flow of the Group.
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MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

As one of the principal activities of the Group, the Group conducted
its money lending business through its wholly-owned subsidiary(ies)
(the "Money Lending Subsidiary(ies)”), to grant loans to individuals
and corporations in return for interest income. The Money Lending
Subsidiary(ies) has (have) either maintained a valid money lenders licence
granted by the Licensing Court or made loans which are exempted under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163) (the “MLO"). The licensing of
money lenders and regulation of money-lending transactions are governed
by the MLO. The Group is required to and has, at all times, strictly complied
with all relevant laws and regulations including the MLO, Guideline on
Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Requirements for Licensed Money Lenders as well as Guidelines on
Licensing Conditions of Money Lenders Licence issued by the Companies
Registry of Hong Kong in conduct of money lending business. The Group
has followed all forms and procedures prescribed under the provisions
of the MLO when making relevant application for the renewal of money

lenders licence and conducting money lending business.

During the Year, the Group has no money lending transaction transacted
(2021: nil) and no loan outstanding as at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

The Group has put in place procedural manual on money lending
business which sets out policies and procedures including (a) customer
due diligence check and reporting suspicious transactions; (b) ongoing
monitoring of existing borrower; (c) loan drawdown control; (d) loan

repayment control; (e) record keeping; and (f) staff training.

The Group has adopted a credit policy to manage its money lending
business which includes compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations, credit assessment on potential borrower and the potential
borrower’s assets, the credibility, the necessity in obtaining collaterals
and determination of suitable interest rate to reflect the risk level of the
provision of loan. The Group has adopted various commercial terms for
granting loan facilities to its potential borrowers, such commercial terms
will depend on the credit assessment and/or collateral level of particular
borrower. Where collaterals are required, such loans are generally secured
by properties by first or second mortgages, equitable mortgages or other

assets as collaterals.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS (contd)

Under the Group's current credit policy, unless otherwise approved by the
directors of the Company under special circumstances (i) no loan, whether
secured or unsecured, shall be granted by the Group that exceeds the
maximum loan amount preset by the Group, (ii) for secured loans, the
loan to collateral value ratios shall not exceed 90% and the tenor shall
not exceed 30 years, and (iii) for unsecured loans, they should meet the
requirement that the debt to income ratio of a borrower shall not exceed

70% and the tenor shall not exceed 36 months.

The Group will only provide money lending services and grant loan facilities
to a relevant borrower after the borrower has passed the Group's due
diligence process and other applicable internal control procedures. Due
diligence performed by the Group generally involves know your client
procedures including obtaining information as to source and amount of
income, proof of other net assets, identity document copy and address

proof.

Most of the potential borrowers of the Group's money lending services
are the Group's potential customers interested in acquiring properties
sold by the Group who during commercial negotiation with the Group has
indicated that they will require financing arrangements in purchasing the

properties.

For ongoing monitoring of the loan performance and their risk levels,
the Group will closely monitor the status of interest and loan principal
collections and perform annual valuation of the collaterals held by the

Group to assess the recoverability of the loans granted by the Group.

There is also internal audit function within the Group to examine the
operation of money lending business to ensure proper procedures and
control are implemented, and reported the result of the audit to the audit

committee of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREARES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) and management of
the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are committed to
principles of good corporate governance so as to safeguard the interests of

shareholders and enhance value to the shareholders.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 (the "Year"), the Company
had applied the principles and complied with substantial code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”") and certain recommended best practices set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

Board Composition

During the Year, the Board comprised three Executive Directors ("ED(s)"),
two Non-executive Directors ("NED(s)") and three Independent Non-
executive Directors (“INED(s)"), with INEDs representing more than one-
third of the Board. Names of each member of the Board are set out in this
Corporate Governance Report. Change in the composition of the Board
subsequent to the Year is set out in the “Directors’ Report” of this annual

report.

During the Year, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai acted as the Chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan acted as the Chief Executive Officer
("CEO").

“List of Directors and their Role and Function” has been maintained at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Directors’
biographies and the relationship among the Board members, if any, are
set out in the “Profiles of Directors” of this annual report and available on
the Company's website. Save as disclosed in such profiles, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the

Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (contd)

Responsibilities of Directors

The NEDs and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking the lead
where potential conflict of interests arises. INEDs bring strong independent

judgment, knowledge and experience to the Board.

On monthly basis, senior management provides the Directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. All Directors are kept informed of and duly briefed of major
changes and information that may affect the Group’s businesses in a timely

manner.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company’'s expense and are encouraged
to access and consult with the Company's senior management or the

company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) independently.

Directors had provided their annual confirmation to confirm they were able

to devote sufficient time to discharge their responsibilities to the Board.
Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provides that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election by the shareholders at
the annual general meetings. Accordingly, Directors shall retire by rotation
at least once every three years and a specific term of office has been fixed
for appointment of Directors. During the Year, there was no executive

chairman or managing director in the Board.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall strategy,
the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four regular Board
meetings were held during the Year. Advance notices of not less than
fourteen days were served upon each Director for regular Board meetings.
Agenda and accompanying Board papers were sent to Directors in a timely
manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). Adequate explanation and information were provided to the
Directors by the management to facilitate the Directors in decision-making.
Each Director has to declare his/her interest and abstain from voting on
any resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associate has a material
interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing

Rules.

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. Draft and executed Board minutes were sent in
good time to all Directors for their comments and records. Minutes of the
Board meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company

Secretary.
Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-
laws of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates certain
functions to senior management whenever required. In short, the Board
has reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors’ appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval on important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which give

a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Board Independence

As part of the established governance framework, the Company has in
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place mechanisms that underpin a strong independent Board and that

independent views and input from Directors are conveyed to the Board.

The composition of the Board (more than one-third of the members were
INEDs), the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee (collectively the "Board Committees”) (all of the members
were INEDs) exceeded the independence requirements under the Listing
Rules during the Year. The Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee were chaired by INED. The Company's selection,
nomination and appointment/re-appointment process for Directors
(including INEDs) is set out in this Corporate Governance Report. The
Directors’ fees of INEDs were subject to annual assessment with reference
to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market conditions
as appropriate. None of the INEDs receives remuneration based on

performance of the Group.

In performing their duties, Directors (including INEDs) could consult
independent professional advice as and when required and to access the
Company's senior management or the Company Secretary independently.
Management updates and all material information on performance and
key activities and projects were given to the Directors to facilitate decision-
making. For Board and Board Committees meetings, proper meeting
arrangements and procedures were in place to facilitate open, constructive,

informed discussions and thoughtful consideration of relevant issues.

The INEDs have historically and consistently demonstrated strong
commitment, and the ability to devote sufficient time to discharge their
responsibilities at the Board. The Board has received from each INED a
written annual confirmation of his/her independence and satisfied that
the independence of INEDs up to the date of this annual report is in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Board considered the existing mechanism to ensure Directors’
independent view and input are available to the Board was effective and

adequate during the Year.
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THE BOARD (Contd) EExg®m
Directors’ Training and Support EERIIREE

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up-to-date knowledge AR FEHE S EEH I ZE ST N UET LB
in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding major changes in & > BRE SIS R E XD & L8 BIA R H Ab Xk
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Listing Rules as well as other & {&fl,JRAIEAZBE 2 EHDRETEES -
laws/rules/regulations had been provided to the Directors.

During the Year, the Company arranged a webinar training session for the RAFE - AARAE S H T — @R LT S5
Directors. Meanwhile, Directors had provided their record of trainings to the 3l » Bt EIEE - ERE WA R AREH IR -
Company. The Board considered the trainings attended by the Directors are ZZ=@RAEEMSEZEIIZUARFSETHR
sufficient to discharge their duties. A summary of the trainings attended by & ° EFERAFE N2 EZ FHFHENT ¢

the Directors during the Year is as follows:

Training Matters 1Z 5| 518

Business/

Regulatory/ Accounting/ Economic/

Corporate Legal Tax/Finance Management
Governance EEHE &5t [SE Y4

Name of Directors EEHNS TEEA i B MK SE BB

Executive Directors HTEE

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan PRSI\ RE 22 - a a a

Ms. Chan, Lok-wan FREERRZ LT a a a

Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai MBS a&b a&b a&b b

Non-executive Directors EHTES

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai 2IRIE K4 a a a

Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai EELL a a a

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai PR B2 S £ a&b a&b a&b b

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BRSSP L a&b a&b a b

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BEEEE a&b a&b a&b a&b
Notes: N
Training Method =5 =
a:  attending seminar/webinar/work meeting/virtual conference a: 2HWFe WEWHS/ TIEgH/EHeH
b:  self-reading b: B1THE

40  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2022



BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee with clear written terms of reference which are
of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. Details of the
respective committee’s terms of reference are available at the Company's
and the Stock Exchange's websites. In 2022, all the INEDs, i.e. Mr. Chan,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TH¥ERHEE
EEERNE8E
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Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun are members of
the Board Committees with Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acts as chairman of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee while Ms. Phillis Loh,
Lai-ping acts as chairman of the Nomination Committee. The members of
Audit Committee possess appropriate professional qualifications, accounting
or related financial management expertise, which is higher than the Listing

Rules’ requirement.

Agenda and accompanying meeting papers were sent to the members
in a timely manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such
other period as agreed). Draft and executed minutes of the meetings were
sent in good time to all members for their comments and records. Minutes
of the meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company
Secretary. Professional advice and sufficient resources would be given
whenever necessary to allow the Board Committees to discharge their

duties.

Audit Committee

Role and Function

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's corporate
governance, financial reporting, risk management and internal control. It

plays an advisory role and makes relevant recommendations to the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year, with the presence
of the representative(s) of the Group’s internal audit department (“Internal
Audit Department”) in those meetings involving discussion on internal
audit reports prepared by Internal Audit Department. Senior management
was co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee to explain the
financial and business conditions of the Group to the committee members

from time to time.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarised

below:

(1) reviewed the Group's final and interim results and draft consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
and for the six months ended 30 June 2022 respectively before
recommending them to the Board for approval, with the presence of
the Company's external auditors (the “Independent Auditors”) in the

meeting reviewing final results;

(2) reviewed the overall performance including the performance of

investment properties and development properties of the Group;

(3) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory

compliance;

(4) recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the Independent

Auditors for shareholders" approval;

(5) reviewed the Group's internal control, risk management, financial

reporting and auditing matters;

(6) reviewed and discussed significant audit findings in a meeting with

the presence of the Independent Auditors;

(7) prepared and submitted to the Board an audit committee report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during the
year 2021, presented its findings and made recommendations to

the Board for consideration;

(8) carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions

of the Group;

(9) reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit functions as well as environmental, social and governance
performance and reporting, and their training programmes and
budget;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed (Cont'd)

(10)

an

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

a7

(18)

(19)

(20)

@n

(22)

discussed with the Independent Auditors the nature and scope of the
annual audit and reporting obligations of the Independent Auditors
for the Year; reviewed and approved the terms of engagement

letters, and fees for audit and non-audit services for the Year;
reviewed the arrangement for employees and those who deal with
the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in

financial reporting, internal control or other related matters;

reviewed and discussed internal audit reports prepared by Internal

Audit Department;

considered and approved the internal audit plan for the year 2023;
reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit function;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance, compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the compliance of such

policies and practices;

reviewed the code of conduct for the Directors and the compliance

of such code;

reviewed the code of practice for employees;

reviewed the sufficiency of training and continuous professional

development for the Directors and senior executives;

reviewed the progress of risk management;

reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and

internal control systems; and

reviewed the impact of adoption of new Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed (Cont'd)

In March 2023, the Audit Committee reviewed (i) the Group's final results
and draft audited consolidated financial statements for the Year; (i) the
Company's compliance with the CG Code during the Year and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report; (iii) the sufficiency of training and
continuous professional development for Directors and senior executives
for the Year; (iv) the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management
(include material environmental, social and governance risks, if any) and
internal control systems for the Year; and (v) the effectiveness of internal
audit function of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee also
made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring
Independent Auditors for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “2023 AGM").

Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by the Independent Auditors,
the engagement director of the Independent Auditors is subject to
periodical rotation, and the nature and ratio of annual fees payable to the
Independent Auditors for non-audit services and for audit services are
subject to scrutiny by the Audit Committee. A policy of non-audit services
from the Independent Auditors was established. The Audit Committee
considers whether there is clear efficiency and value-added benefit to the
Company from that work being undertaken by the Independent Auditors;
whether there is adverse effect on the independence of their audit work or
the perception of such independence; the nature of the non-audit services
envisaged to be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related fee
levels individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In addition, a
policy restricting the employment of employees or former employees of
the Independent Auditors as senior executives or financial positions with

the Group has also been in place.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Independent Auditors (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Independent Auditors had been engaged in providing
non-audit services in relation to annual review of continuing connected
transactions of the Company at a fee of HK$100,000. The audit fees of
the Independent Auditors for auditing the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year was HK$2,038,000. The relevant engagement
letters had been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well as the nature

and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of their review of the
engagement process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the

Independent Auditors.
Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the remuneration
policies for all Directors and senior executives. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible to review regularly and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of individual EDs and senior executives
as well as the remuneration of NEDs. It would consult the Chairman or the

CEO on the remuneration proposals whenever it thinks fit.

The objective of remunerating the Directors and senior executives of the
Company is to ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration to
attract and retain experienced businessmen or professionals of high calibre
to act as the Directors and senior executives to oversee the Company's

businesses and development.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year.
Works Performed

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee in the Year are

summarised below:

(1) assessed the performance of EDs, reviewed and recommended to
the Board the EDs' and senior executives’ remuneration packages for

the Year;
(2) noted the annual discretionary bonus to employees; and

(3) recommended to the Board to fix the Directors’ fee of NEDs for the

Year.

In January 2023, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations to
the Board and the Board has approved the fix of ED's monthly salary of (i)
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan at HK$8,333.33; (ii) Ms. Chan, Lok-wan at HK$65,000;
and (iii) Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai at HK$160,000 for the year ending 31
December 2023 with reference to their duties and responsibilities in the

Group as well as the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration Policy for EDs

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on EDs' remuneration package
is to enable the Company to retain and motivate EDs by linking their reward
with performance as measured against corporate objectives. In determining
guidelines for each reward element, the Company refers to remuneration

surveys on companies operating in similar businesses.
Remuneration Policy for NEDs and INEDs

The Directors' fees of NEDs and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions as appropriate. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in connection with performance of their duties. None of

the INEDs receives remuneration based on performance of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee
Role and Function

The role of the Nomination Committee is to lead the process and make
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the Company,

as well as business development and requirements of the Company.
Meeting

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.
Works Performed

The works performed by the Nomination Committee in the Year are

summarised below:

(1) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

and

(2) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors for

shareholders’ approval.

After the Year end, the Nomination Committee (i) identified suitable
individual qualified to become an INED and made recommendation to the
Board; (i) made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment
of retiring Directors for shareholders’ approval at the 2023 AGM; and (iii)
assessed the independence of an INED who served more than nine years
and is subject to re-election at the 2023 AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Nomination Policy, Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size, composition
and diversity (including the evaluation of skills, knowledge, professional
experience, cultural and educational background, gender and age of the
Board members and assessment on the independence of the INEDs) of
the Board at least annually. It is responsible for making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy and succession planning for the Directors from time
to time and selecting suitable and qualified individuals to become Board
members. In evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship,
the Nomination Committee considers the character and integrity; skills
and expertise; professional and educational background; potential time
commitment for the board and/or committee responsibilities; and the
elements of the Board Diversity Policy as stated below etc. The Nomination
Committee makes recommendation to the Board to appoint the
appropriate person among the candidates nominated for directorship. The
Board appoints suitable candidate(s) in accordance with the Bye-laws of

the Company and the Listing Rules.
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board, and sees increasing diversity at board level as an essential element
in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-term sustainable
growth for the Group. A board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) had been adopted since September 2013. Elements of the Board
Diversity Policy include gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge of Directors. Under the Board
Diversity Policy, candidates are selected based on merit and contribution
such candidate can bring to the Board. During the Year, the Board
comprised four males and four females and thus gender parity has been
achieved. The elements of the Board Diversity Policy have substantially
been included in the current Board composition. It was concluded in the
Board's yearly review that the Board Diversity Policy was effective during
the Year.

The Board put emphasis on gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
As at 31 December 2022, the male-to-female ratio in the Board, senior
executives and workforce of the Group are 50:50, 40:60 and 59:41
respectively. It was considered that the overall gender diversity of the
Group was quite balanced. The Board targets to maintain the current level

of gender diversity at all levels of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TH¥ERHEE

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE REZEE

Investment Committee had been established since 2014 with written terms =~ R EZ8€ 8 —T—ER Y - =@ BERE
of reference in place. During the Year, it comprised Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan as B #lE - RAFENRN - Z2@EMRBL T HEE
chairman, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai as chief investment officer, Mr. Chan, Kwok- & * MY B A £ H AR E 48 - MEELE R ER
wai and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun as members. It is empowered to manage the B4R AKE - RELZESERETEAEE Y
investment business of the Group (other than real estate investment) and & XK (BHEKRER I - D/(&?ﬁﬁﬁg&ﬁiﬁi’%
to make recommendations and provide advice to the Board in relation to ~ EEBEHMEBEESEHEZ MIEHEE

investment or potential investment.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS BEEHFERLE

Attendance record of each of the Board members is as follows: FEFENECHBELHEHIWT ¢

Attendance Record of Directors £3 532 %

No. of meetings attended/held in 2022 (Percentage of attendance in total) R=B=—£ i /BT EEHE (B EER)

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Investment Annual
Regular Ad hoc Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meeting Board Meeting" Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors ESfty cHESeSE KHESEeE BNZRETE FHZReeE REZREEE REZREEE RREFAS
Executive Directors HiTEs
Ms. Chan, Hol-wan BYEat  4/4(100%) 1/1 (100%) N/A TER N/A TR N/A TER 4/4 (100%) Absent B/
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan Bzt 4/4 (100%) 1/1 (100%) N/ATER N/A TiE R NATER N/A NER Absent B/
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai MEERE  4/4(0000)  1/1(100%)  NATER N/A T3 NATER  4/4(100%)  1/1(100%)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai Beges  2/4 (50%) 0/1 (0%) N/ANER N/A NEA N/A R N/A R iEH 1/1 (100%)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai AEELLE  4/4(100%) 1/1 (100%) N/A TER N/A TR N/A TER N/A TR Absent ki
Independent Non-executive g3 3k2i(7
Directors £
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai BEEEE  4/4(100%)  1/1(100%)  4/4(100%)  2/2(100%)  1/1(100%)  4/4(100%)  1/1(100%)
Ms. Phills Loh, Lai-ping BERLT  4/4(1000)  1/1(1000%)  4/4(100%)  2/2(100%)  1/1(100%)  NATER  1/1(100%)
Mr. Mg, Tsz-chun ERgss  44(100%)  1/1(100%)  4/4(100%)  2/2(100%)  1/1(100%)  4/4(100%) 1/1(100%)
Note: 5T

A To avoid conflict of interest, Director(s) was/were absent at ad hoc Board ~ * REBRBEENGER  EEREETERE LK
meeting(s) that he/she was required to abstain from voting. ERBEIRNESEEH -

—EooFFR EABE=EE 49
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"). All Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard set out in the Model

Code and the said code of conduct during the Year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(the "Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the Group's securities had been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. All Relevant Employees, after
specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed that they had complied with

the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains effective risk management (include material environmental,
social and governance risks, if any) and internal control systems and
review of their effectiveness through the Audit Committee at least annually.
The Board oversees the Company’s senior management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems and acknowledges that such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Internal Audit Department is
responsible for reviewing relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, and reporting their findings and

advice to the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TH¥ERHEE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Internal Audit

Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and is

independent of the Company’s management, with key tasks to:

(1) assess and monitor internal controls of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any levels of management whenever it

considered necessary;

2) conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
p p
procedures, income and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.

Internal Audit Department produces an annual internal audit plan
based on a risk assessment methodology for the Audit Committee’s
approval. Internal audits are carried out on a regular basis according to
the approved plan. Internal audit reports summarising audit findings
and recommendations are prepared from time to time for the Audit
Committee’s review and discussion. Management is responsible for
ensuring that control weaknesses highlighted in internal audits are rectified
within a reasonable period. Internal Audit Department would monitor the

proper implementation of corrective measures.

During the Year, Internal Audit Department had conducted six internal
audits, relevant reports had been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the scope and
quality of works done, and the extent and frequency of communication
of internal audit reports by the Internal Audit Department. The Audit
Committee was also satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal audit

function of the Group.

Pursuant to the whistleblowing policy of the Group, employees and other
stakeholders can report the possible improprieties in relation to financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Group to Head of Internal
Audit Department, who shall then report to the chairman of the Audit
Committee. Internal Audit Department has not received any report during
the Year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Risk Management

Risk Management Framework

The Company established an Enterprise Risk Management Framework that
includes a risk management policy and procedures, as well as a designated
risk management officer who helps to deploy the risk management process

across the business.

Risk Management Process

Our risk management process includes risk identification, risk assessment
and prioritisation, risk owner appointment, risk treatment and upward
reporting and monitoring of identified risks to the Audit Committee. A
corporate risk register has been established to track and document the
identified risks, risk owners, mitigating actions and control measures, and

facilitates continuous update of risk treatments.

Half-yearly reviews were conducted to follow up on the significant risks
and related actions as documented in the corporate risk register, and the
results reported to the Audit Committee. The year end risk management
assessment result was reported to the Board through the Audit Committee.
The Company will continue to enhance and standardise our approach to

manage risks.

Subsequent to the Year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management (include material
environmental, social and governance risks, if any) system for the Year
and the Board was satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the
risk management (include material environmental, social and governance
risks, if any) system of the Group and considered that the Company had
complied with the Code Provisions in respect of risk management during
the Year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Internal Control

Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors and

the works done by Internal Audit Department, the Audit Committee and

the Board were satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the system

of internal control of the Group and concluded that:

Q)

@

3)

)

®)

6

)

the Company had complied with the Code Provisions in respect of

internal control during the Year;

a framework of prudent and effective controls had been established

by the Group to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;

internal control and accounting systems of the Group were effective

and adequate;

significant risks and control failings or weaknesses (if any) that
may influence the Group and the changes since last annual review
had been identified, evaluated and managed through the ongoing

monitoring process;

material transactions of the Group were executed with the

management's authorisation;

the Company's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance were effective; and

the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, and their

training programmes and budget were adequate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Policy”) and the Board had undertaken to review the Policy at least
annually to ensure its effectiveness. The Policy sets out the framework
in place to promote two-way communication with shareholders. It also
aims to set out the provisions with the Company's objective of providing
the shareholders of the Company timely, ready and equal access to the
Company's information from time to time so as to allow shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow shareholders to

share with the business affairs of the Company.

Under the Policy, channels for communication mainly include: (i)
holding general meetings; (ii) publication of financial reports, notices,
announcements or circulars at the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange's website; (iii) disseminating latest information of the Group or
press releases issued by the Company through the Company's website; and
(iv) maintaining a continuing dialogue with shareholders and stakeholders
by allowing them to raise their enquiries to the Investor Relations section of

the Company's website at https://chineseestates.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairmen of the Board Committees are encouraged to attend and answer
questions from shareholders at general meetings. The chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee as well as the Independent Auditors had attended the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 20 May 2022 (“2022 AGM") to

answer questions from shareholders.

At the commencement of each general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders and the shareholders were allowed to raise any question
concerning the poll procedures. At each of the meetings, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the meeting and put forward
to the shareholders for poll voting. Details of poll results are available at the

Company's website.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Cont'd)

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the corporate communications manual to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made. Such manual also provides
guidance for coordinating the disclosure of material information to investors,
analysts and media, identifies who could speak on the Company’s behalf,
and outlines the responsibility for communication with various stakeholder

groups.

As the Policy includes various channels for shareholders and stakeholders
to communicate their views on matters affecting the Company, the Board
considered it was effective and adequate during the Year in its annual

review.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy for the Company that aims to
set out the principles and guidelines of the Company in relation to the
declaration, recommendation and payment of dividends to its shareholders
(the "Dividend Policy").

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. Distribution of dividends should be
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. When
considering dividend declaration or recommendation, the Board shall take

into account the following factors:

(1)  business condition and strategy of the Group;

(2) capital requirement for the Group’s existing/potential project or

investment;

(3) earnings, financial and cash flow position and distributable reserves

of the Company and the Group; and

(4)  other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (contd)

The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the provisions of
the Bye-laws of the Company, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended from time to time) and any other applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used
as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be

declared or paid by the Company in future.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend or not to recommend
final dividends to the shareholders for approval; and to declare or not to
declare any other dividends, including but not limited to interim and/or
special dividends, after taking into consideration the factors as stated in (1)
to (4) above.

The Dividend Policy may be updated, amended, modified and/or cancelled

from time to time as the Board may think fit and necessary.
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company can at all times submit a signed
written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the Company
Secretary to request the convening of a special general meeting (“SGM")
and deposit the requisition at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, the addresses

are disclosed in “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from twenty-one days of the deposit.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting at
the date of the requisition or shareholders not less than 100 in total can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to

propose a resolution at the general meeting (the “Written Requisition”).

The Written Requisition must be accompanied by (i) the proposed
resolution; and (ii) a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at the general meeting. The Written Requisition must contain
the signatures of all the requisitionist(s). The Written Requisition must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda, the addresses are disclosed
in “Corporate Information” of this annual report, not less than six weeks
before the general meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week before the general meeting in the

case of any other requisition.

Provided that if, after a copy of the Written Requisition requiring notice of
a resolution has been deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, an
annual general meeting is called for a date which is six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable

laws and rules.

Propose a Candidate for Election as a Director at an Annual

General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director had been established and published at the Company's website

(https://www.chineseestates.com).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the Company
Secretary in writing by sending such written enquiries to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address disclosed
in “Corporate Information” of this annual report or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company's constitutional

documents.
DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS

Non-executive Director Attending General Meeting

Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai, a NED, was unable to attend the 2022 AGM as she

was not in Hong Kong on that day.

Disclosure of Length of Tenure of INED(s) Who Served More Than

Nine Years

The Company has disclosed the length of tenure of each existing INED
(all of them have been served more than nine years on the Board) on a
named basis in a supplemental announcement of the Company dated
4 May 2022 instead of in the circular to shareholders accompanying the
notice of the 2022 AGM (the “Circular”).

Since all the INEDs are not required to retire from office and be re-
elected as Directors at the 2022 AGM, as such, the Company has omitted
to disclose the length of tenure of each INED on a named basis in the

Circular.
CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
"Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment and
development, building and property management, brokerage, securities

investment, money lending and cosmetics distribution and trading.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year, discussion on
the Group's future business development and description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found in the
“Chairman'’s Statement” of this annual report. Furthermore, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important event(s)
affecting the Group that has/have occurred since the end of the Year
(if any) are contained in the “Chairman'’s Statement” of this annual report.
An analysis of the Group's performance during the Year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Financial Operation Review"
of this annual report. Discussions on the Group's environmental policies
and performance, relationships with its key stakeholders, and compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”, the “Corporate
Governance Report”, the “Directors’ Report” and the “Environmental, Social

and Governance Report” of this annual report.

OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from operations
analysed by principal activities are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31 December 2022 are set out in Notes 47 and 48 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on pages 109 to 110.

During the Year, the Board did not declare any interim dividend (2021: nil).

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2021: nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is set out on pages 266 to 267.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

Details of the principal properties and property development rights of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out on pages 268 to 272.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year are set out in

Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
During the Year, the Group did not acquire (2021: HK$160,959,000) or

dispose (2021: nil) of any investment properties.

Other movements in investment properties during the Year are set out in

Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$11,066,000 (2021: HK$1,761,000).
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GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of secured bank borrowings and other borrowings repayable within
one year or on demand and long-term secured bank borrowings are shown

in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the Year, interest capitalised amounted to approximately
HK$4,475,000 (2021: HK$2,349,000) by the Group.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on

pages 114 to 118.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted of approximately HK$13,650,710,000 (2021:
HK$14,046,782,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Movement in the share capital of the Company during the Year is set out in

Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Year, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked

agreement.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the

Company's businesses were entered into or existed during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers
amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total revenue (excluding the
Group's interest income from bonds and structured products, dividend
income from listed and unlisted equity investments and gain on sales of

investments held-for-trading) for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers

amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year or as of the date of this Directors’ Report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan

Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai
(appointed on 10 March 2023)
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai, Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai and Mr.
Leung, Yun-fai will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting pursuant to Bye-laws 94 or 111 of the Bye-laws of the Company

and all being eligible will offer themselves for re-election.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Appendix 10 of Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as

follows:

I The Company
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Percentage of

Number of Issued Share
Name of Director Shares Held Capacity Capital
EEgE Frs IR 8 B 54 ERTREABIL
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (“Ms. HW Chan") 1,430,700,768 & Interest in controlled 74.99%
BRel B+ (R E L) corporation and interest of
children under 18
MEEGI AR Z SR
R85 F R 2 # s
Note: BsT
* These shares of the Company were indirectly owned by Sino * RN 2 ZERH BSino Omen Holdings

Omen Holdings Limited (as disclosed under “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in the Securities of the Company”), the
entire issued share capital of which was held by Ms. HW Chan as
the trustee of her minor children Lau, Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah
and Lau, Sau-yee.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Cont'd)

| Associated corporations of the Company

BEERBSTHAERAELATR
BB LZE2E S ERZ®

N RAFZHEEEE

Percentage of

Name of Associated Number of Issued Share
Name of Director Corporations Share(s) Held Capacity Capital
Exps HEEBAR FisRA# A 5 | ERTRZASL
Ms. HW Chan Sino Omen Holdings Limited 50,000 * Interest of children under 18 100%
RElEL R85 T2 2 s
Ms. HW Chan Solar Bright Ltd. 1 S Interest in controlled 100%
BrslEat corporation and interest of
children under 18
iRz NG 5958
Ao 185 F & 2 s
Note: PiEE

* Ms. HW Chan (as the trustee for her minor children Lau, Chung-
hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee) directly held the entire
issued share capital of Sino Omen Holdings Limited. Sino Omen
Holdings Limited directly held the entire issued share capital of
Solar Bright Ltd.. Therefore, Ms. HW Chan as the trustee for her
said minor children was also regarded as interested in the entire
issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd..

The interests stated above represent long position. The percentage shown
was the number of shares the relevant Director was interested in expressed

as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2022.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were granted or had
exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the Company or any of

its associated corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FERFRRAARAZE SR
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as are known to any Directors or chief EHEEEZXARFHZERITRABMAE  RZT==
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or  F+Z=A=+—H KA RIRIEFEHFRBEEHE
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by — 336/57B{EF 2 B MAE S BTMEARARF » HiE
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to Sk A SR A A AR BB 31T A 5% A
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be ~ t##H 2 AL (BEER AR A HS TR ABBRIN 10

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company: ™~

Percentage of

Number of Issued Share

Name of Substantial Shareholders Shares Held Capacity Capital

FERRER s IR 8 B ; 54 ERTREABIL

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung ("Mr. Joseph Lau”) 1,430,700,768 A Interest of spouse and 74.99%
Bl S A ([RIBER A& D) interest of children under 18
Bl 2w &
R 18R F 2 e

Sino Omen Holdings Limited 1,430,700,768 e Interest in 74.99%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) controlled corporation
(7 52 /88 4 PR A A S SRR SZ) N NI £

Solar Bright Ltd. 1,430,700,768 X Beneficial owner and interest 74.99%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) in controlled corporation
(P33 /88 4 FR R A S e AR S2) BERBEAAR
NS NS X

Century Frontier Limited 476,425,000 e Beneficial owner 24.97%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) BB A

(7 52 /88 4 PR A A S ST AR SZ)

Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited 230,984,820 * Beneficial owner 12.10%

(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) BB A

(REBER RS M)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (contd)

Notes:

8 Mr. Joseph Lau was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares that his spouse, Ms. HW Chan, and his minor children, Lau,
Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee, were interested or deemed
to have interests.

* Solar Bright Ltd. held the entire issued share capital of Century
Frontier Limited and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited and
therefore was deemed to be interested in 476,425,000 shares of the
Company held by Century Frontier Limited and 230,984,820 shares
of the Company held by Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited
respectively. In addition, Solar Bright Ltd. directly held 723,290,948
shares of the Company. As such, Solar Bright Ltd. was interested or
deemed to have interested in a total of 1,430,700,768 shares of the
Company. Sino Omen Holdings Limited held the entire issued share
capital of Solar Bright Ltd. and therefore was deemed to be interested
in 1,430,700,768 shares of the Company, which were referred to in
the interests of Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in the Securities of the Company and Associated
Corporations”.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December
2022, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.
DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

According to the Company's Bye-laws, each Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the extent allowed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended)) which such Director may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of the Director's office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has provided indemnity to independent non-
executive directors of the Company (“INEDs") by issuing a letter to each
of the INEDs. The Company has also arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Group which was in force during the Year and up to the date of this

Directors’ Report.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, Ms. HW Chan and Mr. Lau, Ming-wai had personal and/or
directorship interests in private companies engaged in property investment
business and securities investment business; and Ms. HW Chan had
personal and/or directorship interests in private companies engaged in
money lending business and property development business. As such, they
were regarded as being interested in such businesses, which competed or

might compete with the Group.

In addition, Mr. Joseph Lau, a former executive Director, Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, had through the then
private companies wholly-owned by him acquired the retail shops of York
Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet) and Southorn Centre (also known as
Wanchai Computer Centre) from the Group in 2010, certain floors and car
parking spaces constituted part of the properties known as Silvercord and
the properties known as The ONE from the Group in 2015 as well as the
properties known as Windsor House from the Group in 2016 (collectively
the “Private Properties”). Ms. HW Chan was a director of and deemed to
have interests in the companies directly or indirectly holding the Private
Properties during the Year. There might be potential leasing competition
for existing and prospective tenancies between the Private Properties and
investment properties held by the Group. In order to manage such potential
leasing competition, Mr. Joseph Lau had provided certain undertakings and
the Company had agreed with the Stock Exchange to implement certain
measures for monitoring the compliance of such undertakings. Details of
such undertakings and monitoring measures were set out in the circulars
of the Company dated 18 June 2010, 23 September 2014, 7 January
2015 and 15 January 2016. The INEDs had carried out an annual review
on the compliance of the said undertakings and monitoring measures and
confirmed that such undertakings and monitoring measures were duly
complied with and considered adequate monitoring measures were in

place to avoid the potential leasing competition during the Year.

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflict of interests and duties. All of the INEDs are members of the audit
committee of the Company, so that the interests of its shareholders can be

adequately represented.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in
any businesses apart from the Group’s businesses, which competed or was

likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's businesses.
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DIRECTORS' AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the agreement(s) disclosed under the heading “"Connected
Transactions” below and the facility agreement(s) entered into between
the Group and Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under “Material Related Party
Transactions” in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements, there
were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company's businesses, to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year, and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor
there were any other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Company's businesses between the Company or any
of the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its

subsidiaries.
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1) Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected

Transactions

The Group had entered into the following tenancy agreements with
a connected person of the Company. The entering into the relevant
tenancy agreements as well as the rental payments, the service
charges and rates payments, the fit-out administration fee payments
and the dedicated lift maintenance payment thereof (where
applicable) constituted connected transactions and/or continuing
connected transactions for the Company. These transactions were
exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement,
but were subject to the reporting, announcement and (to the extent
constituting continuing connected transactions for the Company)

annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)
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(1) Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected (1) BEXZRSEBERS &)
Transactions (Cont'd)
Name of the connected person and nature
Name of the parties to the of connected person’s interest in the
transaction(s) Date and principal terms of the transaction(s)  Caps for the Year transaction(s)
REHER RZABRTERR EELR BEATEBRBEALRARZT2HENE
Date of Announcement: 28 February 2019
AHRE ZF-NEZF=1/A
Chinese Estates, Limited (‘CEL") | Tenancy agreement dated 28 February 2019 For senvice charges WHL
(a direct wholly-owned entered into between CEL and WHL in relation and rates payment -
subsidiary of the Company) to leasing of the whole of 17th floor of Chubb HK$7,200,000 At the date of the announcement, WHL was a
EABXARAA(EE) Tower, Windsor House at a monthly rental of R E REMTIE - company indirectly owned by (i) Ms. HW Chan (an
(KRR ERZEHE HK$1,025,000 for a term of three years from 1 7,200,000/ T executive Director and a trustee of the substantial
ML) March 2019 to 28 February 2022 for the purpose shareholders of the Company (who are two of her
(Tenant) of headquarter of the Group For fit-out administration minor children)), both in her capacity as a trustee
(#@P) HEERWHETVARAZS-NEFE_AZT/\ | fee payment- of her minor children and in her own capacity;
BREERE  SHRAEEESAEZEASAE | HK$500,000 (ii) Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (a non-executive Director,
Windsor House Limited ("WHL) | 17828 A8 410250008 =% | £ETHETE - the Chairman of the Board and a substantial
(Landlord) “NEZA-BEZZ_F-AZTN\BLEA | 50000087 shareholder of the Company); and (ii) a family trust
(#%) H=% ERAKEEN A of Mr. Joseph Lau (the spouse of Ms. HW Chan)
RELHZBE WHLA—Fm()RelE Rt
Agreement for lease dated 28 February 2019 (BITEZRADAZFERR (RZMERME
and tenancy agreement dated 18 October 2019 FRZEFANRERKEFRZEFAZS N
subsequently entered into between CEL and WHL REAZZ5H)  (NEIBEEEGEHTES
in relation to leasing of the whole of 19th floor, the EZQIRRADAZEERR) : R(inBI2
whole of 20th floor and the whole of 21st floor S ER T2 EB) 2 FRERAERE
of Chubb Tower, Windsor House at an aggregate ]
monthly rental of HK$3,184,000 for a term of three
years from 1 November 2019 to 31 October 2022
for the purpose of headquarter of the Group
MEFEAWHET L RAA-T-NF-A-TN
RMRERERERARITVASR-Z— 1%
TAT\BHHERE  EHHESEAERE
ASABI9B2E  20B2ERIERE
AHEER318400087 - AZT-NFT
—A-BEZZ_ETA-t-HIEAE=
F ERRERGH A
Date of Announcement: 12 June 2020
AHREY ZEZFEAATZA
CEL Tenancy agreement dated 12 June 2020 entered For service charges WHL
2§ into between CEL and WHL in relation to leasing of | and rates payment -
(Tenant) the whole of 39th floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor HK$3,800,000 At the date of the announcement, WHL was a
(HP) House at a monthly rental of HK$1,409500 fora | MRISERZHFE - company indirectly owned by (i) Ms. HW Chan (an
term of three years from 13 June 202010 12 June | 3,800,000/ 7T executive Director and a trustee of the substantial
WHL 2023 for the purpose of headquarter of the Group shareholders of the Company (who are her minor
(Landlord) BEEEWHAIVABA-Z-TF A+=H | Forfitout administration children)), both in her capacity as a trustee of her
(&3 WHERS  BHREESAEZEASARIY | fee payment - minor children and in her own capacity; and (ii) a
B2E SAMEA14095008 T m=F= | HK$500,000 family trust of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (a non-executive
TEAATZHECSZ=E/ATIAEARE | RBAOBMENE- Director and the Chairman of the Board)
ZE ERFEEEHZA 500,000/ REATHZAE  WHA—BR()ENELT

(BITEFRARAZ IEBR(RZARETR)
ZERNRERREFLZERAZFNRA
Ag2ah)  RMEGEELGEHTEZRE
FEIRCRRERRRRR LA

—TooEEH  EAEKEE
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

(1) Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected

Transactions (Cont'd)

BEXZ®

(1) BEXSRSEEERS (@)

Name of the connected person and nature

Name of the parties to the of connected person’s interest in the
transaction(s) Date and principal terms of the transaction(s)  Caps for the Year transaction(s)
REHER RZABRTERR EELR BEATEBRBEALRARZ T 2HENE
Date of Announcement: 28 March 2022
AGEM . —8ZZFZfZ1NA
Landrich (HK.) Limited Tenancy agreement dated 28 March 2022 entered | For senvice charges and WHL
(‘Landrich") into between Landrich and WHL in relation to rates payments (from
(an indirect wholly-owned leasing of Room 3602 on the 36th floor of Chubb | 1 April 2022 to 31 At the date of the announcement, WHL was a
subsidiary of the Company) Tower, Windsor House at a monthly rental of December 2022) - company indirectly owned by Ms. HW Chan (an
Bi(EEBEBLREAD HK$ 169,500 for a term of three years from 1 April | HK$1,350,000 executive Director, the chief executive officer of
(RARZRAELERR 2022 to 31 March 2025 in connection with the REEREHTEEZ | the Company and a trustee of the substantial
VNG sale of Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street redevelopment | 2ZZFWA—HZEZF | shareholders of the Company (who are her minor
(Tenant) project in Tsuen Wan ZZEFZR=1-H)- | children)) as trustee for her minor children
(EP) BEBREWHET I ABAZS-ZF=A=F/ | 135000047 REAHAH - WHLA—HsRSE L L (BT
BMEERE  FRHEEEAEREASKE B2 ARATHEERARAZ FERA (R
CEL 36123602% - FAMEH169,500%  =F | Forfitout administration LARETR)ZERANNERRE TR 255
£E ZZENA-BEZE-RFZR=T-HIEA | feepayments (fom 1 Aprl | AZEGHEZEE AR
(Tenant) H=F MRHENNEEEAHI4Z185ME | 20221031 December
(#P) BIER 2022) - HK$2,500,000
RETHETAB-T
WHL Tenancy agreement dated 28 March 2022 entered | ZZ4MA—-HZ=%=
(Landlord) into between CEL and WHL in relation to renewal “&+-f=1+-H)-
(%F) leasing of the whole of 19th floor, the whole of 2,500,000 7T

20th floor and the whole of 21st floor of Chubb
Tower, Windsor House at an aggregate monthly
rental of HK$2,350,000 and for a term of three
years from 1 November 2022 to 31 October 2025
for the purpose of headquarter of the Group
MEEAWHLTLRBR-Z-Z5=A-1+)
BMEERE  FRERSSARREASKE
1982 2082ER2I1EZE  BAAHA
£ /23500008 A-E-—F+—F—H
EIZCRFTA-T-ALAS=F AR
EBEH A

For dedicated ft
maintenance payment
(from 1 April 2022 to

31 December 2022) -
HK$100,000
ERARERETE(R
T HNA-REC
TooFT-A=-
A)-

100,000/ 7T
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

@)

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 14 August 2020, CEL entered into a contract for services with
Ms. HW Chan regarding the provision of (i) leasing administration
services (including without limitation matters relating to dealing
with tenants, rent collection and taking legal actions, but excluding
services in relation to the referral of potential tenants and the
negotiation with existing and/or potential tenants regarding terms
of lease of properties), (ii) sale administration services (including
without limitation the appointment of and coordination with estate
agents for such sale but excluding any sale agency service), (iii)
property management services (including matters relating to
management, maintenance, operation, servicing and repairs of
properties), (iv) property administration services (including without
limitation accounting, recruitment, human resources administration
works, taxation, marketing and information technology services)
(the "Property Administration Services”), (v) asset management
and maintenance services (including property, household and other
management and maintenance services in relation to properties
and assets) (the “Asset Management and Maintenance Services"),
(vi) rental services (including rental of motor vehicles, car plates,
vessels, car parking spaces, premises and such other rental services)
(the "Rental Services"), (vii) advisory and consultancy services
(including general advisory, consultancy, administration, liaison,
personnel support services and such other services (including
without limitation accounting and taxation services) ancillary and/or
incidental thereto) (the “Advisory and Consultancy Services"), and
(viii) other ordinary services (including without limitation securities
and other financial services) to Ms. HW Chan, her associates and/or
relatives for a term of 3 years commencing from 1 November 2020
to 31 October 2023 (the “Contract”). The cap of the service charges
payable by Ms. HW Chan to CEL for the Year under the Contract was
set at HK$62,400,000 (the "Cap”) as disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 14 August 2020 and circular dated 7 October
2020. The Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 28 October
2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

(2) Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

As at the date of the relevant announcement, Ms. HW Chan was
an executive Director and a trustee of the substantial shareholders
of the Company (who are her minor children), Ms. HW Chan was
a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Contract and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. As
one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the expected
annual caps for the Contract were more than 5%, the Contract and
the transactions contemplated thereunder were subject to reporting,
announcement, circular, independent shareholders’ approval and
annual review requirements pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

Having reviewed the above continuing connected transactions, the INEDs,
pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the requirement to carry out
an annual review on the continuing connected transactions, confirmed that
the transactions were made in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group (other than household management and maintenance
services under the Asset Management and Maintenance Services, the
Property Administration Services, the Rental Services and the Advisory and
Consultancy Services under (2) above); on normal commercial terms;
and in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. For continuing connected transactions under
(2) above, having considered the reasons and benefits in respect of the
provision of household management and maintenance services under the
Asset Management and Maintenance Services, the Property Administration
Services, the Rental Services and the Advisory and Consultancy Services as
mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 14 August 2020 and
circular dated 7 October 2020, the INEDs were of the view that, although
the provision of such services contemplated under the Contract were not in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, the terms of such
services were fair and reasonable so far as the Group were concerned and
on normal commercial terms, and were in the interests of the Company

and its shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
provided and confirmed in their letter made in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
that the above continuing connected transactions:

1. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors
of the Company to believe that the disclosed continuing connected

transactions have not been approved by the Board;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors of the Company to believe that the transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the

Group;

3. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors
of the Company to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant

agreements governing such transactions; and

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the auditors’ attention
that causes the auditors of the Company to believe that each of the
continuing connected transactions has exceeded the annual cap set

by the Company disclosed in relevant announcement.
The Company provided a copy of such letter to the Stock Exchange.

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this Directors'
Report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Save as aforesaid, none of the "Material Related Party Transactions” for
the Year as disclosed in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-

exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above “Material Related Party Transactions” constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the relevant

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 25 November 2021,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Borrower”) as
borrower has on 25 November 2021 entered into a facility agreement
(the "Facility Agreement”) with a bank (the “Bank”) as lender in respect
of a term loan facility (the “Facility”) in the principal sum of up to
HK$610,000,000 and it is a term of the Facility Agreement that the
Company entered into a guarantee (the “Guarantee”). The Facility will be
repayable in 12 successive quarterly instalments with the final repayment
date falling 36 months after the date on which the advance under the

Facility is made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement and the Guarantee, the Borrower
and the Company shall procure that the substantial shareholders of the
Company (as disclosed at pages 74 to 75 of the 2020 annual report of
the Company) and/or their ultimate beneficial owners together with their
respective associates and connected persons in aggregate shall maintain
not less than 30% shareholding in and remain a single largest shareholder

of the Company.

A breach of the abovementioned undertaking may constitute an event
of default under the Facility Agreement, whereby the Bank may, among
others, cancel the Facility and declare that all sums accrued or outstanding
(including accrued interest) under the Facility Agreement be immediately
due and payable. The occurrence of such event may trigger the cross
default provisions of other banking or credit facilities available to the Group
and, as a possible consequence, these other facilities may also be declared

by the relevant lenders to be immediately due and payable.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the "ORSO Scheme”); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the “MPF Scheme").

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their respective

trustees accordingly.

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1 December 2000. Contributions to the
ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based on
the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff members
are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining the
retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to 90%
of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service of at least
3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed any forfeited
contributions (made by the Group for any staff member who subsequently
left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) to be

used by the Group to offset the current level of contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$30,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to be

preserved until the retirement age of 65.

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$30,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%
or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group’s mandatory contribution

under the MPF Scheme as mentioned above.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately HK$8,615,000 (2021: HK$8,507,000). In
addition, there was no amount of forfeited employer's contributions for
the schemes (2021: HK$188,000) that was utilised towards reducing
the Group's contributions during the Year. As at 31 December 2022, the
balance available to reduce future contributions amounted to approximately
HK$11,000 (2021: nil).

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of this

annual report as required under the Listing Rules.
AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") who would retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint HLB

as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lam, Kwong-wai

Director

Hong Kong, 10 March 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This environmental, social and governance ("ESG") report (“this Report”)
captures the ESG performance of the Company (or “Chinese Estates”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) during the reporting period. The
information collected during report preparation process and disclosed in
this Report will serve as the basis of the Group's ESG strategy, management
and future improvement.

Reporting Standard

This Report was prepared in accordance with the requirements as set out
in Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide"),
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise specified, this Report covers the Group's progress and
performance on ESG issues from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Reporting Scope and Boundary

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting scope of this Report only
covers the Group's operations in Hong Kong. The reporting principles of
“Materiality”, "Quantitative”, “Balance” and “Consistency” as set out in the
Guide underpin the preparation of this Report, the contents of this Report
and the presentation of information.

Board Approval

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has approved this
Report on 10 March 2023.

Board Statement

The Group considers sustainability as a strategic approach to create
long-term business value. To achieve sustainable development, we strive
to address ESG concerns by integrating ESG principles into our operation
and management process. A well-structured ESG management approach
helps us to identify the ESG related risks and ensure daily operations are
aligned with the Group's ESG practices. Chinese Estates has a solid ESG
governance structure which comprises of the Board and the Sustainability
Working Group (the “Working Group”). As the highest governing authority
in the Group, the Board has ultimate responsibility for all sustainability
related matters, providing vision and strategic direction for our sustainability
activities, formulating corresponding business strategies and policies,
and overseeing overall ESG management and reporting. The Board
also regularly reviews the Group's sustainability risks and opportunities,
performance and progress.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)
Board Statement (Cont'd)

Under the Board, the Working Group plays a vital role in overseeing the
Group's sustainability strategies, daily operations and risk management.
The Working Group comprises of managers from key divisions, including
Administration, Building Management, Company Secretarial, Human
Resources, Marketing, Project Development and Internal Audit. The
Working Group has the strategic and operational responsibility to manage
sustainability issues, monitor the progress of our sustainability activities and
ensure the Group stays on track and in balance with the 3 sustainability
dimensions of economic, environmental and social impacts at all
times. Under delegated authority from the Board, the Working Group is
responsible for monitoring sustainability matters in operations, reviewing
stakeholders’ feedback and updating respective policies. We listen to our
stakeholders and consider their views, comments and recommendations
on ESG management. Our efforts in understanding and managing the ESG
related risks enable us to achieve our objective of creating greater values
for all stakeholders. All ESG related matters are reported to the Board every

year.

Based on the preliminary qualitative environmental targets set last year,
we have further benchmarked against our peers, analysed our historical
environmental data, and thereby developed quantitative environmental
targets. These targets help ensure that our approach to environmental
management and our initiatives to enhance environmental performance
can be carried out effectively and consistently throughout the Group. In
addition, we recognised that our climate resilience is critical to our business
operation and competitiveness in the long run. We conducted a more
in-depth climate assessment to identify and analyse the risk level of both
physical and transition risks related to the Group in order to understand the

potential impacts to our business.
Approach to Sustainability
A.  Stakeholder Engagement

To understand stakeholders’ expectations and ESG related issues
that are relevant and important to the Group, we are committed to
maintaining constant communication with our stakeholders. This
Report captures the highlights of our sustainability performance and

achievements in 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR3E - HERERHKES

ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)

Approach to Sustainability (Cont'd)

A

Stakeholder Engagement (Cont'd)

Chinese Estates engages with stakeholders to understand their
expectations and to address their concerns regarding ESG related
issues of the Group. We constantly engage with our key stakeholders

BRARE @

ERAREBENG (D)

A ROESHEE)
EABERBHELE - LT RIMOBE -

I e S P R BESCHEZE BT - &
MEBRERRARERBERIERNEBRL

through diverse communication channels to collect their opinions. WEMPINEE - TRBERBRFRTIERENE
The table below shows various communication channels with our BBy REEE
key stakeholders:
Key Stakeholder Group Communication Channel
FTERFHEHR BERE
. Tenant satisfaction surveys
HEWEEHRAE
. Management service surveys
Customers/Tenants BEREHAE
BE/ P Day-to-day communication through frontline employees
BBAGEINBEEER
. Customer hotline
TP RIBSEAR
. Intranet
)ik
Employees Annual appraisal
=] FERAZ
. Team building activities
ExaEEE

Industry Associations

Annual and regular meetings
FERTHGRE
Events

BIEY

Media
L] .

Media enquiry
HEEE N
Corporate website

NG Eh

Non-Governmental Organisation (NGO) Partners .

FEBURF AR (SEBUTAARD A 1ERH

Volunteer activities and charitable activities
BELEHREERD

Sponsorships and donations

U SEE

Meetings

=3
@ %

Shareholders/Investors

PR REE

General meetings

BRERAE

Annual and interim reports

FERHBARE
Circulars/announcements/notices/publications
B NEBEHRY)

Investor relations enquiry

REEBERER

Corporate website

NGk

Suppliers/Contractors/Service Providers/ .
Professional Advisors

HrEr, A RS e, E XA

Ongoing direct engagements
SEERSH

TECCFFHR EABXEE
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd) BARAHE @)

Approach to Sustainability (Cont'd) BERUFERENGEE)

B.  Materiality Assessment B. EEZEMiFE
To better understand our stakeholders’ expectation and opinions, RETHREMBNENHERER - RZZ=
we conducted a materiality assessment with the support of —F BMEB BRI TET TEEMNS
an independent consultant in 2022. We first identified a list of e MPIEEBRERBEBLEEPHEREHE
ESG related topics that are potentially material to the business BEBEEEZHMESCHBARBEE - BZPIME
operation of the Group day-to-day. A survey was also conducted RHB K SN EBHE 1 EHETTHIE - DAKETE Prask Bl &Y
for both internal and external stakeholders in prioritising the ESCEEEARAI R HEFNEZTEZMENELR
importance of the identified ESG topics to both the Company froZERIAEHER  ATEEARHERRE
and its stakeholders. Having considered the survey results, peer MER - BME#HPEH10EEKRATFER
benchmarking exercise results and compliance requirements, a total REABHARFEAEEZER - ZZHERAXR
of 10 material sustainability issues have been identified as material SEBESCHE IR KA E B EH Mg g
for the Company. The results serve as a guide to the Group on the 5 - AABREELF N NEGZP I mIES
ESG management and disclosure of this Report. The results were E2WR -

discussed in the Working Group meeting and were endorsed by the

Board.
Aspect Material sustainability issues
Eal EETHERREE

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy conservation

Environmental BEREEBER X i ge

RH Waste management
REEYE IR
Employment
(=2
Employment and Labour Practices Occupational health and safety
RIERETIER BEREELE

Career and personal development

BENEAER

Products/service quality and safety

Em/ MREEERZE

Tenant communication and satisfaction

Operating Practices MEEARHEE

BERER Tenant/visitor privacy and data protection
P& R ERHRE
Anti-corruption
&5

Community Community investment

Fanl HRIRE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We are committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of our investors and other
stakeholders. Our corporate governance practices are in strict compliance
with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the laws of Hong
Kong) and relevant anti-corruption laws. To uphold the highest standard
of corporate governance, the Board and management are dedicated to
ensuring corporate integrity and business ethics in all our business activities.
All management and staff must abide by the standards of operating ethics
and employee conduct set forth in the Group’s Code of Practice (“Code of
Practice”). Our employees should avoid any conflict of interest and ensure
all business decisions are made objectively and in the interests of the
Group. No employee should accept advantages, gifts or entertainment from
our current and future business partners in contravention of the Code of
Practice. Any acts of non-compliance may lead to strict disciplinary or legal

action.

To ensure the accountability and openness of our management, our
employees are encouraged to report any misconduct and malpractices
concerning financial reporting, internal control or other related matters. A
whistleblowing policy is brought into place to provide reporting channels
and guidance for our employees to report any suspected cases, and to
provide reassurance to whistleblowers of the protection that the Group will
extend to them against unfair dismissal or victimisation for any genuine
reports made under this policy. During the reporting year, no reported case

was received by the Audit Committee.

To raise internal awareness on anti-corruption, we organised anti-corruption
training to our directors and staff from time to time. In 2022, Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) seminar on anti-corruption was held
to enhance staff's knowledge and understanding on anti-corruption laws as
well as skills in handling conflict of interest and other integrity challenges.
We provided case studies and practical tips to ensure our employees can

uphold ethical standard under real-life situations.

In 2022, no concluded legal cases relating to corruption were brought
against the Group. For more information about our corporate governance
policies and practices, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report”

of this annual report.
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OPERATIONS

To achieve higher operational efficiency, Chinese Estates actively engages
with employees, tenants, visitors and suppliers to understand their needs
and expectations. The Group makes every effort to provide quality products
and services to our tenants and visitors while ensuring a healthy and safe

environment for our tenants and visitors.

A. Commitment to Product and Service Quality

Chinese Estates strives to offer high-quality products and services
with excellence and creativity. We strictly abide by all relevant laws
and regulations regarding product safety, anti-competition behaviour,
advertising and labelling. We have formulated the Product and
Services Responsibility Policy to communicate our expectations and
requirements on delivering high-quality products and services in our
project development as well as building management businesses.
The policy also demonstrates our commitment on safeguarding the
environment, as well as the safety and health of our tenants and

visitors.

A holistic quality control system and assurance procedures are in
place to manage the quality of products and services. When it comes
to property planning, design and development, where we control the
quality through careful selection and close monitoring our contractors
and suppliers, we also communicate to our contractors and suppliers
about our commitment to the environment such that environmental

impact is considered throughout the properties’ life cycles.

We are committed to safeguarding the health of our tenants and
visitors. In 2022, Windsor House (Public Area of Office Building)
and The ONE (Common Area of Shopping Mall) were awarded the
Indoor Air Quality Certificate (Excellent Class) by the Environmental
Protection Department, while Windsor House (Public Area of
Shopping Mall) and Harcourt House (Public Area on G/F, 3/F to 6/F,
10/F to 21/F and 24/F) obtained the Indoor Air Quality Certificate
(Good Class). In addition, Windsor House was certified with the
standards of the Quality Water Supply Scheme for Buildings —
Fresh Water (Management System) (Blue) by the Water Supplies
Department in 2022. These achievements show our efforts in

providing quality products and services.
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OPERATIONS (contd)

B.

Tenant Communication and Satisfaction

It is essential to improve our customer satisfaction. While we are
building trust with our tenants and visitors, we do not compromise

our professionalisms and business ethics.

Collecting feedback is vital to the enhancement of customer
experience and our business growth. To improve our products and
services, we listen to our tenants and visitors and take every opinion
seriously. We have established multiple communication channels
for our tenants and visitors to provide valuable feedback. In 2022,
we conducted tenant satisfaction surveys in 11 of our managed
properties and achieved an average mark of 75.82/100 in the

overall performance of management service.

In addition, our frontline employees are equipped with adequate
knowledge and skills in handling complaint from tenants and visitors.
We strive to respond to their inquiries and complaints promptly with
follow-up actions to ensure that tenants and visitors are satisfied with
the solutions. In 2022, we received 253 service-related complaints
(2021: 251).

Tenant and Visitor Safety

The safety of tenant and visitor is our top priority. We put ample
resources in emergency response training for our frontline
employees. In 2022, we organised 3 training programs in 3 main
topics to our staff on various aspects, including (1) dealing of
typhoon/rainstorm/flooding warning, prevention measures and
potential insurance claim, (2) occupational safety knowledge and
measures against COVID-19 with visitors registration, and (3) dealing

of enquiry/complaint techniques with related report writing skills.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has adopted various
preventive measures in its properties to safeguard the health of
owners and users. For instance, we intensify disinfection in common
areas, provide hand sanitizers and disinfectants as well as checking
body temperature in most of the entrances of our managed

properties.
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OPERATIONS (contd) EE

D.

Supply Chain Management

To support our diversified operational activities, we engage a diverse
range of contractors and suppliers. We have high expectation
on our suppliers and we require them to have the same level of
business ethics and conduct as we do. Among all contractors and
suppliers, we consider those who support our building and property
management as well as property development to be of higher
environmental and social risks. We have formulated our Supplier
Code of Conduct and require the aforementioned contractors and
suppliers to acknowledge it as part of the contract agreement. The
Supplier Code of Conduct outlines our minimum requirements for
supplier behaviour, covering legal compliance, health and safety,
non-discrimination, labour practices, anti-corruption, employee. We
have a standard tendering process to manage contracts, consultants
and to source building materials for our development projects. We
concern environmental and safety risks throughout the whole value
chain. As such, we have clearly stated our requirements on the
environmental and occupation safety and health compliance on the

tender contract.

The Group adopts a fair and transparent approach to select, monitor
and evaluate our contractors. A contractor assessment tool is in place
to regularly assess the performance of contractors for our building
and property management business. Besides, property managers and
estate officers conduct surprise inspections and regular inspections.
Clarification and explanation are required in case our requirements
are not met by any contractor. Depending on the severity of the
issue, contractor who failed to take corrective actions may result in
termination of the contract. During the reporting period, there were

283 active local contractors.
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OPERATIONS (contd)

E.

Tenant/Visitor Privacy and Data Protection

Chinese Estates is aware of the emerging concern of data privacy
from our tenants and visitors. We will inform our tenants and visitors
the purposes for which their personal data are collected and ensure
that the data collected are not excessive. The Group has established
privacy policy to provide clear instructions and guidelines to our
employees on handling personal data. We also offer data protection
training to all employees in orientation and refresher programmes
to make sure that our policies are effectively communicated to
employees in different positions. The Group strictly complies with
all relevant laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the laws of
Hong Kong). During the reporting year, there was no complaint or

accusation regarding leakage of tenant and visitor data.

Intellectual Property Rights

Chinese Estates respects the intellectual property rights and upholds
all applicable law and regulations. These include but are not limited
to Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the laws of Hong Kong),
Registered Designs Ordinance (Chapter 522 of the laws of Hong
Kong), Patents Ordinance (Chapter 514 of the laws of Hong Kong)
and Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the laws of Hong
Kong). Our Information Technology Department verifies and confirms
all hardware and software purchased or installed are licensed to
ensure our daily operation does not violate any intellectual property

provisions.

ENVIRONMENT

Recognising the environmental impacts arising from our day-to-day

business operations, Chinese Estates makes every effort to mitigate those

impacts so as to minimise the harm to our environment. We have been

taking various measures to reduce the adverse impacts of air emissions,

wastewater discharge, waste generation and natural resource consumption.

Furthermore, we promote the efficient use of resources, such as energy,

water and other raw materials in our daily operations to fulfil our

commitment to the environment
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

Chinese Estates strictly complies with all the relevant provisions of
environmental laws and regulations. These include but are not limited to
the Buildings Energy Efficiency Ordinance (Chapter 610 of the laws of
Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the laws of Hong
Kong) and Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the laws of
Hong Kong). During the reporting year, there were no cases of breach of

related laws and regulations.

To reaffirm our commitment to environmental protection, we actively work
on environmental target setting through a progressive process involving
desktop research, historical data review and peer benchmarking. This
reporting year we have enhanced our targets for our Group 1 portfolio* on
various environmental aspects, including greenhouse gas (GHG) emission,
energy, water and waste. The Working Group monitors the environmental
performance and reviews the progress of the targets. The details of our

targets are as follows:

Environmental Targets for Group 1 Portfolio*
F-EUEASHNREER

EABERBETHAREZEZNMEROEER
E - BREETRRCGEED RS & G (FBED
F6108) - (BYMEEBEA) (BB EOEISAE) R
ORBREHED) (BB EHIEI58F) - RIEF
A EERARAERERAESR -

BEREMERRRENER  RMEBBIRE
R ErRHRESMETEENTEREF &
HmHRIRREIERETLIE - RARSFE - BHME
KR E—HEMEESETREBESR T EMNEE - &
ERERBEWR 2R - KERREEY - TEN
BEZIRRRRWEMEIZERE - MM EZH
B

Reduce indirect GHG emission (Scope 2) intensity by 19.8% by

GHG Emission 2030 against the base year 2019
BE RN RIZ=ZFF RERERBHRN(EED)RELEEF

“E-NFRAD19.8%

Reduce electricity consumption intensity by 13.29% by 2030 against

Ener,
e \};y the base year 2019
H \/ * - — — B 2 N J— M=
- RoT=TEN - RERRELEEF T AERLD1320%
Wat Reduce water consumption intensity by 7.7% by 2030 against the
ater
- base year 2019
IKE R ; .
’ Ro-B=BER - FRKBRELERE =B —NERHDTT%
Maintain paper consumption level below the baseline level, which is
Waste 122,000 kg in 2019
REEY EFRFARROBRK T ERERKFEAT - BIZZE—N5F#122,000

AR
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

Environmental Performance of Group 1 Portfolio*
E-EYELESNRERER
Unit
Bz

Indirect GHG emission (Scope 2) intensity
MR EREFR(BE)BE

Tonnes of carbon dioxide

BiR  HERERBEE

RiR )

equivalent (tCO,e)/square feet

M—S(iREE FHR

Electricity consumption intensity
HEERE FREE FHR
Water consumption intensity
FKETE SFHKSFRR

Paper consumption’ Kilogramme (kg)

ARIROHRE! NI

We take environmental impacts into account in the entire lifecycle of our
business projects, including planning, design, development and operation.
We have formulated the Environmental Policy to guide our employees to
act in an environmentally responsible manner during business operation.
The policy has demonstrated our commitment to assessing and monitoring
the environmental implications of our operations and to integrate
environmental consideration in our property investment, development
projects as well as building and property management businesses. We
also communicate with our consultants, contractors and other stakeholders
about our Environmental Policy to promote sustainability throughout the
value chain. Meanwhile, various measures are in place in different business
units to manage our environmental impacts. At self-owned or managed
sites, we adopt green initiatives and promote environmental awareness. In
our offices, we strive to create a green workplace for our employees.

A. Energy and Carbon Management
Buildings contribute to 90% of the city’s electricity consumption

and 60%?%
and manager, Chinese Estates is obliged to play our part to reduce

of the city's carbon footprint”. As a property developer

electricity and energy consumption across our portfolio. In this
regard, we implement energy-saving initiatives to better manage
our use of energy. For instance, we conduct regular energy audit at
the properties that we manage, including Windsor House, Harcourt
House and Wanchai Computer Centre, to analyse their energy
consumption, and identify opportunities to reduce energy usage and
carbon footprint.

A Carbon Neutral@HK, Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan 2050, “Chapter
4 : Decarbonisation Strategies * Targets * Actions”, https://www.
climateready.gov.hk/files/pdf/CAP2050_booklet_en.pdf (2021)

Gigajoule (GJ)/square feet

Cubic metre (m?)/square feet

2022 2019
0.01 0.01
0.06 0.07
0.07 0.08

89,000 122,000
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENT (contd)

A.

Energy and Carbon Management (Cont'd)

To demonstrate our commitment to reducing energy usage,
we support the Charter on External Lightings launched by the
Environment and Ecology Bureau. We are committed to minimising
the light nuisance and energy wastage by switching off unnecessary
outdoor lighting at night. In 2022, The ONE, Windsor House and
Wanchai Computer Centre were honoured with the Platinum Award,
while Excelsior Plaza and Causeway Place were honoured with the
Gold Award. Besides, we actively engaged in green events organised
by NGOs, such as the Earth Hour by World Wide Fund (WWF) in
March 2022 and the No Air Con Night by Green Sense in October

2022, to reduce energy consumption.

To create an environmentally friendly atmosphere and encourage
green behaviour at our workplace, the Group appoints the Green
Office Team to formulate and implement energy conservation
strategies at offices. The Green Office Team adopts various measures
to enhance the employees’ awareness of energy-saving. For example,
stickers are posted next to light switches and electronic appliances
to remind employees to turn off idle electronic appliances and lights.
Reminder emails are also sent out to communicate these initiatives
to our employees. To ensure the green office initiatives are carried
out effectively, the Green Office Team will review all initiatives twice

a year.

Climate Change

In the context of emerging climate change, extreme weather is
more likely to pose greater challenges among all industries and
our business operations. As an environmentally responsible and
sustainable company with a long-term vision, we continue to be
proactive in strengthening our climate resilience and adaptation
in response to the potential climate risks. Last year, we conducted
preliminary research to prioritise climate-related risks among our
operation locations. This year, we further extended the climate-
related disclosure by engaging an independent consultancy firm to
conduct an in-depth climate risk assessment on our major business
operations in Hong Kong to determine the risk level of different

physical risks.

88  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BiR  dHERERBEE

BER B Bk E 1 (48)

RBETBRMERRERERANER - KM H
RIBREERBHEITH(PINENRLNE) o FM
1A BRARIE T U B K P INE S LU D
%%&%ﬁﬁ%o%:%::ivﬂmOM»
Kﬁ&/ﬁ%wm%%%ﬁ%mﬁﬁy """""
ﬁﬁ"‘A%Fﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé}”%‘ i 25 A AR [ 2 48] o
Hh ﬁﬁﬁﬁ,A#ﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁ@é
N T —F-fRttRAARESE
(WWR)E B[ HER— N R =T = —F+
AHRRREEIHNELRRE]  LURDEER
SHFE o

BEBERBERSEAFALMRIIESMEBFZETT

B AEEZREHEHAE/NEBITE RATTH
NEMERE o FEHQAE/ AT REE
NigoeE B HETRE B - BOIME - HME
B RERZU IRR  REEEEEERD
BREBAE - BRI TREHAMEES
EZERE - BENAE ) ETTFEHMEREE

EITRRIER - BRGERAEREREE

EFEAESCANER T  MmAREEITE
ERBMEEBBEEBKERKE - FRER
5a8 EEREPESNASERRAR &K
PIAE 4B 18 1% = B hn ok 3 M9 B0 RUR B4 e 4 Jod
JERE N - S BEERRIRREE - 2F - M
EATTHZHRE - AERMEE B Rl
REMERNEBERT - 5F  HABBIES
BUHARNT  HBRMAREENEEEBEE
EITRARRIR R - & *bﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%*ﬁ
(= B AR5 - DAEETE T A & 8 & b i [ B ok



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR3E - HERERHKES

ENVIRONMENT (contd)

B.

Climate Change (Cont'd)

From the climate risk assessment, we observed that flooding and
extreme wind or typhoon are the most relevant climate hazards
to our operations. To mitigate and minimise the operational
and financial impacts of climate risks, we will implement various

countermeasures for the respective physical risks.

Extreme precipitation and sea level rise may lead to an increase
in the occurrence of flooding, which may result in widespread
devastation to our properties located near the coastal area or rivers,
increasing the operational expenditure for repair and maintenance.
To prevent massive damage to our business operations, we will
implement a range of mitigation measures. For example, we will
conduct a flood risk assessment and avoid property development in
a flood zone; consider implementing property-level flood protection
strategies, including water barriers, flood resistant building materials;
flood insurance, emergency plans in response to flood events; and

set up a warning system.

As the intensity and frequency of extreme wind events increases,
extreme wind or typhoon has also been considered as another
relevant physical risk. Especially, windows or glass curtain walls are
susceptible to shattering due to strong wind, disrupting business
operations and threatening the physical safety of any person. As a
responsible company, we ensure all of our buildings are structurally
safe under any circumstances, including extreme weather conditions.
To enhance the overall resilience of our properties against extreme
wind or typhoon exacerbated by climate change, we will conduct
regular facade inspection and maintenance, strengthen the existing
wind resilience measures, and adopt wind-resistant building designs

for properties.

Waste Management

The Group is committed to divert waste from landfill sites. As
such, we implement different waste management initiatives in
the properties and offices we own or manage to minimise waste
generation. We actively promote reusing and recycling to maximise
the lifetime of useful materials. The Group also engage conscientious
recycling contractors to collect and process the recyclable materials

responsibly.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

C.

Waste Management (Cont'd)

At our managed properties, we encourage our tenants and residents
to practise waste separation at source. We have placed multiple
recycling bins in the properties under our management, such as The
ONE and Windsor House. In 2022, The ONE and Windsor House
participated in Greeners Action’s “Beverage Cartons Clean Recycling
Scheme”, aiming at raising public awareness on Tetrapak recycling,
promoting clean recycling method of Tetrapak, and enhancing the
public on Tetrapak recycling habit.

To reduce food waste, the Group has been collaborating with our
business partners and suppliers to initiate a food waste reduction
programme. Our composter at The ONE composts coffee grounds
and used tea leaves collected from catering tenants of The ONE and
Windsor House. The compost is used in the gardens of our managed
properties and our organic farm in Fanling.

At our offices, waste reduction initiatives are also in place to create
an environmentally friendly working environment and cultivate green
minds. We establish e-communication channels to substitute the
use of paper to promote a paperless working environment. Not only
can we minimise paper wastage at the source, but also increase the
efficiency in our daily communication within and outside the Group.

To encourage recycling at our offices, not only do we set up
collection points for paper recycling, but we also place boxes around
the offices to collect reusable stationaries, such as file folders, single-
side-used paper and pens. Used printer cartridges are returned
to suppliers. Retired but functional electronic appliances, such as
computers, printers and fax machines, are donated to NGOs to
support those in need.

Use of Resources

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to
using resources efficiently and promoting recycling in our community.
Energy and water are significant parts of natural resources
consumption in our business activities. To manage our impacts on
energy and water, we adopt different measures to promote the
effective use of energy, water, and other raw materials. For examples,
we use carpets that are produced from recycled materials in a
number of our commercial properties and conserve the use of water
by installing dual flush toilets in some of the properties we own or
manage.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IRi% -

ENVIRONMENT (contd)

D.

Use of Resources (Cont'd)

The environmental metrics for 2021 and 2022 is tabulated below:

Energy consumption
B

Electricity

EW

Towngas
BE
Energy consumption intensity

REREREE

Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBIEN

Scope 1 - Direct emission®

BEN - BRER

Scope 2 - Indirect emission

BE2 - BRI

Greenhouse gas emissions intensity
REREBHNER

Non-hazardous waste
Waste collected
Tl BEEY

Paper consumption
AR

Paper Recycled

Bl
Metal/Aluminium Recycled
£8 /e

Plastic Recycled

BRE R

Food waste recycled

EE R

Water consumption
kg

Water

X

Water consumption intensity
BKERE

Unit

B

Kilowatt Hour (kwh)
TRE

GJ

ThEE

GJ

ThEE

GJ/HK$ million revenue

TAEE/BEETRA

tCOLe

B_alhEe

tCOe

M_alREe

tCO,e/HK$ million revenue

M-&EltiEe
BERTHA

Litres (L)
7+
Tonnes
7

kg
NI
kg
NI
kg
NI
kg
N

L

v

m3

Ak

m3/HK$ million revenue
UHK/BEBTRA

Group 1
portfolio*
-8
UES

30,560,644

110,018

18,107

21,735,540
89,279
6,025

568

704

608

127,282

RiR )

D.

BREM
e

=

2022
Group 2
portfolio*
|
VEZE

5,459,243
19,653
14

91

2,471

14

9,009,780
3,486

216

N/A
TER

42,715

124

(43
NC=V,

FR-T - - EHEEEENT

Projects’

ER?

103,603

373

487

14

37,467°
188
0
0
0

N/A
TER

1,670

— = — —

-

2021
Group 1 Group 2
portfolio* portfolio*
F-8 £-8
ES o EL
32,060,131 5,568,953
115,416 20,048
0 4
104
0 0
18,895 2,555
17
19,991,958 8,233,800
118,969 3,156
7918 204
603 0
728 0
2,084 N/A
TEH
145,932 47217
149
FEHR  FEAEBEE
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ENVIRONMENT (Contd) RiR )

*

Notes to reporting boundary for environmental metrics

Group 1 portfolio refers to properties that are owned by Chinese Estates,
and properties owned by Chinese Estates’ substantial shareholder which
Chinese Estates is managing as an agent. We consider Group 1 to be
remained in our portfolio for a long period of time. Group 1 portfolio
includes: Chinese Estates’ headquarters, The ONE, Silvercord, Windsor
House, Causeway Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet), Wanchai
Computer Centre and Harcourt House.

Group 2 portfolio refers to properties that are currently not owned by
Chinese Estates, but the owners have appointed a subsidiary of Chinese
Estates to be the property manager (other than those covered in Group 1
portfolio). For electricity and water consumption, we only cover areas that
we have control. General waste collected refer to those collected from
the entire property. Group 2 portfolio includes: Chic Castle, Evergreen
Garden, i-home, Indihome, Manhattan Avenue, Miami Crescent, MOD
595, One South Lane, One WanChai, Sunrise Villa, The Bellevue Place
and York Place.

Paper consumption is round up to the nearest thousand for the
presentation here. For details, please refer to the paragraph “Use of
Resources” in this section.

This reporting year, we expanded our reporting scope to include our
projects. Projects refer to development, redevelopment and other
ongoing construction projects that are owned by Chinese Estates. Projects
in the reporting year include: “Nos. 14—18 Ma Kok Street, Tsuen Wan".

We have reviewed and updated the calculation methodology according
to the Guide. Scope 1 — direct emission and greenhouse gas emissions

intensity has been restated accordingly.

Waste collected for projects include construction waste.
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EMPLOYMENT

Employees play a critical role in the success of the Group. Chinese Estates
endeavours to create an equal, healthy and inclusive workplace for our
employees to grow together with the Group. Our Workplace Employment
Policy outlines the guidance to prohibit any discrimination and harassment,
offering healthy and safe workplaces, as well as provide comprehensive
trainings and professional development to employees. The Policy is
reviewed regularly by the management to ensure the rights of employees
within the company are protected. With dignity and respect, we recognise
employees from diverse backgrounds, and we comply with the applicable
laws and regulations including the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57
of the laws of Hong Kong). Chinese Estates strictly prohibits the use of
child and forced labour in all our business activities. Stringent background
check will be conducted on applicants during the hiring process to avoid
accidental recruitment of child and forced labour. In case of breach, we will

immediately terminate the concerned employment relationship.

A. People

Equal Opportunities

The Group adheres to providing employees with a pleasant and
harmonious working environment that can improve productivity
and staff morale. Our employees are required to comply with the
guideline of equal opportunities specified in the Code of Conduct
and to treat everyone with respect and dignity. We adhere to the
non-discrimination policy during the recruitment process. Applicants
are assessed based on their skill, ability and working experience
regardless of gender, age, ethnicity, religion, race, disability, marital or
family status, or any other characteristics protected by law. We assure
that our recruitment process remains fair and competitive and we
provide equal opportunities to employees in making all employment

decisions by us.

Remuneration

To attract and retain talent, we provide employees with a fair
and competitive remuneration package. Appraisal is conducted
annually by department heads. Salaries are reviewed based on the
performance and experience of the employees. Our promotion
policies are performance-based. Employees are rewarded with a
year-end discretionary bonus based on market conditions when
certain individual performance levels are met. Our remuneration
packages and policies are reviewed regularly to assure that
employees are assessed and rewarded based on their capabilities,

responsibilities and performance.
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EMPLOYMENT (Contd) R
A.  People (Cont'd) A. EE®HE)
Workforce Composition 1E S A

’( Total Number of Workforce
EESHE

2022 2021

520 l;l\ogkof people 5 ’I 2 T\ogzof people

’( Total Number of Workforce by Employment Category
RERERZ S NEERAH

Senior Manager or Above Manager or Assistant Manager Senior Supervisor or Below
EAREER b #e3R o BB AR BREERUT
2022 2022 2022
‘ 2 3 l)l\ogiof people 4 4 T\ngm people . 4 5 3 T\ogof people
2021 2021 N 2021
2 4 &og(of people X 43 iogof people ) 4 45 iogof people

’( Total Number of Workforce by Gender

RERIE D NIEERE
Male Female
B o8
2022 2022
= 3 0 5 iog(of people 2 1 5 ’:‘\Oggym people
2021 2021
2 9 rI T\ogyof people 2 2 »I D‘\OgyOf people

== Total Number of Workforce by Age Group
RERARNEDNESEE

59 63
226 ),

2022 2021

No. of people No. of people

m <30 years old
305R AR

30-50 years old
M 3055505%

AB

>50 years old
B 5ok
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EMPLOYMENT (contd) EBRE®
A.  People (Cont'd) A. EE®HE)
Workforce Composition (Cont'd) 1ESHARK ()

== Total Number of Workforce by Employment Type
REBELISNESEH

Full-time Part-time

5 FRE

2022 2022
4 6 7 l)l\ogkof people 5 3 l)l\og(of people
2021 2021

4 6 9 l)l\o%(of people 4 3 l)l\ogof people

x Total Employee Turnover Rate

RS RS
fola | - -
2\ l 26.6% 29.4%

== Employee Turnover Rate by Gender
RERB D HEERKE

Male Female

S prg i3
2022 2022
r - 17.8% r 38.5%
2021 2021
l 29.0% 30.0%

== Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group
RERAREDNEERAE

2022 80.3%
2021
2022
2021
2022
2021
. <30 years old . 30-50 years old . >50 years old
30BRA T 3052 505% 50574 £
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EMPLOYMENT (contd)
A. People (Contd)

Workforce Composition (Cont'd)

‘\ Employee Turnover Rate by Geographical Region
RiIBN BRI D NEERAE

7 AP
PN

»

B. Occupational Health and Safety

A. EE(HE)
18 54 5 (42)
Hong Kong
BB
2022 2021

26.6%

Chinese Estates strives to provide a safe and health workplace

by managing the inherent risks in our operations. We comply

with all applicable laws and regulations including the Employees’

Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the laws of Hong Kong),
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of

the laws of Hong Kong) and relevant safety practices stipulated in

Construction Sites (Safety) Regulations (Chapter 591 of the laws of

Hong Kong).

To ensure the health and safety of our building management

front-line employees, regular and surprise safety inspections

are

conducted. Property managers and estate officers are required to

report any injuries at work, including our employees and contractors

and to submit an incident report to the Human Resources

Department for record. We also provide annual occupational health

and safety training on personal protective equipment, fire control,

loading and unloading, manual handling operations and confined

space management. Besides, we offered some of our training

workshops through online self-paced learning to safeguard our

employees’ safety under the COVID-19 pandemic. Employees are

also required to review occupational health and safety-related video

clips on a regular basis.

Under the pandemic situation in 2022, government-required

preventive measures are adopted. Apart from introducing Employee

Guidelines on prevention of COVID-19, we also distributed surgical

masks and hand sanitizers to our employees to protect them.

In 2022, there were 4 confirmed injury incidents. 11 lost days due

to work injury or occupational diseases was recorded. No workplace

fatalities for our employees was recorded in the past three years.
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EMPLOYMENT (contd)

C.

Career and Personal Development

To improve service quality and maintain the competitiveness of
our employees, we provide trainings to employees in delivering
exceptional services to tenants and visitors and to cope with business
needs. In addition, we encourage employees to pursue further

education for self-enhancement or career development.

New Hire Orientation is provided to new hires so as to get familiar
with our corporate culture and understand their duties and skills
required for their roles. On-the-job training is provided to enhance
employees’ job-related techniques and consolidate industry

knowledge.

Our Educational and Training Sponsorship Scheme supports
employees’ continuing education and skills training. Employees
enrolled in qualified courses with satisfactory performance are eligible
to apply for the sponsorship with reimbursement up to 100% of
the tuition fee. These include higher education courses relevant to
employees’ job duties organised by local educational institutions. The
external training programmes enable employees to enhance their
professionalism and maximise their potential, as well as become

well-rounded in their careers within the Group.

In alignment between our business needs and interest of our
employees, we regularly offer training that is tailored to individuals
and industry-specific. Training topics consists of the integral of various
business segments to equip employees with the necessary skills and
knowledge to manage the complex business scenario. In 2022, we
organised trainings and seminars on property management and data

privacy.

Building and property management is one of the key business
segments which highly depends on specialised knowledge and
practical skills that goes beyond the professional qualification.
Therefore, we regularly offer specialised trainings under various
circumstances, including topics ranging from occupational health and
safety to customer service. Apart from receiving specific professional
training, office employees should abide by the annual training plan
while front-line employees would attend regular on-site trainings with

tracked records of attendance.
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EMPLOYMENT (Contd) 316
C.  Career and Personal Development (Cont'd) C BEEBAZE®E
Development and training data of Building Management Department NTAREEYEEELN T __FR_-F
of the Group in 2022 and 2021 are as follows: Z—FR R RIEIEUER
Unit
kK12 2022 2021

Percentage of Employees Received Training by Gender

BEMRBSNZIRET DL

Male 1% % 7.2 2.8
Female %z % 3.7 4.1

Percentage of Employees Received Training by Employment Category

ZEREMNEINZIEETIL

Senior Manager or Above 1= # AL I2 sk LA % 0.0 0.0
Manager or Assistant Manager 4% % sk B) I 45 12 % 0.0 2.3
Senior Supervisor or Below = &% EE s AT % 6.6 3.6

Average Training Hours Per Trained Employee by Gender

BMRE2NEEZIEE T IZIEGE

Male F 1% Hours 7|\ 2.0 2.0
Female % 1% Hours /JNEF 2.0 1.9

Average Training Hours Per Trained Employee by Employment Category

ZREERANESNEEZIEEFIZIEFE

Senior Manager or Above = RSB 8k LA £ Hours /JNEs 0.0 0.0
Manager or Assistant Manager A€ 3% sk B) 12 45 38 Hours /K 0.0 2.0
Senior Supervisor or Below i &R EE AT Hours /J\& 2.0 1.9
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COMMUNITY

Chinese Estates is dedicated to creating values for society while striving for
company growth. We are keen to engage in various charitable activities,
donation and sponsorship events to show our love and care to the
society. Our Community Investment Policy demonstrates our commitment
to making a positive social impact through integrating the community
development plan with business operations. Besides, the Policy summarise
the focus areas for our community programmes, namely environmental
protection and conservation and youth and children development. We
strive to nurture a culture of social responsibility through partnership with
NGOs in organising community activities to promote a caring culture in the
society. Employees are welcomed to join the Chinese Estates Volunteer
Team to interact with people from different sectors of the community
and help the people in need. We believe that the business — community
partnership will provide long-term benefits to the society and foster a

friendly and caring culture in the company.

We also encourage our employees to give back to the society by joining
different volunteer and charitable activities. During the reporting year,
we participated in 5 charitable activities, contributing to a total of 74

volunteering hours.

List of highlighted charitable activities we have participated as follows:

Organisation

i

Ocean Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong
BEEEFAEREESD

World Vision

HREHE

The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society Kowloon
NEgE=

RNE =

With the consideration beyond financial return, Chinese Estates integrates
community investment into business operation. We leverage our resources
to support the local community by offering shopping mall spaces that are
under our management to different organisations for hosting exhibitions,

charity sales and publicity events.
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Charitable Activities
ZETE

Run for Survival 2022

[ 4 BB (R1EE2022]

Skip-A-Meal 2022

[ % —22022]

Lok Sin Tong Territory-Wide Flag Day 2022

[NELEE 2B EEH2022]
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REASONS FOR NOT REPORTING CERTAIN
“COMPLY OR EXPLAIN" PROVISIONS OF THE

AMmIEsIhETITE
R AFEH 2 R EH

FRL AR

GUIDE

“Comply or explain” Provisions

EX-E

AR R X

Reasons
RHA

A. Environmental
A RE

Aspect Al: Emissions

EBEAT : By

Key Performance
Indicator (“KPI")

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BepiE s R ARRA BE R BUE -

During the reporting period, there was no significant

emission of NOx, SOx and other pollutants in our

Al operations.

MASERER RBERR - RMELESTEASHRALL
(TEARERIERD W A REMITEY
Al

KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, During the reporting period, there was no significant

MR EMIEIRALS

where appropriate, intensity.
FESEEREEDAE CAETE) k(ER) =
B o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2 : ERER

KPI A2.4
FABAAIEIRA2 4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

g SKEUE A 7KOR £ A A E A R - LA PRETSZ
B RK s B R R R ER S L B R ERER A A

production of hazardous waste in our operations.
RIERAN - RMEEERTEEERNEREEF
L7/

During the reporting period, there was no issue in
sourcing water for our operations.

RSB - RIPIE 2 8 S I SKEKIR 75 H)
8 o

KPI A2.5
RS A IR TZA2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products

(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.

SR T A B MR B 8 (CANERT &) I (403
R)EBEEBMGE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EHEB6 : EmEE

KPI B6.1
RS4RI 1RB6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
EERCDEXREMERPAR T RBERIBHMA
B GRS A
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The issue of packaging materials is considered not

significant in our operations.

BEMBHRMHEEMSIETEK

During the reporting year, no products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
RBEFA > TEESEXNEEZXEMATE LERE
MR ZE = Y o
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HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 109 to 265, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,

were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Notes 19 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements

The management has estimated the
fair value of the Group's investment
properties to be approximately
HK$13,369,124,000 as at
31 December 2022 with a net gain on
fair value changes for the year
ended 31 December 2022
recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income of approximately
HK$528,481,000. Independent
external valuations were
obtained in respect of all of the
portfolio of the Group, and also
of the investment properties
held by the associates of the
Group, in order to support the

management's estimates.

The valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that
require significant management
judgment including, but not
limited to, reversionary yield
and rental income from future
reversion leases in light of

current market conditions.

Our procedures in relation to management's
valuation of investment properties

included, but were not limited to:

— evaluating the independent external
valuers' competence, capabilities
and objectivity;

— assessing the valuation
methodologies used and the
reasonableness of the key
assumptions and parameters based
on our knowledge of the property
industry and using our auditors’

valuation experts; and

— checking, on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input

data used.

We found the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Fair value measurement on financial assets

Refer to Notes 5(c), 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2022, the Group
held unlisted bond, suspended
trading listed equity securities,
unlisted equity securities (including
limited partnership) and structured
product with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$1,396,000,
HK$115,438,000, HK$525,780,000
and HK$4,005,000 respectively.
These financial instruments
do not have a quoted market
price in an active market (the
“Unquoted Investments”). They
were classified as financial
assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive
income or financial assets
measured at fair value through
profit or loss and measured at

fair value.

Our procedures in relation to the fair
value measurement of the Group's
portfolio of the Unquoted Investments

included, but were not limited to:

— enquiring the management and
assessing the methodologies
used in fair value measurement
and the appropriateness of the
key assumptions and parameters
based on our knowledge of the
investment and using our auditors’

valuation experts;

— enquiring the management about
the assumptions around the
sustainability of earnings based
on the plans of the investee
companies and whether those

were achievable;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Fair value measurement on financial assets (Cont'd)

Refer to Notes 5(c), 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

(Cont'd)

The valuation of the Unquoted
Investments is complex and
requires the application of
significant judgment by the

management.

The Unguoted Investments are
valued on a basis considered
the most appropriate by the
management and independent
external valuers, depending on
the nature of the underlying
business which has been

invested in.

Our procedures in relation to the fair

value measurement of the Group's

portfolio of the Unquoted Investments

included, but were not limited to:
(Cont'd)

obtaining management information
including budgets and forecasts
from the portfolio companies
being valued and using these to
corroborate the key inputs in the

valuation model;

checking, on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input
data used such as comparing key
underlying financial data inputs
to external sources and investee
companies’ audited financial
statements and management

information as applicable;

obtaining market second hand
prices independently and
comparing them to the valuation

model;

evaluating the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities
and objectivity; and

checking the arithmetical accuracy

on the valuation model.

We considered the management's

fair value measurement on financial

assets were supported by the available

evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL FHRAZEMER
REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other ZEEAHHM{EEAE - HMEEEE H£E—

information comprises all the information included in the Group's 2022 Z_=_HFFRAZFMAREEL ' ETEERA VKR
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements & &R & & 2 & HAMRE (HMEED) °

and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the EEHLAUBBREIBEEL T REEMER - &

Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion S FAEHZEHMEEBEXRTWE RN ZRELE
thereon. o

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, #&BEHGRAMBHRER T BE2EAXHH
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, EHEMEE @ FUBREFT - ZEEMEERTHLE
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the A BHREXESEEFBIET TR ZIBRAEFHEE

consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit ~ KKK FFEEAERBIM 2B - EREBE
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we EﬁﬂﬁZIf’E CHESRREMESHRERNER

have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the [Rill - ZEFEREZEE - Y HTEMES * BE
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to j’EﬁfﬂﬁJﬁ% °

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS EENRBEREEERAEMBRE

AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE BARECEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated ZEEEBEREBTACTMACET 2B BT B
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with &8N ZBEBAFKHIZ EEEREFEEZT R
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong A Fi3 R 2 4R A M IERE - ESHAUHRBAFE
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors i*/—\ﬁﬁ‘xi&izfﬁﬁ'%xﬁﬁdﬂ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁkﬁa EIE-ES
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated — E K8 3R F il BT 55 B9 RSP ES 4% °

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are  fEREIRA T HHAR -  ERXABSTH E£E
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, JFELE 266 - WAEMABR THERFELSE
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the B2 EH - LUWRFBAFECEHSTEN - BRIE
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to  EFAER BEEBEELRFIEL  SAIEEM
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative ~ B ZBNRFE -

but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial BEZZECABELE AE£ECHHEHREBRE -

reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, as amended, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also: (Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: PO6417

Hong Kong, 10 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEHEWREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BHZE =T - —F+-A=+—HILFE

Revenue
Cost of goods and services provided

Gross profit

Other income

Investment expenses, net

Administrative expenses

Gain on disposals of equipment, net

Fair value changes on investment properties

Finance costs

Other gains and losses

Share of results of investments accounted for
using the equity method

Profit (loss) before tax
Income tax expense

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive expenses
Items that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss

Gains and losses on investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Share of other comprehensive expenses
of investments accounted for using
the equity method

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive income
of investments accounted for using
the equity method

Other comprehensive expenses for the year
(net of tax)

WA
RHEmERE 2 KA

EH

HA A

BREFRXFER

TR

HEREZ WaFER
BREMEZ A HEE
s E M
Hiplas M E1R
BEARREARKREZ
ES

B B B A (B 18)
PSR

AE RN (ER)

Ht 2%

TEENTHEREZ

EH

IR ELAD B T W R DA S R
NP EFEZRATRKE
Z Moz K 518
BLARREARKAEZ
Hitb 2

BEIEEN T BEEREZ
EE
BONEBFELZ
P E R
BEAEREARKEZ
Hith 2w e

AEEHMEE
(BRBi1R)

Total comprehensive expenses for the year NEEZHE X HELE

Notes

B eE

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
1,434,990 1,299,826
(58,261) (282,458)
1,376,729 1,017,368
18,020 63,211
(291,127) (2,628,876)
(358,048) (344,495)
352 256
528,481 (1,376,616)
(133,121) (104,476)
(7.522) (50)
45,381 (106,682)
1,179,145 (3,480,360)
(26,825) (33,188)
1,152,320 (3,513,548)
(1,056,433) (10,842,215)
(160) (60)
(1,056,593) (10,842,275)
(499,395) (20,454)
= 2,328
(499,395) (18,126)
(1,555,988) (10,860,401)
(403,668) (14,373,949)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings (loss) per share (HK$)
Basic and diluted

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

B 2S5 SR (B 1R) ¢

ZN/NSIE7 2PN
FEIERR M

BEAFER2E(EH)
W4 e
RABHEE A
FEERR =

BEREF (HR) (Br)
ERREE
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mETHERHERE

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHERT FET
1,152,235 (3,515,305)
85 1,757
1,152,320 (3,513,548)
(403,753) (14,375,706)
85 1,757
(403,668) (14,373,949)
18
0.604 (1.843)
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Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for
using the equity method

Advances to associates

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Advance to an investee company

Deferred tax assets

Pledged deposits

Deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Stock of properties

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Inventories

Debtors, deposits, other receivables and
prepayments

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Tax recoverable

Pledged deposits

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a MR R

As at 31 December 2022 RZZE - —_F+=-_A=+—H

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & FExT FAT
FREBEE
wEME 19 13,369,124 13,292,161
M - BB &R 20 133,944 184,996
FRAEEE 21(a) 91,934 59,742
mEE 22 - -
AiEEEAR 2B E
23 1,840,959 2,095,096
BB A RIRUE 24 42,745 50,060
BBEEARBRATE
AECEREE 25 87,635 156,633
BB 2 E U A R
ATEFEZEREE 26 525,780 1,527,466
BN —EBEZIREQRIRIEA 27 101,905 100,737
REHEERE 28 834 3,920
EHRFR 29(a) 76,697 4,308
Ze RIERHIE 30 84,081 34,762
16,355,638 17,509,881
REEE
MEFE 3] 23,316 23,316
BBERA R A TE
ATECEREE 25 562,294 600,084
378 38 LAt 2 TE i DA S Bk
ATEFEZERMEE 26 109,766 364,582
ra 32 4,642 3,514
FEUERTE « 2 - EEIR
ARIE R IEFFRIE 30 186,468 260,738
B FEHRZ SEERFR 29(b) 41,007 69,422
AT E B R 13,886 12,457
HIRFR 29(a) 71,128 273,202
TR - RITEBRRRS 29(c) 2,038,768 2,479,874
3,051,275 4,087,189
FIRISIERE 2 BE 33 27,602 -
3,078,877 4,087,189
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R& BF iR R 3k

As at 31 December 2022 RZZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
gz FET FAT
Current liabilities i =R
Creditors and accruals JE < BR T8 K FE T 3R0R 34 245,191 201,896
Securities trading and margin payable ENESFRXSERBRRES 9,809 12,163
Deposits and receipts in advance Ze RIBIGRIE 84,595 172,660
Lease liabilities HE&E 21(b) 35,332 50,673
Tax liabilities HIEAE 4,022 3,590
Borrowings BE 35 2,681,151 3,642,977
3,060,100 4,083,959
Net current assets RBEEFE 18,777 3,230
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERABAR 16,374,415 17,513,111
Equity attributable to owners of AAREE ABMLERAER
the Company
Share capital [N 36 190,762 190,762
Financial assets measured at fair value 37 308 B ) 2 T MR DA S Bk
through other comprehensive income ANPEAEZERMEELZ
reserve s (1,743,622) (1,582,049)
Contribution reserve B 206,627 206,627
Statutory reserve VETE 748 668
Special reserve R 2,499,685 2,499,685
Capital redemption reserve & A [0l {5 s 138,062 138,062
Translation reserve b 5 4 (834,931) (335,536)
Retained profits REE & A 13,522,203 13,257,387
13,979,534 14,375,606
Non-controlling interests FERER 23,309 23,224
Total equity PR R 4 %E 14,002,843 14,398,830
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R& BF ik R 3k

As at 31 December 2022 R —E - —F+_-_A=+—H
2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M THET FHET

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings BE 35 2,205,781 1,812,537
Amounts due to associates NN /NEI E S| 37 34,579 302,344
Amounts due to investee companies REBEIHENRFA 37 14,648 931,848
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders R & FEFERR AR R K IB 37 275 275
Lease liabilities HEAE 21(b) 53,244 9,037
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRBEEE 28 63,045 58,240
2,371,572 3,114,281
16,374,415 17,513,111

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 10 March B E E g %

TR =F= H THALERRET

2023 and signed on its behalf by: CWHTIEEREEETGEE
Chan, Hoi-wan BR e Lam, Kwong-wai MBS
Director EF Director EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — #R& BB HREM T 4R A M IEHREN —

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERETEZEFHR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BIZE—E - —F+-_A=+—BILFE

At 1 January 2021

(Loss) profit for the year
CGains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— Listed equity investment
— Unlisted investments
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive (expenses) income of

investments accounted for using the equity method

Total comprehensive (expenses) income for the year

Transfer of reserve upon disposal/derecognition of
the investments in equity instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income

Final dividend for 2020 paid

Unclaimed dividends forfeited (note (v))

At 31 December 2021

REE (B518) &M
BAAMEERENRMR
RYEFEZRATAREZ
Yoz A

- EIRARE

- FETRE
BORBRELZEREE
BENESEARREZ

A 2w ) e

AEERE () R ag
REE/BURRRBBE L2 AR
ARBRAFEFEZBATARER
BRRE
ENZZ-ZERHRE
RIAR B R (R (W)

RZZEZ—F+ZA=1+—H
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Attributable to owners of the Company

FAAERARMERAFES

Share

capital

LEN
HK$'000
T

190,762

Financial assets
measured

at fair value
through other
comprehensive Contribution
income reserve
BREMEZEKE
NRMATEE
ZEREREZRE
HK$'000

TR

(note (i)
iEA0)

reserve

TERE
HK$'000
TET
(note (ii))
GEA0)

65,461 206,627

(10,921,850) -
79,635 -

(60)

(10,842,275) -

9,194,765 -

190,762

(1,582,049) 206,627




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #HEeRAERES B R
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREANEERA#ER
Capital Non-
Statutory Special redemption Translation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EERE Rl E EXRERE ER REBR k] FERER RARRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TAET TAET TET TEL TET TET
(note (iii)) (note (iv))
(P& i) (FEE (v))
668 2,499,685 138,062 (317,410) 25,974,928 28,758,783 21,467 28,780,250
- - - - (3,515,305) (3,515,305) 1,757 (3,513,548)
- - - - - (10921,850) - (10921,850)
- - - - - 79,635 - 79,635
- - - (20,454) - (20,454) - (20,454)
- - - 2,328 - 2,268 - 2,268
- - - (18,126) (3515305)  (14,375706) 1,757 (14,373,949)
- - - - (9,194,765) - - -
- - - - (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
- - - - 11,605 11,605 - 11,605
668 2,499,685 138,062 (335,536) 13,257,387 14,375,606 23,224 14,398,830
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

At 1 January 2022

Profit for the year
(Gains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— Listed equity investment
— Unlisted investments
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive expenses of

investments accounted for using the equity method

Total comprehensive (expenses) income for the year

Transfer of reserve upon disposal of the investment
in an equity instrument measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

PRC statutory reserve

Unclaimed dividends forfeited (note (v))

At 31 December 2022

116 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

RWZZ-—#—-HA—H

ARE A
BAAMEERENRR
RYEFEBZRATAREZ
Yoz A

- EIRARE

- FETRE
BORBRELZEREE
BENESEARREZ
Ep2Es

AEERE () R aE

RHE-BRBEMZEREARR
ATEHEZRATARERER
feh

PEIETERRE

R BERZ R (B RE (V)

R-E--f+=-A=+-H

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

RERTERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAAERARMERFES

Financial assets
measured

at fair value

through other

Share comprehensive
income reserve
BRHEMEZEKE
NRMATEE
BE 2eREEZHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
(note (1))

iEA0)

capital

190,762 (1,582,049)

Contribution

reserve

TERE
HK$'000
TET
(note (ii))
GEA0)

206,627

- (90,766)
- (965,667)

- (160)

- (1,056,593)

= 895,020

190,762 (1,743,622)

206,627




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #HEeRAERES B R
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAEERARER
Capital Non-
Statutory Special redemption Translation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EERE KRR E BEXRERE ER REBR k] FERER RARRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TEL TEL TET TET TEL TET
(note (iii)) (note (iv))
(P& i) (FEE (v))
668 2,499,685 138,062 (335,536) 13,257,387 14,375,606 23,224 14,398,830
- - - - 1,152,235 1,152,235 85 1,152,320
= = = = = (90,766) = (90,766)
- - - - - (965,667) s (965,667)
= = = (499,395) = (499,395) = (499,395)
= = = = = (160) = (160)
- - - (499,395) 1,152,235 (403,753) 85 (403,668)
- - - - (895,020 - - -
80 - - - (80) - - -
- - - - 17,681 7,681 - 7,681
748 2,499,685 138,062 (834,931) 13,522,203 13,979,534 23,309 14,002,843
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

Notes:

(i)  The cumulative amount of the loss on a listed equity investment classified
as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI") was approximately HK$1,680,533,000 as at
31 December 2022 (2021: HK$2,484,787,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the loss on fair value change
from shares of China Evergrande Group (listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)) (stock code: 3333) (“China
Evergrande”) (“Evergrande Shares") of approximately HK$90,766,000
(2021: HK$10,921,850,000), comprising unrealised loss of
approximately HK$105,701,000 (2021: HK$3,051,943,000), realised
gain on the disposal of certain Evergrande Shares of approximately
HK$15,189,000 (2021: realised loss of HK$7,867,045,000) and the
transaction costs of the disposal of approximately HK$254,000 (2021:
HK$2,862,000) was recorded in financial assets measured at FVTOCI
reserve. Upon completion of the disposal of certain Evergrande Shares
during the year ended 31 December 2022, the cumulative fair value
loss and the transaction costs in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI
reserve that related to the disposed Evergrande Shares, which amounted
to approximately HK$895,020,000 (2021: HK$9,219,020,000), was
transferred to retained profits.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) derecognised two equity
instruments measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative fair value gain of
approximately HK$24,255,000 in the financial assets measured at
FVTOCI reserve that related to the equity instruments was transferred to
retained profits.

(i) The contribution reserve represented the excess amount paid by
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, who is a trustee of substantial shareholders of the
Company (“Trustee of Substantial Shareholders”), as the purchaser
in relation to the Group's disposals of debt securities in 2020, at the
consideration of 100% of principal amount over the prevailing market
bid price of the debt securities disposed of was directly recognised in the
reserve as it is deemed as the contribution from the Company’s equity
participant.

(i) The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC") statutory reserve fund. Appropriations to such reserve
fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be less
than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

(iv)  The special reserve represented the difference arising from the aggregate
of the share capital and premium amount of the former holding
company and the Company upon redomicile of the holding company as
a Bermuda Company in 1989 and is non-distributable.

(v)  Unclaimed dividends forfeited represented dividends declared by
the Company on or before 30 August 2016 (2021: 15 June 2015)
remaining unclaimed by shareholders of the Company on 2 November
2022 (2021: 3 September 2021). During the year ended 31 December
2022, unclaimed dividends amounted to approximately HK$7,681,000
(2021: HK$11,605,000) were forfeited and transferred to retained
profits.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Operating activities
Profit (loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest expenses
Interest income from other financial assets
Dividend income from unlisted equity
investments
Distributions from a financial asset measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income
Allowance for credit losses recognised
in respect of trade receivables
Reversal of allowance for credit losses
recognised in respect of trade receivables
Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of bonds
Unrealised (gain) loss arising from change in
fair value of structured product
Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of investments held-for-trading
Unrealised gain arising from change in
fair value of club and corporate debentures
Realised loss arising from change in
fair value of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss
Unrealised gain arising from change in
fair value of derivative financial instrument
Gain on disposals of equipment, net
Reversal of financial guarantee on striking off
of an associate
Share of results of investments accounted for
using the equity method
Allowance for credit losses recognised
in respect of advances to associates
Allowance for credit losses recognised
in respect of interest receivables from bonds
Fair value changes on investment properties
Overprovision of costs in respect of
a development project
Overprovision of reinstatement costs
in respect of leased properties
Exchange loss (gain), net

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REEETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BHZE =T - —F+-A=+—HILFE

Notes
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EEERRE
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F—IRERIAR Z AR
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AR Z BIEK AR
B
P 5B 1R (W) B

2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
FiEx T
1,179,145 (3,480,360)
62,983 56,355
57,045 68,417
126,486 90,808
(16,937) (4,195)
(1,014,750) -
(22,846) -

1 13
- (3,059)

160,172 606,931
(5) 1,160
158,105 339,614
(2,432) (4,944)
= 1,489,980
(1,250) (1,623)
(352) (256)
91 -
(45,381) 106,682
7,421 47
11,156 11,885
(528,481) 1,376,616
- (7,059)
(1,200) -
2,380 (11,359)
—z-—FFH  gABx£E 119



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #IRERE&REBR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in stock of properties

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in debtors, deposits,
other receivables and prepayments

(Increase) decrease in financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss

(Increase) decrease in securities trading
receivables and deposits

Increase in creditors and accruals

Decrease in securities trading and
margin payable

(Decrease) increase in deposits and
receipts in advance

Increase (decrease) in derivative financial

instrument

Cash (used in) generated from operating
activities
Income tax paid, net

Net cash (used in) generated from
operating activities

Notes

B aE

EEESEEH
RERERE
MERFERD
FE MRS
FEWERIE - e - HbRUERIR
K IR FRIER A (G )
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FEN 7R 5 R R R
(4B hn) s
JE& A R IR K e & SR IR IE h0
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B R IBYFIRCR D)8 0

TSR TAEMORD)

(ARREKEEB RS
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2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
131,351 635,653
= 214,466
(1,128) 1,450
43,861 (31,105)
(209,425) 633,808
(14,384) 314
3,952 38,780
(2,257) (24,969)
(77,228) 6,152
1,623 a1
(123,635) 1,474,438
(16,453) (67,975)
(140,088) 1,406,463




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZHREeBEREX
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FERT T
Investing activities REX
Interest received from other financial assets BlEMEREE TS 14,154 4,546
Payments for investment properties XA ERIE (262,505) (163,658)
Payments for purchases of equipment and SXNEEREREEMERE
leasehold improvement FRIE (79,322) (28,827)
Deposit received in respect of disposal of BWEHALEREYECES
investment property 2,186 -
Proceeds from disposals of equipment HEREFTIFHIA 355 260
Advances to associates NN O (95) (1,366)
Advances from associates R EE N R Z A 31,500 42,000
Advances from investee companies BRBEZIRE NG ZHE 97,550 349,950
Advance to an investee company AN —EEXRE QR ZRIE (1,168) -
Decrease (increase) in pledged deposits HARIF T2 8 A (G hn) 111,545 (16,699)
Decrease in time deposits with maturity FREZ R =18 A 2 & BfF %
greater than three months T - 36,109
Net proceeds from disposals of financial assets H&EBBIEBFURM A FETE
measured at fair value through profit or loss ZeMEE S RIEFE - 895,248
Net proceeds from disposal/derecognition of HE /EUERRRBEMEE
financial assets measured at fair value WA R AT EFEZ
through other comprehensive income ERMEEZASHIEFE 206,856 1,639,162
Purchases of financial assets measured at BEABERURM AT EFZ
fair value through profit or loss ZEREE - (1,166,355)
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of 32 B U — R N E
assets through acquisition of a subsidiary BEREEZRESREFHE 38 - (161,114)
Distributions from (contribution to) a financial ~ 72 KEA CE& F)@mBHEME®E
asset measured at fair value through other W ARMAFEFEZ
comprehensive income —HEREE 58,865 (9,011)
Net cash generated from investing REAREXB RS FHE
activities 179,921 1,420,245

—ERooEFH gAB¥EE 121



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #HZEeBRERERX
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Financing activities

Dividend paid

Interest on bank borrowings and
other borrowings paid

Payments for lease liabilities (including interest)

Bank borrowings and other borrowings raised
Loans from a director raised
Repayments of bank borrowings and
other borrowings
Repayments of loans from a director

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Time deposits, bank balances and cash

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Notes
k=3
ME X
EfERE
ERRITEEREMEEZ
Glps)

NEEREERENS)
HIBRITEEREMEE
HIEBEFEER
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B

BEEEFER
RARBMEXE 2 REFHE
RERRELEEEELZ
(B4 ) 18 fn % 58
R—A—BZRERREEEEH
ExGHo2E

R+=ZA=+—-B2ZRER
RE%EEA

RERRESEEEBERDIN
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2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

- (19,076)
(119,390) (91,505)
(57,436) (69,258)
2,035,287 3,835,709
— 420218
(2,324,354) (5,639,582)
— (420,218)
(465,893) (1,983,712)
(426,060) 842,996
2,479,874 1,618,908
(15,046) 17,970
2,038,768 2,479,874
2,038,768 2,479,874
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T =_—F+=-A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
The addresses of the Company's registered office and principal
office in Hong Kong are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report. The Company is indirectly
owned as to 74.99% by Sino Omen Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands of which the entire issued
share capital is held by Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan as the trustee of her
minor children, Lau, Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee.
Further details of the substantial shareholders of the Company
are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders'
Interests in the Securities of the Company” in the section headed

“Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is same as the functional currency of
the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set

out in Notes 47 and 48 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs

The accounting policies adopted in these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 except

as described below.

1.

—RE#

RARA—HREREIME L 2 EHREHR
AR HROABRF LT o ARRFZ M
EERBEBETERSHE MU REFRIA A
B — &R T LA EE - KA FHSino Omen
Holdings Limited(— 7 32 & 4E B R ¥ & 5 i
BN 2 AR A T74.99% F HEHE#
TR B RSB Z + (fERE RN F T & 2IH
B.RAFERIAFZZETANEE - KA
FERRZE—SHFBERAFRIEFTERS
EI BRI EERRRARA 2B FEwm]—
AT IARE -

R EPBHERABT(EBITDZ5 BT
RARBzNeEEY - BEBRZEHBI - B
BHRHIERAZREO 2 THEFTET)

ARRZEBEBR/RERER  METEME
REIRBERR 2 EBEBD RN KT
471248 °

ERHMAIREERYRREE
Rz 85T

BRTaEN  BE_S-__F+-HA=+—H
IEFEZREMBERERAMREAZ S5HBUR ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HKFRSs (Cont'd)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
("Amendments”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time, including those
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

HKAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract

The application of the Amendments had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HKFRSs (Cont'd)

The Group has not early adopted the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs (“new and amended HKFRSs") that have
been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets

FER#HTIREERBKERELE
B 2 &5 )

REEW RERHRA T EMEDRERZ
A M BB M B RE LR ZERT ([T R
BRI RBH B RS R

(Amendments)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

HKFRS 17

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts and the related

Amendments'
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?
HKAS T (Amendments) Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2 (Amendments)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates'

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are in the process of
assessing the potential impact of the new and amended HKFRSs
but are not yet in a position to determine whether the new and
amended HKFRSs will have a material impact on the Group's
performance and financial position and on the disclosures. The new
and amended HKFRSs may result in changes to how the Group's
performance and financial position are prepared and presented in

the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, these consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group incurred total
comprehensive expenses attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$403,753,000 (2021: HK$14,375,706,000) and
net operating cash outflows of approximately HK$140,088,000.

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by the management. The cash flow projections cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December 2022.
The management has made key assumptions in the preparation
of the projections with regard to the anticipated cash flows from
the Group's operations, capital expenditures and the continuous
availability of facilities. The Group’s ability to achieve the projected

cash flows depends on the continuous availability of facilities.

In view of the above, the Directors believe that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due in the coming twelve months from 31 December
2022. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared these consolidated

financial statements on a going concern basis.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at their fair values as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHBRE#MEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value-in-use in HKAS 36

“Impairment of Assets".

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;
Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company: (i) has power over
the investee; (ii) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and (iii) has the ability

to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income and expense
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to

be a business and no further assessment is needed.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability

to continue producing outputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Cont'd) () HFERBEXEE)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Cont'd)

Business combinations (Cont'd)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to

goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of
the Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost that is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

ISR R MY EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity method

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or
a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case
it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group's share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of the associate.

132 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

(b)

LIEREARZRE
BERRAAEENEBEEATEN
ZRE - BTBRHEAR - T TER

BERAIZER - ERATENEEES
BESRENZHBREERERTE -
1B IE 8 % F R TR A 12 B i S AL R 12 )

e

o

BERRNEEUREERAGBAS
REENEGRA M B RRAR ’Tﬁﬁf‘*ﬁ&
AREP—HBOELEARKELE I
REBEFBYHHRELENESHEFELE
ZHRBDEERCKIEEEBINK -
REEDE > REERARNKRENIEZ
AR GRS RN MR AER - WHER
ERAREBEZHEARNERER
Hitp 2 FIARE - EAREEEE
fERRZBERBEARERZBER
AlzEn(BREE ERNRARNEERNZ
BEARREFE By EARAE
3 ARERIEREBONE—
BE - ERAEECEDEEREEER
£ RERKRZB LR RN RANIE
T e RIS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which

the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value-in-use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

ISR R MY EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon

disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that

are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(@

(d)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties and investment properties under

construction

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation including properties
under construction for such purpose and land held for a

currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease

income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

Costs incurred for construction of investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of

the investment properties under construction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(d)

Investment properties and investment properties under

construction (Cont'd)

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value of the leasehold land are recognised directly in profit or

loss for the period in which changes take place.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property) is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the property is

derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair value to property,
plant and equipment when the property begins to be occupied
by the owner or of development with a view to owner-
occupation. Gain or loss arising from change in fair value of
the investment property upon the transfer is included in profit

or loss.

An owner-occupied property is transferred from property, plant
and equipment to investment properties at fair value when it
is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accounted for as a revaluation increase or decrease in
accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of assets, the relevant

revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

A property is transferred from investment property to stock
of properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to
sale. Any difference between the fair value of the property at
the date of change in use and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment (other than freehold land and properties under
development) over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual values, using the straight-

line method, at the following rates per annum:

Type Basis

Leasehold land Over the remaining lives of

the leases
Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired period of the lease and
40 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of the remaining
improvement unexpired period of lease terms

and 6 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Yachts and 3 to 10 years

motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

(8)

(h)

Stock of properties

Stock of properties including completed properties which are
held-for-trading, is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

The cost of completed properties held for sale is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units. Net
realisable value is estimated by the management of the Group
based on prevailing market conditions, which represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs to be incurred in

selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale is recognised as an expense in the
period when the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down or provision, arising from an
increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of completed properties held for sale recognised

as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials for
cosmetics products, which are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost represents the invoiced cost
of inventories. Costs are assigned to individual items on the

weighted-average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.
Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any

identified impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted

for intangible assets is five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

0

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. A financial asset or financial
liability (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially measured at fair value plus
or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction

price.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending

on the classification of the financial assets.

() Cassification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for
debt investments that are designated as at FVTPL on

initial recognition):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

®

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial asset;

and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets that are other than those
categorised as amortised cost and FVTOCI above, are

categorised as measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset is held-for-trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term;

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern

of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that is required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (i) =®MIAGH)
Financial assets (Cont'd) LHEE(E)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () THEESEREEZEHE)

assets (Cont'd)

(1) BERAREERNIX

(1) Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount at initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised using effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

revenue or investment income as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (i) =®MIAGH)
Financial assets (Cont'd) LHEE(E)
() Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () EHEESEREEFTEGE)

assets (Cont'd)

(2) Financial assets measured at FVTOCI 2) BREEMEEEEIREA

According to HKFRS 9, the Group may make
an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in
equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at
FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment
is held-for-trading. A financial asset is held-for-
trading if it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term or it is a
derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 5(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss

and is included in revenue.

The Group has designated all investments in
equity instruments (listed or unlisted) that are not
held-for-trading as at FVTOCI since the application
of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (i) =®MIAGH)
Financial assets (Cont'd) LHEE(E)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () THEESEREEZEHE)

assets (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL 3) BRABZURBAFEEZ
ZEMEE

Financial assets measured at FVTPL comprise
derivatives that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments and club and corporate

debentures.

Investments in equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, unless the Group designates such
investment that is not held-for-trading as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (i)(2) above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost and FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments
that meet the amortised cost criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
A debt instrument may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on

different bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

() assification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (Cont'd)

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, with any gains or losses arising from
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
is included in investment income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 5(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest income on debt instruments at FVTPL
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

revenue.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including debtors, deposits and other receivables,
securities trading receivables and deposits, pledged
deposits, time deposits, bank balances and cash, and
advance(s) to associates/an investee company) which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessment is done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for significant balances or collectively using a

provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.

() SBMIA®

EHEEE)

(i)

EHEEZHE(E)

FEMEHEEERDERET
AREHFERANMEREEE
ZEHDEMHMEBZEREES
Bk +ZEAEBREES
B(+—EABBEEBRDYE
BFHRBEHRR T —EAARA
EBELENENEHMERZFE
HEHMEEEERY - FFETIR
BASENBTIEEBERERE
T AREBEEBARENEE
—RREBEMRIA BB R E A
B AR R TR ORI R AR R O R A
TEHFE -

AEBEBEEEWKE S RAEER
FEAEBEEER  BHEE
BRI ZFEEZERNGHE
TTER G HEREEBRR
BAEREETHRENG -

HRNFBEREMTIA  AEEE
MEBBRBEEHERSER T @A EY
EEERE  RIFBTFERIAR
EERBRAEE N BAEEE
REERBEREEER - BLWE
REFEREREEERNFTMET
ERBUSHERUARELENZ
AREIE S m B A TR G AN

—E-CFER

gABxE®E 145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market

indicators of credit risk;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more

lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate a later period
is more appropriate. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on a
forward-looking basis whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
“credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data of the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
borrower;

. a breach of contract such as a default or past due
event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider; or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
or the disappearance of an active market for a

security because of financial difficulties.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial assets to another entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

ISR R MY EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont'd)

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for an
investment in equity instrument that is classified as
FVTOC], the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
that is classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit

or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

®

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or equity instruments according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's financial
liabilities are generally classified into (i) financial liabilities
at FVTPL and (i) other financial liabilities subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity

instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

®

Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

Q)

@

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL, representing those as
held-for-trading, comprise derivatives that are not
designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities subsequently measured

at amortised cost and effective interest method

Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included
in finance costs.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount at initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised using effective
interest method for financial liabilities, other than
those financial liabilities at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHFEMHMEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)
() Cassification and measurement (Cont'd)
(3) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of

the Company’'s own equity instruments.
(i) Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Group's
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

(i)

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities (Cont'd)

Except for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform in which the Group applies the
practical expedient, when the contractual terms of
a financial liability are modified, the Group assesses
whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received, and discounted using
the original effective interest rate, is at least 10%
different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the
extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such

difference is less than 10%.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the financial liabilities" original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred
are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date

of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

() SBMIA®

Change in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark

reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial asset or financial liability to which the
amortised cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform the Group applies the practical expedient
to account for these changes by updating the effective interest
rate, such change in effective interest rate normally has no
significant effect on the carrying amount of the relevant

financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only

if, both these conditions are met:

the change is necessary as a direct consequence of

interest rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the

basis immediately preceding the change).

For other changes made to a financial asset or financial
liability in addition to changes to the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows required by interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group first applies the practical expedient to
the changes required by interest rate benchmark reform by

updating the effective interest rate.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss

immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

0

1)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL and do not arise from a transfer of an

asset, are measured subsequently at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (see financial assets above);

and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amortisation recognised over the

guarantee period.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form

an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as

the Group performs;

the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional

right to consideration.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)

from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are

accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Building management fee income, property management
services income and management fee income are recognised
in accordance with terms of respective agreements over the
relevant period in which the services are rendered. Revenue
from provision of building and property management services
is recognised over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the Group’s

performance as the Group performs.

Sales of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts is recognised at the point in time when the relevant

contract notes are executed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetics products is recognised at the
point in time when goods are delivered and titles have been

passed.

Revenue from sales of properties held for sale in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the legal assignment
is completed, which is the point in time when the purchaser
has the ability to direct the use of the property and obtain

substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

U

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

U]

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of

remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the entity
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (m) HE

Definition of lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to short-term leases of assets (i.e. those leases that have a
lease term of twelve months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). The Group also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to lease of office equipment that are considered as low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) HE&EE)

The Group as lessee (Cont'd)

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date which the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, estimated costs to be incurred by the lessee in
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the

lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd)
The Group as lessee (Cont'd)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.
The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed lease

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities

is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for

the lease payments made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) HEH)

The Group as lessee (Cont'd) KEBBERBAA(E)

Lease liabilities (Cont'd) HEEBEE)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a WMHRATER  REBEHAEHE

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) BEQIHMAEAEREEEELIBRES

whenever: ) :
change in the lease term or change in the assessment . P BB BERFEEE LT
of exercise of a purchase option to purchase the FHREEEE FHEES L
underlying asset, in which case the related lease EZIBRT  REFIEHEE -
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease ERHEAGBEFALEBEIREREX
payments using a revised discount rate at the date of BREERI M ENRER =
reassessment;

. change in lease payments arising from change in an . EHENTE - EESSA xR
index or rate or expected payment under a guaranteed B AERFHREMETEAMNRK
residual value, in which cases the related lease liability is ZymELRLs - BIEEHESR
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments BE R 2 2 AR RN LS F]
using the initial discount rate. HERREHTE -

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item in HEBERAEEESPBRRNHED

the consolidated statement of financial position. LABEEIEE 275 -

Lease modifications HEBX

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate HRWIFEA—IBEFHEARZHEE

lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the Bk REFERBEKERAEZHBE

lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised METEHEAE  SFEARAGEBENR
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective EMEHZ RERT R AR EERTE

date of the modification. BRI e

The Group as lessor KEEBHHEA

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit EEBHHSWASREBELNFH

or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant NEHBENBETER - ERkTHE

lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging ¥HOBELE VL EEN A IMAH
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the EEEZREME  WRENFHUER
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line ERERBAX -

basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

Fale)

ISR R MY EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd)

(n)

The Group as lessor (Cont'd)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through

forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

Operating leases

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new

lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss. When a
fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(n)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising from a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, the exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and will be reclassified from equity to

profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in the translation
reserve in respect of that operation attributable to the owners

of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

(n)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(n)

(0)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not recognised
in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence, the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences
is reclassified to profit or loss. Settlements of monetary items
which formed part of net investment in foreign operations
without changes in the Group’s ownership interests is not

considered as partial disposals.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(p) Retirement benefit costs (p) RBRKBEREAE
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes FERTORKBEN T8 2 R E B 1R
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered HAR TS LA B REEVS R RER AR X o

service entitling them to the contributions.

(q9) Provisions (q) #®1E
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present EAKERBESEHMmMARREEE
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the BHAEEBERREMRZETIR
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable i 7% & £ 2 & %A% AT 52 4tb fik 51 By A SR 4
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. o
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate BRABHE 22BN RERRR I
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation REEEMTZREBz&EMRT - 8%
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the BEERSREAERZRARRTEER
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a = MEBBEREIXNRAREZER
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle emBETE  AREEANAZER
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value TREZHE -

of those cash flows.

() Related parties ( BEEAL

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is () MWMEBMATAL  BIEZALTkEZ

related to the Group if that person: ATBAERBYHRENX S BARE
55 g
(1) has control or joint control of the Group; (1) kA REERIARER
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or 2) HAEBBZEAFET %K
(3) is a member of the key management personnel 3) RAKEIFEEFAFZ
of the Group or the Group's parent. FEEBAS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

ISR R MY EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(r) Related parties (Cont'd)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

Q)

@

3

)

)

©)

)

®

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is @ member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(r

(s)

®

Related parties (Cont'd)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or
obligations between the Group and a related party, regardless

of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised

as a provision.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal management reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, financial assets and other
assets. Segment liabilities comprise financial liabilities and
other liabilities. The Group evaluates performance on the
basis of profit or loss from operations after tax expense and
non-controlling interests but not including the major non-
cash items. The major non-cash items are unrealised fair
value changes on investment properties and other properties

together with, if applicable, their respective deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

v)

(w)

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where

appropriate.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants

are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such

grants are presented under other income.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset is available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sales of such asset and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed

sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell, except for financial assets within the scope of
HKFRS 9 which continue to be measured in accordance with

the accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.

Fair value measurement of financial assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held unlisted bond, suspended
trading listed equity securities, unlisted equity securities (including
limited partnership) and structured product with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$1,396,000, HK$115,438,000, HK$525,780,000
and HK$4,005,000 (2021: HK$28,037,000, nil, HK$1,527,466,000
and HK$6,840,000) respectively. These financial instruments do
not have a quoted market price in an active market (“Unquoted

Investments”).

Fair values of the Unquoted Investments were determined based on
significant unobservable inputs using valuation techniques. Judgment
and estimation are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could result in material adjustments to the

fair value of the Unquoted Investments. Details are set out in Note

5(0).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

4,

Fale)

ISR R MY EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (cortay 4. BARRETH & @
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd) HHTHRERRZETERRE)
Fair value of investment properties KREYFZ 1 FE
The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based REBZREMERB IS ERFEWEME
on the valuations performed by independent qualified professional EDEATREMATE < A FEIIR o HERMRE
property valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers have based ERFER - DREBEETEET  EPEY
on methods of valuation which involve certain assumptions and HETERERMEE - RAEENMBEIRERE A
estimates. Independent external valuations were obtained in respect K HEE R R A NIRE Y ERIGE LN
of all of the portfolio of the Group, and also of the investment B WEBERENMGE - EERAERS
properties held by its associates in order to support management's W REBEEBTEEDELHE - WEEHE
estimates. In relying on the valuation reports, the management FEERBERHTSARR - FFIEEHNWE
of the Group has exercised its judgments and is satisfied that the 19 ZEREHE BEERTISER
methods of valuation are reflective of the current market conditions, B - MG BUR Rt g B LS Bt BANE (Y
as detailed in Note 19. Changes to these assumptions, including the BERE - HBRAEEREMERERES
potential risk of any market violation, policy, geopolitical and social MR BRKRT 2REERUEREAR 2R
changes or other unexpected incidents would result in changes BrMERNARBECREME L AT EESRE
in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and the & o NiFE 2 ERABRERP 2RV FEKS
investment properties held by its associates which were included in BB MEB(E AR R R ARIRE 2 & (E
the investments accounted for using the equity method as reported )2 ©REIEHB R RE -
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Corresponding
adjustments would be made, where appropriate, to the amount of
fair value gain or loss and share of results of investments accounted
for using the equity method reported in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the Group's RZBZZF+A=+—R0  FrEEREY
investment properties was approximately HK$13,369,124,000 ¥ 2EMEXNR13,369,124,0008 (=T =
(2021: HK$13,292,161,000). —%F 1 13,292,161,000 7T) °
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. @@ THE
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) £mIARER
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Financial assets ﬁﬂﬁé
Financial assets measured at fair value miBBmA RN TE
through profit or loss ATECZERMEE 649,929 756,717
Financial assets measured at fair value 3 38 L At 2 TR Mk DA F Bk
through other comprehensive income NFEEAEZERHEE 635,546 1,892,048
Amortised cost BEIHACN 2,533,975 3,226,695
Financial liability cRAas
Amortised cost HSHRR 5,336,873 7,093,279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, bonds, investments held-for-trading, structured
products, club and corporate debentures, derivative financial
instrument, advances to/from associates/investee companies/
non-controlling shareholders, debtors, deposits and other
receivables, securities trading receivables and deposits,
pledged deposits, time deposits, bank balances and cash,
borrowings, creditors and accruals, securities trading and
margin payable, lease liabilities and deposits received. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner. There has been no change
to the Group's risk exposure relating to financial instruments or

the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transactions, and
from recognised assets and liabilities. The functional
currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries in
Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currencies of those
subsidiaries operating in the United Kingdom and the
PRC are Pound Sterling (“GBP") and Renminbi ("RMB")
respectively in which most of their transactions are
denominated. The Group is mainly exposed to foreign
exchange risk in respect of exchange fluctuations
of HK$ against GBP and RMB. The conversion of
RMB into other currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the government of the PRC. The Group currently does
not have foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(1) Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk on its

foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Assets BE

United States dollar (“US$") Ex(Ex))
GBP ESs

RMB AR

Euro ("EUR") BT (TeT))
Liabilities =L

us$ ETT

GBP HeE

RMB AR

EUR BT

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. As HK$ is pegged to US$, it is
assumed that there would be no material currency risk
exposure between US$ and HK$ and therefore US$ is

excluded from the sensitivity analysis below.

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
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2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT
1,300,899 1,805,293
3,055,935 3,026,103
185,634 203,039
1,247 1,399
1,149,974 1,241,379
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

®

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts their
translations at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes external loans as well as loans to/from foreign
operations within the Group where the denomination
of the loan is in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower; but excluding
exposure resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group's
presentation currency.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
(2021
strengthen 5% against HK$. For a 5% weakening of

- a decrease in loss) where the relevant currencies

the relevant currencies against HK$, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit (2021: loss).

Impact of 2
GBP %
RMB AR
EUR BT

There would be no material impact on the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

The net effect of the Group's sensitivity to foreign
currency risk was attributable to the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities with exposure to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period.

5.

TR T A

(b) ERERE

(4
\t=l

BEERBEGE)

TE R (&)

®

SR ()
BURE DT (E)

BRRESMBIERERE ZINES
BEEWIER @ WRHREHARHES%
ZHEEREHFALRZFHE Z
BRE - BREDWRIEINBER
RERT/ BAREEBETHEINE
B(HAEZ2EERBERALER
ATIREE B AN Z EHE) LT
BIER B RE RN ER 2T
HEEAEEZ 2V EEMEE
2R o

TXHEHRRTHBERE L BT
2 B R 858 5000 )4 Fl| 2 15 )1 (— 2
——FERZRD) - WEEE
BB 2 ERE 50 - RI¥DE
M- BREKZTE
RRAERAR -

Profit
R F
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHEIT
141,042 138,375
9,253 10,151
62 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. T Eu
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREREEEZERBEE)

(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd) 45 A B (&)

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk (i) BHewENEERE
The Group has variable-rate interest-bearing assets and REBEEBNTEFARZEER
liabilities including time deposits, bank balances, sales BE(BEEHFER  RITESK
proceeds held by a third party and borrowings and is FE=ZFFBFHEMSERELE
therefore exposed to cash flow interest rate risk. Details B) MAKBAAERESRER
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective R  ZEERIAFERE
notes. The Group currently does not have interest BRI ER T AR SR - REBERK
rate hedging policy. However, the management of the WER EEREK - A - A&
Group monitors interest rate exposure and will consider ErEREEENEAR XK
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the NEREFEERERF X @R
need arise.
The Group's cash flow interest rate risk from its REBEEREFBRZBEERE
variable rate borrowings is mainly concentrated on MERABEEERREBRTH
the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate ERE(EBRITRAEFE]D -
("HIBOR"), compounded reference rate of banks or RIT2EE2ENEL—HeR
costs of funds of a financial institution or a bank. BEL—HRITZEEHAEZ K

& o
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a VAT 51 R A 2 B0 HL B B FF D
reasonable possible change in interest rates with all B2BERAT - ANEBEBRY AR A
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit (ZE=—F : BRHMNELERE
(2021: loss) before tax (through the impact of floating WA R B 2 RRE (BB E A
rates in time deposits, bank balances, sales proceeds G BITEHR  BE=ZFEHE
held by a third party and borrowings). EMSRERBEEZ FBAEZ
) -

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points higher/ W FEAE EF I ESOEE
lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group's o EREEMEHGFTE
profit (2021: loss) before tax for the year ended BAT  AIREEBEE_T_—
31 December 2022 would decrease/increase (2021: FH+_A=+—BHLEFEZHBH
increase/decrease) by approximately HK$14,048,000 ARM(ZEZ—F : BB R
(2021: HK$20,997,000). This was mainly attributable DI ZEZ—F B hnR
to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable- A)#)14,048,0008 T (=T = —
rate borrowings. 4 £ 20,997,000/87T) © W HEE

MR AEEFEE Y EEBEY
FE @S -
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RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

There would be no material impact on the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased
during the current year mainly due to the decrease in

net debt carries at variable-rate.
Price risk

The Group's investments classified as financial assets
measured at FVTPL and financial assets measured at
FVTOCI which are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period and expose the Group to price
risk. At the end of the reporting period, the Group held
investments in certain high yield and fixed-rate bonds.
High yield bonds are bonds that are typically rated
below investment grade or are unrated and therefore
are generally more vulnerable to economic cycles as
they typically fall more in value than investment grade
bonds given higher default risk and higher investors
risk adversity. For bonds with fixed-rate coupons, they
are more susceptible to fluctuations in interest rates. As
interest rates move upward, the value of the bonds will
generally fall. Furthermore, the longer the tenor of the
bonds, the more sensitive they will be to interest rate

changes.

The management of the Group manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a
specific team to monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(iii)  Price risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group’s
profit (2021: loss) before tax for the year ended
31 December 2022 would increase/decrease (2021:
decrease/increase) by approximately HK$32,496,000
(2021: HK$37,836,000). This was due to the changes

in fair value of financial assets measured at FVTPL.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's other
components of equity for the year ended 31 December
2022 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$31,777,000 (2021: HK$94,602,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of financial assets measured at
FVTOCI.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2022 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's time deposits and bank balances are deposited with
banks of high credit quality in Hong Kong, Mainland China and

overseas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group made transactions with counterparties with
acceptable credit quality in conformance to the Group's
treasury policies to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable
credit ratings from reputable credit rating agencies and scrutiny
of financials for non-rated counterparties are two important
criteria in the selection of counterparties. The credit quality of
counterparties will be closely monitored over the life of the
transaction. The Group reviews its financial counterparties
periodically in order to reduce credit risk concentrations relative

to the underlying size and credit strength of each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the
Group also monitors potential exposures to each financial
institution counterparty. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate allowance for credit
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
ECL provision for trade receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and ECL, and also considers the available reasonable and

supportive forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivables that are
individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment, after taking into consideration, the background
and reputation of the customers, historical settlement records
and past experiences at the end of each reporting period. The
Group makes periodic assessments on the recoverability of the
trade receivables by using a provision matrix to measure ECL.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar financial strength
and any disputes with the debtors. The calculation reflects
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. For the year ended
31 December 2022, an allowance for credit losses in respect
of trade receivables of approximately HK$1,000 (2021:
HK$13,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income. Detalils are set out in Note 30.

For interest receivables from bonds and structured product,
the Group makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of each bond and structured product based on
their respective historical settlement records and credit rating
of the respective issuer. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
certain bond issuers had defaulted their payment and/or
were in severe financial difficulty and the Group considered
the amounts were irrecoverable. The Group assessed and
measured these amounts based on lifetime ECL and provision
of approximately HK$11,156,000 (2021: HK$11,885,000)
were made in respect of these receivables for the year ended
31 December 2022. The remaining interest receivables from
bonds and structured product of approximately HK$2,791,000
(2021: HK$5,520,000) were assessed based on 12m ECL
and no provision were made for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

For all other receivables, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL and assessed individually, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

The credit quality of the advances to related parties has been
assessed with reference to historical information about the
default rates and financial position of the counterparties.
These balances were assessed individually based on 12m
ECL. For the year ended 31 December 2022, allowance
for credit losses of approximately HK$7,421,000 (2021:
HK$47,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Investments in bonds are limited to financial institutions or
investment counterparties with high quality. When making
decisions on investments in bonds, the management of
the Group has also made reference to the credit ratings
of the issuers and guarantors (if any) which, however,
are not an assurance as to the issuers’ and/or guarantors’
creditworthiness or the risks, returns or suitability of the bonds.
Risks in particular specific to certain types of bonds held by
the Group are: (i) high yield bonds — they in general carry
high credit risk as they are often subject to higher risk of issuer
default as they are typically rated below investment grade or
are unrated; (ii) perpetual bonds — their coupon payments
may be deferred or suspended subject to the terms and
conditions of the bonds and they are often callable after a
call protection period (related risk is detailed in the liquidity
risk below); and (iii) contingent convertible bonds — issued
by financial institutions that are deeply subordinated in the
capital structure, typically Tier 1 or Tier 2 securities. The key
characteristic of contingent convertible bonds is that the
issuer can either write off the principal amount or convert it
to shares without causing a default on the bond. There could
be a specific hard capital ratio trigger or declaration of non-
viability event by the regulator for the write off or conversion
to equity to happen. The Group may be exposed to a higher
issuer credit risk and may experience substantial losses or
lose the entire value of investment as a result of a trigger
event. Other than the above, there may be additional risks
associated with trading of bonds over-the-counter (“OTC")
because OTC transactions are generally subject to limited
regulation and therefore less transparent in transaction details
such as volume, price formation, etc. There may also be
additional risks for investments located in an emerging market
which may involve certain risks associated with political and
economic uncertainty. In view of the specific risks above, the
Group has appointed the specific team as disclosed in Note

5(b)(iii) above to closely monitor the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The credit risk for pledged deposits, time deposits, bank
balances and deposits with clearing house are insignificant
because the counterparties are banks and clearing house with

high credit ratings.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong, Europe and Mainland China.
The Group also monitors regularly to avoid over-concentration
(such as investment products and underlying foreign

exchange, etc.) of the investment portfolio.

Liquidity risk

Certain bonds held by the Group carried fixed-rate coupon are
accompanied with call rights, the issuers may call and redeem
the bonds early if interest rates fall. The Group may face
reinvestment risk when issuers exercised its right to redeem
the bond before it matures. Besides, some bonds may not
have an active secondary market. In case of the market in
which the bonds are traded is illiquid, the Group may run the
risk of either having to retain the investment until the end of

the term or selling it before maturity at an unfavourable price.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and

financial liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by the
management of the Group. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity requirement
are provided to the management of the Group for review
periodically. The management of the Group will contact the

bankers for renewals of bank borrowings whenever necessary.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. T Aw
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) =ZRIERERERZERBEEKE)
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin payable
Deposits received

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to investee companies
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin payable
Deposits received

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to investee companies
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

Total
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G
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ERERRHERERRES
Blize
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Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
MERY
BR7=

5.32%
4.23%

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
METH
BRAE

1.32%
2.04%

mﬁﬁ_—%ﬂ ""k )

At 31 December 2022

“B--E+tZA=t-H
Ondemand  More than Total Total
or within 1yearbut undiscounted carrying
1year within 5years  cash flows amount
RERS -FNLEE  RERRE
-§R  TREIF REAE REELER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
2,890,672 2,436,342 5,327,014 4,886,932
38,252 55,330 93,582 88,576
245,191 - 245,191 245,191
9,809 = 9,809 9,809
56,863 - 56,863 56,863
- 34,579 34,579 34,519
- 14,648 14,648 14,648
- 275 275 275
3,240,787 2,541,174 5,781,961 5,336,873
At 31 December 2021
R-E_—%+-A=1-H
On demand More than Total Total
or within 1yearbut  undiscounted carying
1year  within 5 years cash flows amount
REXE  —FNUEE  REERERE
7@7? %ﬁ@ﬁﬁ /MLE?@%E EE@{E%”E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
3,696,100 1,883,227 5,579,327 5455514
51211 9,106 60,317 59,710
201,896 - 201,896 201,896
12,163 - 12,163 12,163
129,529 - 129,529 129,529
- 302,344 302,344 302,344
- 931,848 931,848 931,848
- 275 275 275
4,090,899 3,126,800 7217699 7,093,279




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In addition to the items as set out in the above liquidity risk
tables, the maximum amount the Group could be required to
settle under (i) financial guarantee provided by the Group in
respect of a banking facility utilised by an investee company
and (ii) indemnity given to a third party in relation to an
investee company is approximately HK$613,830,000 (2021:
HK$613,830,000) in aggregate, if such amount is claimed
by the counterparties to the guarantee or indemnity at any
time within the guaranteed or indemnity period. Details of the

guarantee and indemnity are set out in Note 43.

Secured bank borrowings with repayment on demand clause
are included in the “On demand or within 1 year” time band
of maturity analysis in the above liquidity risk tables. At the end
of the reporting period, the total undiscounted cash flow of the
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,757,192,000
(2021: HK$1,476,255,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks and financial institution will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates as set out in
the loan agreements, details of which are set out in the tables

below (include both interest and principal cash flows).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. R T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREREEEZERBEE)
(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) B E LR (E)
Maturity analysis — secured bank borrowings with repayment BB — M in K IE R A B
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments IR IE B2 B TEEZH

At 31 December 2022

R-B-—£+-A=t-A
More than Total Total
Within 1 year but Over undiscounted carrying
1year within 5 years 5years cash flows amount
—ENEE KERRE

-fR  TRALF BEAL RERE REELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

Non-derivative financial liability FTECRAME
Borrowings f&& 275,621 783,256 698309 1,757,192 1,469,574
At 31 December 2021
W_B_—f+-A=+—H
More than Total Total
Within 1 yearbut  undiscounted carrying
1year  within 5 years cash flows amount
—FHER KRB
—5R  TEORF MELE  REELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET TR THET
Non-derivative financial liability FiTESRER
Borrowings E3= 680,307 795,948 1,476,255 1,443,820
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. R T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREREEEZERBEE)
(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) HEELERE(E)
The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual TERFINAEBTESHRIARTAL
maturity for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have FEZIER c TRIOVIRMTETAZTER
been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash inflows Waaga 2 RARB @ MA SR H %R
and outflows on the derivatives that require gross settlements. B UBTAINEBFECRERE -
For cash flows denominated in currency other than HK$, the RBRERARERZEXEZReREE
prevailing foreign exchange rate at the end of the reporting BRBTT
period is used to convert the cash flows into HK$.
At 31 December 2022
R=-E-_—_F+=-A=+—H
Total Total
Within  undiscounted carrying
1 year cash flows amount
RUERRE
—FR MEAE IREEMARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TER
Derivative gross settlement  fTAETHEZRXUAEE
Cross currency swap BHEiE 1,250
Inflow mA 1,154,542 1,154,542
Outflow i (1,154,053) (1,154,053)
At 31 December 2021
RZE_—F+_A=+—H
Total Total
Within undiscounted carrying
1 year cash flows amount
RERIR S
—FR MEHEE FRmELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FA&T FHET
Derivative gross settlement T4 T Rz X WKAEE
Cross currency swap BHsi= 1,623
Inflow Mtk 1,243,362 1,243,362
Outflow mn (1,241,270) (1,241,270)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in Note 35, several of the Group's HIBOR (2021:
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") and HIBOR) bank
borrowings have been subject to the interest rate benchmark

reform.

LIBOR

As at 31 December 2022, all LIBOR settings have been either
ceased to be provided by any administrator or no longer be
representative, except for US$ settings (other than the 1-week
and 2-month settings) which will be ceased immediately after
30 June 2023.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average
("HONIA") has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR,
there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate approach
has been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA

will co-exist.

Progress towards implementation of alternative benchmark

interest rates

As part of the Group's risk management for transition, new
contracts entered into by the Group are linked to the relevant
alternative benchmark rates or interest rates which are not
subject to reform to the extent feasible. Otherwise, the Group
ensured the relevant contracts include detailed fallback clauses
clearly referencing the alternative benchmark rate and the

specific triggering event on which the clause is activated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Cont'd)

Progress towards implementation of alternative benchmark

interest rates (Cont'd)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a contract has
been transitioned to cost of funds of a financial institution.
In addition, for certain floating rate borrowings that are
linked to HIBOR, the Group had confirmed with the relevant
counterparties that HIBOR will continue to maturity. The Group
accounted for the changes using the practical expedient in
HKFRS 9 which allows the Group to change the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows prospectively by

revising the effective interest rate.

The Group is closely monitoring the market and managing
the transition to new benchmark interest rates, including
announcements made by the relevant interbank offered
rate regulators, risks arising from the interest rate benchmark
reform and the progress in completing the transition to

alternative benchmark.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. T Eu
(c) Fair value measurements () ALFEFE

HURAFETEZEMTA

Financial instruments measured at fair value

TERARRERARARTFEAEZSR
TAZ=BOBE I -

The following table analysed the financial instruments which

are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period

into the three-level hierarchy.

Fair value Valuation techniques

Fair value hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
NYE
NTE AR HERATRIEHE EXFUBREE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER Thx
Financial assets
LREE
Suspended trading listed equity securities 109,766 - Level3  Market approach Change in share prices of comparable
presented as financial assets measured gz mEAA companies of -37.29% during the
at VTOC (note (1)) suspension period (note (i)
2IABBEM L ANEI R ATE REFEERRNRNRRRE 2 RHERED
B EMERECEFEE FRRA 3729 (Fit3E (i)
FHE()
Discount for lack of marketability of 21.24%
(note (ii))
ECAE ViR i VAWLIE]
(GE0)
Listed equity securities presented as - 364582  Level1  Quoted prices in active markets N/A
financial assets measured at FVTOCI - EBmHZRE TR
(note (1))
2 RRREM R EAREARRATE
TRV ERERL FTRAES
(HEEG)
Bonds presented as financial assets 253,117 238,135  Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets N/A
measured at FVTPL - EBTHZRE TER
I ARBERARBATEHEL
SREELBS
Unlisted bond presented as financial assets 1,396 28037  Level3  Market approach Expected recovery ratio of 4.19% (note (iii))
measured at FVTPL =8 (2021: discounted cash flow (2021: discount rate of 308.58% on estimated
2 RBRERNRMATEHEL methodology) contractual cash inflow from the bond (note (iv))
PREEZFELTES LY TEER AT Ly 4.1 9% (2K i)
(Z2--F ¥RHEERER) (Z2--F  Erz it e R e RARE
BEAZ08 58 (M7 (v))
Listed investments held-for-trading 328,339 428364 Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets N/A
presented as financial assets measured F-f  EEMEIHE TR
at FVTPL (note (i)
2 ABRBRNRRATENEL
CREEZHIFEEZ LTRE
(GiEH0)
Suspended trading listed equity securities 5,672 - Level3  Market approach Change in share prices of comparable
presented as financial assets measured F=H  THAR companies ranging from -33.74% to -27.51%

at FVTPL (note (7))

2 ABRBRNRRATENEL
CREECEREE LPRAES
(GiEH0)
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during the suspension period (note (i)
REFEERRNANRAE 2 RHERZD
N T-33.74B 227518 ({32 ()

Discount for lack of marketability ranging from
16.76% 0 18650 (note (i))

RZMERBEFANT1676221865E
(GE0)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. €M I Aw
(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd) (0 ATEHE®R
Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd) URAFEFGEZEMITAGE)

Fair value Valuation techniques

Fair value hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
AYE
NTE AR AERTRIERE EXFUBEEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER ThL
Financial assets (Contd)
SHEE®)
Structured products presented as 4,005 6840  Level3  Equity linked notes using Equity growth rate (weekly) ranging from 0.013%
financial assets measured at FVTPL E=1 Monte Carlo simulation model t0 0.036% (2021: 0.003%), volatiity (weekly)
2 RBRBRNRRATEHEL RERBZEEFHRREEES  ranging from 7.947% to 12.596% (2021:
SREEERIER 6.134% to 8.525%) and discount rate of 1.89%
(2021:0.13%) (note (1))
BEEEE(ER)NF0013EE0.036E
(ZZZ—F: 00032) - RE(EBENT
T94TEZ12596E (ZF=—F : 6.1348
E8525) B R E1 80
(2225 013E) (W)
Club and corporate debentures presented 56,150 53718 Level2  Market comparison N/A
as financial assets measured at FVTPL FIR THZEEEE TER

IIRBEREARMATENEZ
CREEZ RERATES

Unlisted equity securities presented as 525,780 1527466  Level 3 Discounted cash flow: forecast Forecast distribution taking into account
financial assets measured at FVTOCI F=H distribution, discount rate and management's experience and the estimated
2 ABAEN ARG REATE contract terms (if any) terminal value (note (iv))
B EMEBEF ITRAES BRRERE  BRZHR- BRHZARIZRERBER R 2
BRERANER(NE) ESEERA(Y)

Discount rates ranging from 14.95% to 24.64%
(2021: 13.369% t0 23.04%) (note (iv))
BBRENT1495E 52464
(ZZZ—% 1 1336EZ23.04E) (7 ()

Reference to the fair value of the Fair value of the underlying property based on
underlying property valuation model (note (iv))
2ZRBYNZLLTE EMEERA BT RANE 2 A TEME (W)
Net asset value (note (vi)) N/A
BEFEMT) TER
Derivative financial instrument 1,250 1623 Llevel2  Discounted cash flow methodology ~ N/A
~ Cioss currency swap -8 based on spot and forward Gyl
fTESRIA exchange rates and yield curves of
-BHES the curency

ERASREE BREEL
NERERER R R EHE

1,285,475 2,648,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Notes:

@

(i)

(iil)

(v)

)

(Vi)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, trading in
shares of certain listed equity securities have been halted
and remained suspended as at 31 December 2022.
As at 31 December 2022, the fair values of suspended
trading listed equity securities at FVTOCI and at FVTPL were
determined by reference to the valuation carried out by
an independent qualified professional valuer (2021: such
listed equity securities based on quoted market bid prices
in active market).

The higher the change in share prices of comparable
companies during the suspension period, the higher the fair
value. The higher the discount for lack of marketability, the
lower the fair value.

The higher the expected recovery ratio, the higher the fair
value.

The higher the estimated contractual cash inflow from the
underlying bond, forecast distribution, estimated terminal
value or fair value of the underlying property, the higher the
fair value. The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
value.

The higher the equity growth rate, the higher the fair value.
The higher the equity volatility and discount rate, the lower
the fair value.

The Group has determined that the net asset value
represents the fair value at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(@

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels as at the date of the events or changes
in circumstances that caused the transfer. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, certain listed equity securities
were transferred from Level 1 to Level 3, which is due to
the suspension of trading of such listed equity securities
and remained suspended as at 31 December 2022. The
Group recognised the transfer into Level 3 as at the date of
suspension. Except the above, there were no other transfers
amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the valuation technique of
the unlisted bonds changed from discounted cash flow
methodology to market approach due to its credit profile
no longer be an applicable reference. Other than the
abovementioned, there is no change in valuation techniques

used as compared to prior years.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of each reporting
period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the

current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

The movement during the years in the balances of Level 3 fair

value measurement is as follows:

At 1 January 2021 RZZ--4$-A-H
Purchases during the year RERBA

Disposals/derecognition during the year WERLE /BUEER
Capital contribution during the year ~ RERTEER
Net (loss) gain arising from change in ~ AFEZBMELZ

fair value (BR)aFE
At 31 December 2021 RIZBZ-E+-f=1—-H
Transfer from Level 1 BEEER
Purchases during the year REREA
Disposals during the year REREE
Net retum of capital contribution RERTEEXZ
during the year WEEE
Net loss arising from change in RTEEBMELZ
fair value BEES
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZF+ZA=1-H

RE MR

5. @M I BEw
(0 RFEFEGE)
UAFEFEZEMTAGE)
E-BRATFHEFELEHRNFANZEFHN
T
Suspended Suspended
trading trading
listed equity listed equity Structured  Unlisted equity
securities  Unlisted bond securities products securities
presentedas  presentedas  presentedas  presentedas  presented as
financial assets financial assets financial assets financial assets financial assets
measuredat ~ measuredat ~ measuredat  measuredat  measured at
FvTOCI FVTPL FVTPL FVTPL FVTOCI
25hER 25RER 2hlhEA
Hit2EWE ERIY Yl BEIRB BNABER  Et2ENE
DRMAFE BEIURMR AVEE BEURR  URBRATE
B2 EREE NVEHE ZEREE NPETE TEZER
ZEREE ZEREE ZEFEE ZEREE BEZFLT
IhkAES  2FLmEF  LIRAEF  2HRBHRER BaEs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAL TiEx TAL T
(note (i)) (note (ii)) (note (ii)) (note (ii)) (note (i)
(GEL0) GE{0) (GEO) (B (i) (BiEE ()
- 201,061 - 52,426 1,593,220
- - - 140,970 -
- - - (171,947) (154,400)
- - - - 9011
- (173,024) - (14,609) 79,635
- 28,037 - 6,840 1,527,466
223,598 - 9,479 - -
- - - 21,000 -
= = = (23,266) =
- - - - (36,019)
(113,832) (26,641) (3,807) (569) (965,667)
109,766 1,396 5,672 4,005 525,780
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B3| R M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(@

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Notes:

(i)  The (loss) gain included in other comprehensive income for
the relevant years related to suspended trading listed equity
securities at FVTOCI and unlisted equity securities at FVTOCI
held at the end of the reporting periods are reported as
changes of financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve.

(i) The loss included in profit or loss for the relevant years
related to unlisted bond at FVTPL, suspended trading listed
equity securities at FVTPL and structured products at FVTPL
held at the end of the reporting periods are reported as
investment expenses.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial instruments that are not measured at fair

value approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk

and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's
capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the capital structure of the Group mainly
consists of debts, which include borrowings from banks and a
financial institution, lease liabilities, pledged deposits, time deposits,
bank balances and cash, and total equity, comprising issued share
capital, reserves, retained profits and non-controlling interests. The
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital to monitor its capital structure on the basis of
a gearing ratio. The Group has a target gearing ratio not higher than
50%, determined as the proportion of net debt to equity. This ratio
is expressed by as a percentage of net debt over the total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings and lease liabilities (as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and

bank balances and pledged deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd) 6.

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Borrowings — current (note (i))
Borrowings — non-current (note (i))
Lease liabilities — current (note (ii))

Lease liabilities — non-current (note (ii))

Total debt
Less: Cash and bank balances and

pledged deposits (note (iii))

Net debt
(total debt less cash and bank balances

and pledged deposits)

Net debt

Less: Securities investments and

treasury products (note (iv))

Net debt
(net debt less securities investments and

treasury products)

Total equity (note (v))

Net debt to equity ratio
(excluding securities investments and

treasury products)

Net debt to equity ratio
(including securities investments and

treasury products)

EXERERE®
EREEBLERMOT
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
BE - mo)E (WiEd)) 2,681,151 3,642,977
B8 - FERBIEE P30 2,205,781 1,812,537
MEaE - mREEE FFREG)) 35,332 50,673
MEBE - JEmB I (FFE(N)) 53,244 9,037
(EVEEEE] 4,975,508 5,515,224
o IR MIRTTARIA K
HARTF 2 (B EE i) (2,186,593) (2,757,384)
B F5E
(BEM@BERIA S RIRITEH%
LA R IERIF ) 2,788,915 2,757,840
BT F5E 2,788,915 2,757,840
B BHRER
B & 2 mn (B RE(v)) (702,295) (1,065,958)
&% 5
(B FEREFRER
HEEmMm) 2,086,620 1,691,882
B A 25 A 5B (B RE (V) 14,002,843 14,398,830
B FREER AR R
(TREEHTER
BEEM) 19.9% 19.2%
B FREER AR R
(BEEHEER
BEEMm) 14.9% 11.8%
—EoCoFFR EABxEmE 197
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd)

Notes:
(i)  Borrowings are detailed in Note 35.
(i) Lease liabilities are detailed in Note 21(b).

(i) Cash and bank balances and pledged deposits comprise time
deposits, bank balances and cash and pledged deposits at the end
of the reporting period.

(iv)  Securities investments and treasury products are detailed in Notes
25(i), (i), (iii) and 26().

(v)  Total equity includes issued share capital, reserves, retained profits
and non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period.

Net debt to equity ratio (excluding securities investments and

treasury products) remained stable.

In relation to brokerage business, Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited,
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited and Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited, three wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
are required to maintain financial resources in accordance with
the specified amount requirements that apply to them under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance imposed by Securities and Futures
Commission. The requirements are internally reviewed on a daily
basis and reports are required to submit to Securities and Futures

Commission monthly. Full compliance is observed during the year.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts of sales of properties
held for sale, commission from brokerage, settlement charges from
brokerage, cosmetics goods sold less returns, building and property
management services income, amounts received and receivable
from property rental income, interest income from bonds and
structured products, dividend income from listed and unlisted equity
investments and gain on sales of investments held-for-trading.

Revenue is analysed as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE (contd) 7. WA
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue from contracts with customers: HEPEH A
Recognised on a point in time basis R — 5 3 > B 2ETERR
Sales of properties held for sale FHELEMEZIHE - 235,462
Brokerage and cosmetics income £ 40 BR 5 Kb st 85 6 WA 15,647 18,091
15,647 253,553
Recognised on over time basis BR—RIFEIAZ ZEMER
Building and property BT R EERRBHA
management services income 52,038 50,079
67,685 303,632
Revenue from other sources: HAb SR 2 YA
Property rental income MEBS WA 293,650 327,346
Interest income from FLEYA
— bonds (note (i) - &H (MIEEQ)) 21,054 305,020
— structured products (note (i)) — R E G (HEEQ) 972 10,490
22,026 315,510
Dividend income from & S A
— listed equity investments (note (ii)) — LA E (FEE(D)) 8,247 168,279
— unlisted equity investments (note (i) — I EMRAIEE (B EE(iT)) 1,014,750 1,200
1,022,997 169,479
Gain on sales of investments held-for-trading HEFEEE 2 RE WS 28,632 183,859
1,367,305 996,194
Total revenue DO X 1,434,990 1,299,826
Notes: BitsE
(i)  The interest income from bonds and structured products were () EERBEEMERZANEBATIRERB
derived from financial assets measured at FVTPL. BalRMAFEFEZEREE °
(i) The dividend income from listed equity investments with amount (i) LEARAREZREWATIREBBER
of approximately HK$8,247,000 (2021: HK$11,759,000) and URBAFEFE 2B EE NBBEM
nil (2021: HK$156,520,000) were derived from financial assets TEBZUNRBAFEFEZEREE -
measured at FVTPL and financial assets measured at FVTOCI SN R A8,247,0008 T (Z T =—
respectively. % : 11,759,000 7T) RE(ZZT = —4F -

156,520,000/ 7T) °

(i)  The dividend income from unlisted equity investments was (i) FELEMRAKREZREWATIRE BEE
derived from financial assets measured at FVTOCI. tEmBEARBRAFEFEZS/ME
= o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has six reportable segments — (i) property development
and trading; (ii) property leasing for retail; (iii) property leasing for
non-retail; (iv) listed equity investments at FVTOCI; (v) investments
and treasury products at FVTPL; and (vi) unlisted investments,
investment holding and brokerage, and the remaining businesses
of the Group grouped under all other segments. The segmentations
are based on the information about the operations of the Group that

management of the Group uses to make decisions.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development and — Property development and sales of
trading trading properties
Property leasing
— Retail - Property leasing from retail
properties
— Non-retail - Property leasing from non-retail
properties
Listed equity investments ~ —  Listed equity securities at FVTOCI
at FVTOCI
Investments and treasury  —  Securities investments in

products at FVTPL investments held-for-trading, OTC
trading and structured products
Unlisted investments, — Unlisted securities investments,
investment holding and trading and brokerage
brokerage
All other segments —  Cosmetics distribution and trading,
provision of building and property

management services and others

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations after tax expense and non-controlling interests but not
including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash items are
unrealised fair value changes on investment properties and other

properties together with, if applicable, their respective deferred tax.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the six

reportable segments described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Unallocated corporate assets mainly comprised land and building for
own use, right-of-use assets, deferred tax assets, tax recoverable and

derivative financial instrument.

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly comprised tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, amounts due to associates, amounts due to investee
companies, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, lease

liabilities and deferred tax liabilities.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
operate different activities. They are managed separately because
each business unit has different markets and requires different

marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different
countries separately. Revenue and results are attributed to countries

on the basis of the property or asset location.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no major
customer (2021: one customer in property development and
trading segment in Mainland China derived revenue of approximately
HK$235,462,000) who individually accounted for 10% or more of

the Group's revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

, a2 N /—\ Al L
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EEDTEw
Operating segment information is presented below: EEDHEMENNT :
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income FEETEKRERE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE—S-_—_F{+ZA=+—HIFE
Unlisted
leasi Listed  Investments investments,
Property Properg eésmg equity  and treasury investment Al
development Ll investments products  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FuTocl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
ERAMRE BEBER
W R NWRB  ELHRE-
ATEZ APEZ REBRR
NERRRER 28 #BE&  LTRARE RERWEER BER®  FRAMAR &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER THT THR TER THT TER
Major cash items excluding WAUSDZEE
in revenue ReEA
- Hong Kong -E - - - 164,304 642,080 - - 806,384
- Other counties - HHER - - - - 920467 - - 920,467
- - - 164,304 1,562,547 - - 1,726,851
Revenue 0N
Dividend and interest income and RERMEMALR
gain on sales of investments HEREEEL
held-for-trading RERE
- Hong Kong -&E 1,014,000 - - - 21,461 - 750 1,036,211
- Other countries - EfpEE - - - - 37444 - - 37,044
Revenue from extemal customers REMPERZBA
- Hong Kong -&E - 29,867 121,329 - - 4,639 63,046 218,881
- United Kingdom - 5 - 35,766 106,688 - - - - 142,454
1,014,000 65,633 228,017 - 58,905 4,639 63,796 1,434,990
Revenue (excluding dividend income~~ MA(MEEXRREENR
from segments of property NERENFZREMA
development and trading and B0
property leasing) B - 65,633 228,017 - 58,905 4,639 63,796 420,990
Attributable property sales from Eln—HEXREANT
an investee company NERE
- Hong Kong -E8 186,808 - - - - - - 186,808
Attibutable rental revenue from EEBEDA/ RRRERR
associates/investee company 50N
- Hong Kong -Ef - 16,752 45,883 - - - - 62,635
~ Mainland China - mEAE - 19,266 5173 - - - - 24,439
186,808 101,651 279,073 - 58,905 4,639 63,796 694,872
Results 45
Segment results SRR
~ Hong Kong -E% 1,014,000 25331 116920 - (112,683) 13901 450 1,094,919
- United Kingdom -%8 - 21,675 95,893 - - 450 - 124,018
~ Mainland China - hE AR - - (225) - - 5,798 - 5573
- Other countries - B EIR - - - - (161,381) 22,846 - (138,535)
1,014,000 53,006 212,588 - (274,064) 42,995 37,450 1,085,975
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESH®@
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZERERERE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E-—F+-HA=1+—HILFE
Unlisted
) Listed Investments investments,
Property Property leasing equity  and treasury investment Al
development hRER investments products  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FvTocl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
ERAMRE EBEE
W R NWRB  ELHRE-
ATEZ APEZ REBRR
NERRRER 28 ¥BE  LTRERE RERMEER BER®  FRAMAR &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER THT THR TER THT TER
Share of results of investments accounted - B{EAEREARRE 2
for using the equity method E3
- Attributable gross income - B AR
- Hong Kong -&8 - 16,008 45,536 - - - 2,246 63,790
- Mainland Ching - AR - 19,266 5,173 - - - - 24,439
~ Attributable operating cost -2 ERE
- Hong Kong -&E - (1,689) (8,467) - - - - (10,156)
~Mainland China - AR - (12,575) (3,141) - - - - (15,716)
1,014,000 74,016 251,689 - (274,064) 42,995 39,696 1,148,332
Other income ECLN - - 2,481 - - - - 2,487
Finance income BHBRA - - - - 56 - - 56
Other gains and losses i REE - - (1.381) - - - - (1.381)
Share of results of investments accounted - B{EAEREABRE 2
for using the equity method 3|
~ Income tax and others -FERRER - (9,600) (2,945) - - - (227) (12112)
1,014,000 64,416 243,850 - (274,008) 42,995 39,469 1,130,722
Unallocated items FABER
Unallocated corporate expenses, net FPEZRARTFE (342,677)
Unallocated finance costs ROBLIHER (133,177)
Income tax expense FEHAY (15698)
Non-controlling interests FilER (85)
Operating profit for the year EATREEAER
attributable to owners of REEZEERR
the Company 639,085
Major non-cash items TEFRGER
- Unrealised fair value changes on - RENE AER
investment properties (including ATEED(RERE
share of results of investments WEREARRE 2
accounted for using the equity £ )
method) 524,271
- Deferred tax expense - ERRER R (11,127
Profit for the year attributable FORERARLE
to owners of the Company REE 2R 1,152,235
Core profit for the year attributable %73 #%5 AEfs
to owners of the Company REEZRDER 639,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

, a2 N /—\ Al L
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESE®
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position REMBMRRER
At 31 December 2022 R-B-Z—F+=-F=+—H
Unlisted
leasi Listed Investments  investments,
Property Properg eésmg equity  and treasury investment Al
development Ll investments products  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FuTocl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BREMEE BRBR
AR NRE FLHRE.
APEZ AYEZ REZRR
NERRREE 2 *2E  LTRARE RERMEER BERE  FEEHSE g8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn FEn TER TEn FEn TEn TEn
Assets i
Segment assets AREE
- Hong Kong -Ei 216,170 2,556,174 5,941,338 109,766 350,351 310,488 236,041 9,720,328
- United Kingdom -34 - 902,062 6,073,410 - - - - 6,975,472
~Mainland China - hERE 110,556 - 2,659 - - 740 - 113,955
- Other countries - BER - - - - 251,138 290,596 - 541,734
Investments accounted for WEREAR 2 KA
using the equity method
- Hong Kong -E% 51,79 81393 1396670 - - 1615 9485 1800959
Advances to associates BNBERANE
- Hong Kong - &7 1,947 - 149 - - 2 1225 3,323
- Mainland China - RERE - - 39,422 - - - - 39,422
Reportzble segment assets 2HHEEE 380,469 3839620 13453648 109,766 601,489 603,441 U6T5 19235193
Assets dlassified as held for sale aRELE AR 27,602
Unallocated corporate assets AARLATEE 171,720
Consolidated total assets GREEDE 19,434,515
Liabilities aff
Segment liabiles AEAE
~ Hong Kong -E3 36,067 15,394 107,305 18 19 11837 9375 180,190
- United Kingdom - 48 - 14,060 142,389 - - - - 156,449
~Mainland China - hEAE 59 - 2,267 - - 2 - 2,328
- Other countries - EHER - - - - 625 3 - 628
Reportable segment liabilties BEE G- 36,126 29,454 251,961 18 819 11,802 9,375 339,595
Unallocated corporate liabiiies ESIE PANGLL 5,092,077
Consolidated total abilties FraBaE 5,431,672
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE
(other than financial instruments (2RI ARET
and deferred tax assets) HEEERM - 19,468 320,780 - - 14 124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fade)

ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Other Material Items

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Interest income
Finance income (costs)

Net income (expenses)

Depreciation of:
— Property, plant and equipment
- Right-of-use assets
Fair value changes on investment properties
Share of results of investments accounted for
using the equity method
Income tax expense

Non-controlling interests

MBBA
HBWAER)
WA FR)F8

nE:

-WE  BEREE
- EREEE
BENE NTES
BEUESEARRE
ES

FERAX

SRR IE RS

HiEKRIER

BEr—F-_—_F+-HA=1+—-HILFE

Consolidated

Adjustments  Adjustments  statement of

Reportable for unallocated

for major comprehensive

segments items non-cash items income

FAOBER TEFRLER RAE2E

CES: vk o i ZRE Ka@ExR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TERT TERL THER

40,195 - - 40,195

56 (133,177) - (133,121)

40,251 (133,177) - (92,926)

- (62,983) - (62,983)

- (57,045) - (57,045)

- - 528,481 528,481

49,585 - (4,204) 45,381

- (15,698) (11,127) (26,825)

- (85) - (85)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_A=+—HILtFE

Jaya Ry
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESHE®@
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income FEXHEBFERR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -_—F1+_HA=1—HIFFE
Unlisted
. Listed Investments investments,
Property Propery lezsing equty  and treasury investment Al
development NRER investments products holding and ofher
and trading Retail Non-retai atAvTocl at FVTPL brokerage segments Consolidated
BBALEE BB
WA R ARE  ELTRE-
ATE2 NTEZ RERRR
NEYRRER e #EE LARERE RERMEER BB FEEMHE A
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
Tan T Fian TR TEn Fian TR Tn
Major cash items excluding WAL ZEE
in revenue REER
- Hong Kong -E% - - - 1530430 2670370 - ~ 4200800
— Other countries - EpBER - - - - 3,589,737 - - 3,589,737
- - - 1530430 6260107 - - 7790537
Revenue WA
Dividend and interestincome and R 8 RFIEMALAR
gain on sales of investments HEREEEZ
held-fortrading REWE
- Hong Kong -BE 500 - - 156,520 202,419 - 700 360,139
- Other countries - £ftBIx - - - - 308,709 - - 308,709
Revenue from external customers RENBEPZIA
~ Hong Kong -&E - 36,253 128,355 - - 6,325 61,845 232,778
- United Kingdom - 5B - 40,287 121,998 - - - - 162,285
— Mainland China - hEXE 235462 - 453 - - - - 235915
235,962 76,540 250,806 156,520 511,128 6,325 62,545 1,299,826
Revenue (excluding dividend income A (X ERREEL R
from segments of property NEBESBZREMA
development and trading and B
property leasing) 235462 76540 250,806 156,520 511,128 6325 62,5545 1299326
Attributable property sales from FlEBENR/ EERE
associates/investee company NANEHE
- Hong Kong -EE 2372246 - - - - - - 23746
Attributable rental revenue from FElEBENR/ BXRE
associates/investee company AEHESYA
- Hong Kong - B - 18,343 43339 - - - - 61682
— Mainland China N - 33375 8970 - - - - 42,345
2,607,708 128258 303,115 156,520 511,128 6325 62545 3775599
Results ES |
Segment results RS
- Hong Kong . 500 33,189 122276 156829 (474582) (843) 38,149 (124482)
- United Kingdom - KE - 29,854 105,952 - - 12 - 135818
— Mainland China - REIARE 17,297 - 259 - - 3,364 - 20,920
- Other countries - EpER - - - - (1,663,404) 17,906 - (1,645,498)
17,197 63,043 228487 156,829 (2,137,986) 20,439 38,149 (1,613,242)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Contd) 8. EETEmW
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZERERERE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -_—F1+_HA=1—HIFFE

Unlisted
. Listed Investments investments,
Property Propert leasing equty  and treasury investment Al
development L investments products holding and other
and trading Retail Non-reai at V1ol at FVTPL brokerage segments Consolidated
BBEMEE BRER
Desits IARE FLETRE
AFEZ NFEZ BRERBRR
NEERREE T8 #EE LARERE RERMEER GERy  FEEMHE A
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tk Fin Tign L T Fitn L Fién
Share of results of investments accounted B 5 A s E AR E Z
for using the equity method x5
~ Attributable property sales, net - EENEHEFE
- Hong Kong -&B 4,994 - - - - - - 4,994
- Attributable gross income - EERALE
- Hong Kong -EE - 17,103 43,064 - - - 2257 62,424
—Mainland China - PE AR - 33375 8970 - - - - 42,345
- Attributable operating cost - EEEERA
- Hong Kong -F% - (1373) (8294) - - - - (9667)
~ Mainland Ching - REIARE - (17,369) (3,386) - - - - (20754)
22,791 94,780 268,841 156,829 (2,137,986) 20,439 40,406 (1,533,900)
Other income 0T ON 7,059 3,059 3527 - - - - 13,645
Finance costs BER - - - (6833) (75503) - - (14,336)
Share of results of investments accounted B G AR EARRE 2
for using the equity method 25
- Income tax, impaiment loss -MER - 0% BER
in respect of property, plant REZAEBENR
and equipment, and others Hp (1,220) (154,134) (11,146) - - - (351) (166,851)
28630 (56,295) 216122 14999  (2145489) 20439 40055 (1,701,442)
Unallocated items AHBIER
Unallocated corporate expenses, net K A% 2 AAIELFE (292,989)
Unallocated finance costs FHEHBER (90,140)
Income tax expense FEHAS (33,188)
Non-controlling interests FRRER (1,757)
Operating loss for the year RARER AR
attributable to owners of rEEVEERR
the Company (2,119516)
Share of realised fair value changes WX@J* AR L
on disposal of an investment RAGHE-RRENE
property of an associate recognised 2 EERATFELE
in current year 125
Major non-cash items TEFESER
~ Unrealised fair value changes on - REMEIARH
investment properties (including RTEZY(BERE
share of results of investments SERENRRE
accounted for using the equity £)
method) (1395914)
Loss for the year attributable RARER AL
to owners of the Company rEEZER (3,515305)
Core loss (excluding major BOBE(TEETE
non-cash items) FRLER) (2,119516)
Operating loss for the year NG PN
attributable to owners of rEECEERR
the Company
Share of accumulated realised ~ H{E—EBEAARLE
fair value changes on disposal ~ —BRENEZ
of an investment property of ZHECERATEED
an associate
- Recognised in current year - REEEHR 125
~ Recognised in prior years - RBAEERR 832
Core loss for the year attributable %72 F#45 AfEf5
to owners of the Company REEZHROER (2.118559)
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, a2 N /—\ 3 .
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Contd) 8. EES5¥wm
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FEMBERREE
At 31 December 2021 RZFEZ—F+=ZH=4+—H
Unlisted
s Listed Investments investments,
Property Prope\rty%ﬁe?ismg equty  and treasury investment Al
development NAER investments products holding and ofher
and trading Retail Non-retai atAvTocl at FVTPL brokerage segments Consolidated
BAEMAE FRER o
Desiirts DRE EETRE.
AFEy  AFEZ REERR
NELRRER TE ¥2E  LARARE RERMEER EREE  FREEMAE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tién T TiEn TEn Tin TiEn T Tin
Assets 4B
Segment assets HEEE
- Hong Kong - B 1,080,356 1,786,593 6917591 407,388 366326 300,797 209605 1106865
- United Kingdom - B - 1,006,804 6,139,358 - - - - 7,146,162
~ Mainland China - REARE 290,093 - 28,790 - - 680 - 319,563
— Other countries - EpBExR - - - - 341,798 426,427 - 768,225
Investments accounted for INEREARZRE
using the equity method
- Hong Kong - Bk 49246 427,869 1,605,929 - - 1,788 101735 2095005
~ Mainland China - REKKE - - 91 - - - - 91
Advances to associates ARBENFTE
- Hong Kong -EE 1912 - 127 - - 3 1224 3,266
~ Mainland China - REARE - - 46794 - - - - 4679
Reportable segment assets AERHBEE 1,421,607 3,221,266 14,738,680 407,388 708,124 729,695 221,002 21,447,762
Unallocated corporate assets Ko7 NFEE 149,508
Consolidated total assets GREELSE 21,597,070
Liabilities 8%
Segment liabilties AEERE
- Hong Kong -B% 35939 22,782 114,854 27 4,346 10922 6,160 195,030
- United Kingdom - ER@ - 15,539 176,054 - - - - 191,593
~ Mainland China - hEAE 47 - 35 - - 2 - 84
~ Other countries - EpER - - - - 6 6 - 12
Reportable segment liabiliies A2HENEERE 35986 38,321 290,943 27 4352 10930 6,160 386,719
Unallocated corporate liabiliies box: A=Y 6811521
Consolidated total liabilities GARBERE 7,198,240
Additions to non-current assets ¥ RBEERE
(other than financial instruments ~ ($BIAREE
and deferred tax assets) HEEER) - 20,157 382,900¢ - - 282 335
* included the acquisition of investment properties of Pinwheel * BIEEBUWIE — BB AR EEKLIRE
Investments Limited (“Pinwheel”) through acquisition of a BRAF(KEA]) 21 EYE (I5E38)

subsidiary (Note 38)
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Other Material Items

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Interest income
Finance costs

Net income (expenses)

Depreciation of:
~ Property, plant and equipment
- Right-of-use assets

Fair value changes on
investment properties

Share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity
method

Income tax expense

Non-controlling interests

MERA
HHER
LONGEIE

FE:
-0% EERAR
- FRREE
BEWEIATES

BrNEDENRREZ
£

AR
FHERER

8. ZEDE®»

HiEKRIER

RE MR

HE—F-_—F+-A=+—HIFE

Consolidated

Adjustments Adjustments Adjustments statement of

Reportable for unallocated for realised fair for major comprehensive

segments items value changes non-cash items income

AHEER EERATE  IEFRER FazE

PEE ZHE 2YIRE 2B Wik

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAR TAR TAT TER TAR

320437 - - - 320437

(14336) (90,140) - - (104,476)

306,101 (90,140) - - 215961

- (56,355) - - (56,355)

- (68,417) - - (68417)

- - - (1376616) (1376,616)

(87,509) - 125 (19.298) (106,682)

- (33,189) - - (33,188)

- (1757) - - (1,757)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HfzlrA
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Included in other income are: HAb WA B IE:
Rental services income HERBMA 3,354 3,250
Leasing administration services and MEFBTTE RS & ) 1T B AR 75
property administration services income 1 ON 4,806 4,762
Advisory and consultancy services income o B R R AR S A 38 32
Government subsidy — Employment Support IRAT I EL — (MRS ZEIEHEI (M FE)
Scheme (note) 4,697 -
Dilapidations settlement received from tenants L B 2 mAE P U 2
in respect of properties in the United Kingdom FEE A 2,487 436
Overprovision of reinstatement costs in respect of — BLAFAYIZE 2 IS AN B SR BB
leased properties 1,200 -
Overprovision of costs in respect of MIBEEIER 2 KA BERE
a development project - 7,059
Consultancy fee income EISE- T ON - 23,486
Reversal of allowance for credit losses recognised PEWE ZRIER D 2 EEEER
in respect of trade receivables, net B R FE - 3,046
Exchange gain, net P& 5 W e F 58 - 16,955

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the government
subsidy was granted under Employment Support Scheme which
aims to retain employment under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

10. INVESTMENT EXPENSES, NET

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss:

Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of bonds
Realised gain (loss) arising from change in
fair value of bonds
— Change in fair value
— Exchange component of change

Net loss arising from change in
fair value of bonds

Unrealised gain (loss) arising from change in
fair value of structured product

Realised loss arising from change in
fair value of structured products

Net loss arising from change in
fair value of structured products

Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of investments held-for-trading

Unrealised gain arising from change in

fair value of club and corporate debentures
Realised loss arising from change in

fair value of a corporate debenture
Net gain (loss) arising from change in

fair value of club and corporate debentures

Financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss:
Unrealised gain arising from change in
fair value of cross currency swap
Realised (loss) gain arising from change in
fair value of cross currency swap

Net (loss) gain arising from change in

fair value of cross currency swaps
Other investment income (expenses), net

Interest income from other financial assets

10. REBRXFHE

BEBENRBRATEFEZ
TREE
BEFZAVEEDMELZ

REHRER
BHEZATEESMEEZ

2 &R W (F18)

- R TEEH

- B &

1R

SRR AFESH
T 2 2 ok s (5 8)
SRR ATES
M2 B SRR
SRR ATES

M 2 B8

FIEEBEZREZATER
MEL Z REHEE

ERRAAESZ AT EEDY

ZFEY e
ARES 2 AFEE

BHEATES ATES
et 2 g (K548 5 38

BBAR U RRATEH B
SRAE/BME
SRy ATES

M 2 AR BB
EHRE Y ATEED
Mt 2 B 2R U518 K
EH Y ATES
M 2 (6518) a6 5 18

Hip WA FI) 5

Hiv e BEEFSBRA

RE MR

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx T
(160,172) (606,93 1)
179 (1,683,815)
76 15,774
(159,917) (2,274,972)
5 (1,160)
(574) (13,449)
(569) (14,609)
(158,105) (339,614)
2,432 4,944
- (8,850)
2,432 (3,906)
1,250 1,623
(1,623) 111
(373) 1,734
8,468 (1,704)
16,937 4,195
(291,127) (2,628,876)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & FH+ZA=T—HIFE

E2-F

11. FINANCE COSTS

RE MR

11. I E R

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Interest on: A
Bank borrowings RITEE 129,783 80,740
Other borrowings HipfEE 5 10,583
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,173 1,834
Total interest (Note 40) #2458 (i sE40) 130,961 93,157
Exchange (gain) loss on translation of foreign SNEERTT R A MEE
currency bank and other borrowings, net P& 5 () 51855 (932) 5,596
Other finance costs Hab B 158 A 7,567 8,072
137,596 106,825
Less: Interest capitalised to investment properties W B AR E Y
under construction BEAR 2T & (4,475) (2,349)
133,121 104,476

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group ha
capitalised borrowing costs at a rate of 2.49% (2021: 1.31%
per annum, amounting to approximately HK$4,475,000 (2021
HK$2,349,000) on qualifying assets.

REBEE-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—BILtEE
RNEEDIREFR249E (T = —F : 1.3]
B ERTAEREEENM ZBEERSR
#74,475,000/8 T(ZE = —4 : 2,349,000/

7T) °

S

)

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 12. ez K &8

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T

Allowance for credit losses recognised in respect of ~ BLEVS B S R RIFUBEER 2
advances to associates EEBBEE (7.421) 47)

Loss on deregistration and striking off of subsidiaries  Ff{/& 72 =188 v it & 51 k& =10

el = (10) 3)

Reversal of financial guarantee on striking off of B QB Sk
an associate B E v WS ER (91) -
(7.522) (50)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FREBiR <
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
The charge comprises: ZHBLE
Current tax: EHITOA
Hong Kong Profits Tax FENED 2,316 4,981
Other than Hong Kong BB LASN [ 16,781 22,080
19,097 27,061
Overprovision in prior years: T F R
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERENEH (877) (121)
Other than Hong Kong HAB AN R (2,635) (2,634)
(3,512) (2,755)
Deferred tax: (Note 28) EIERIE ¢ (fIFE28)
Current year charge REEH 11,240 8,882
26,825 33,188
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 BEMNESHMAE  AEKREBEEY
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and 2,000,0007% 7T 2 Jai F #G 2 5 % 8.25% =R T
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits i #8#52,000,000/% 7T 2 i F) 1§ H= # £ 16.5%
of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates R THEFEHMAG 2 EEEE 2R
regime are taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%). The PRC AR —BE165% (=T =—4F : 16.5%)*
Enterprise Income Tax for the PRC subsidiaries are calculated at the B o BT A Bz Bl EFT S TR i
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25% (2021: 25%). The Group EMEHE250(ZT = —F : 2500)5HH o
is subject to tax rate in the United Kingdom at 199 (2021: 19%). REBREBIZEHE19%(ZF=—F : 19%)
Taxation arising from other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates i o Bt RDERERE 4 2 BIATDIRA M RDE
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. REEIRITHERAHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contd) 13. iEHBEX @

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit REE 2SR T HEEE 2ERERE 2B
(loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive T ADE M (B 18) $IRRA T
income as follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TERT THET
Profit (loss) before tax BREL AR T (B18) 1,179,145 (3,480,360)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BRERRIBHTIE16.5%
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (ZZ=—%  16.5%)
HEZBIE 194,559 16.5 (574,259) 16.5
Tax effect of share of results of investments BEAEDEARREZ
accounted for using the equity method ES i % (7,488) (0.6) 17,603 (0.5)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BT = EARTBA
tax purposes IRBRE (300,894) (25.5) (107,685) 3.1
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for BB E A TMARS
tax purposes BB E 93,071 7.9 597,171 (17.2)
Tax effect on accelerated accounting B BERE MR EE
depreciation over tax depreciation TEBBRBIEL
previously over provided kit 4 323 - 3,805 (0.1)
Utilisation of tax losses previously BRENARERZ
not recognised RBEE (1,413) (0.1) (5,384) 0.2
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ABRZHBER
RETE 44,266 3.7 90,214 (2.6)
Overprovision in prior years BTFEREBEB (3,512) (0.3) (2,755) 0.1
Reversal of deferred tax assets previously BELRERZ
recognised EERIEEE 2,538 0.2 12,253 0.4)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBERREE 2
operating in other jurisdictions MELRE ﬂ%Z
TRBEz 2 5,375 0.5 2,225 0.1)
Tax charge for the year REFEHIERL M 26,825 2.3 33,188 (1.0)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

14. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 14. REEGEF (B8)
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at REE N (E518)
after (charging) crediting: EHBR)EA
Total staff costs: BB AMERE -
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments EEXK(BREESHE) (136,921) (133,298)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RERIETEIGER - HIBRE
net of forfeited contributions of nil SRR AT
(2021: approximately HK$188,000) (ZF=—F : #188,000/57T) (8,615) (8,319)
(145,536) (141,617)
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services: ZERTS 2 = BRI & -
Auditors of the Company A RZERAD
— Current year - KEE (2,038) (2,101)
Other auditors H A A% BiAD
— Current year - KEE (542) (549)
— Underprovision in prior years - BEFERETR (33) (1)
(2,613) (2,651)
Auditors’ remuneration for non-audit services: BRI EEN &
Auditors of the Company PN/NEE 7% 4] (100) (3,100)
Depreciation of: e
— Property, plant and equipment - % - BB NEHE (62,983) (56,355)
— Right-of-use assets - EREEE (57,045) (68,417)
(120,028) (124,772)
Exchange loss, net bE 5 B 185 58 (22,354) -
Rental expenses from short-term leases MR EsHeRE (2,202) (601)
Cost of trading properties sold HEETWE AR - (214,466)
Cost of cosmetics products sold SHE b 2 BOAR (6,170) (5,378)
Share of tax of investments accounted for using BA A REARIRE 2 1A
the equity method (included in share of (Bt ABEUERIEAR
results of investments accounted for RE 2 #EE)

using the equity method)
— Share of tax of associates - BhEE ARITIA (8,793) (9,265)

—EooEgR  2ABX£E 215
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14. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (contd) 14. XFEEEF (B8 @

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at RNEE i (E8)
after (charging) crediting: (Cont'd) B RRIEA - (88)
Gross proceeds on sales of investments HERFEECKREY
held-for-trading FRiSTRIBMEEE 1,486,761 3,977,747
Carrying amount of investments HEREEBECREY
held-for-trading disposed of BREE (1,455,081) (3,787,015)
Transaction costs on sales of investments HEREFEECREY
held-for-trading R G (3,048) (6,873)
Gain on sales of investments held-for-trading FARARZ HERBIEEE 2
included in revenue "E W 28,632 183,859
Gross rental income from investment properties HEMERSBALLTE 293,650 327,346
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment B AFREEEMESWAZ
properties that generated REMFEEELERX
rental income during the year (17,712) (10,623)
Direct operating expenses from investment REFWHMELEHESKAZ
properties that did not generate KREMEEERERX
rental income during the year (10,344) (25,193)
265,594 291,530
(Allowance for credit losses) reversal of MU TIEE (EEEERZE BD
allowance for credit losses recognised, net ZIEEHERBEER FRE
in respect of:
— Interest receivables from bonds - BEF 2 EIFIE (11,156) (11,885)
— Trade receivables - B E SERIE (1) 3,046
— Advances to associates — BARTEE A RIFIE (7.421) 47)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight

15. EEME

ENSENTNEG(CZE_—F: WR)EFF

(2021: nine) Directors were as follows: BrzHRE REMBEMT
2022 2021
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefit Salaries benefit
and other scheme and other scheme
Fee emoluments contributions Total Fee  emoluments  contributions Total
§eR BHER ek BIRER
he | Ht#e | HEMAR g ik Eiie HELS:S ek

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR ThR ThR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TEL TER TEL TERL

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai ABELE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan RelEat
(note (1)) (F3E()) - 100 5 105 - 100 5 105
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan Bt
(note (i) (P32 (i) - - - - - 188 19 207
Ms. Chan, Lok- wan Re#@LT - 880 76 956 - 881 75 956
Mr, Lam, Kwong-wai MBS E - 2,230 206 2,436 - 2,626 214 2,840
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai AFELL 240 - - 240 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai RER %4 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping ~ BBE &+ 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SREEE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
1,440 3,210 287 4,931 1440 3,795 313 5,548
Notes: MEE -

(i)  Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan was appointed as chief executive officer of the
Company with effect from 17 February 2021.

(i) Ms. Chan, Sze-wan resigned as executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from 17 February
2021.

No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

Details of material interests of the Directors in transactions,
arrangements or contracts entered into by subsidiaries of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed "Directors’ Report” of

this annual report.

() FBZt+tBE-_T-_—F_A++LBEE
ZEABRRRZITHABH -

iy MEFELZTE-Z—F-_A+LHRE
FRITE S RAR R 2T 2 B

BEEMEREE S _—FR T - —F+=
A=+—HALFERRERIETMAHE -

HARNRZIMBRRFILRZS - wHRAERZ

N
EEMNERNBZHBRAFRZIEETER

SEI-EHRRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B3R R KT
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE
16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 16. EEM<E
(@) Five highest paid individuals () EERSFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in AEEBREESME AT —R(CF
the Group, one (2021: one) was a Director, details of his ——F —B)REF  KzBesER
emoluments were included in Note 15. The emoluments of RS o HAMEZ(Z T Z—4F -
the remaining four (202 1: four) individuals were as follows: mE)ERIALZBSmT -
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries and other benefits e RHMER 7,803 7,819
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RURAE R B4R 699 656
8,502 8,475
The emoluments of the four (2021: four) individuals were ZNE(ZE-—F : IR ENALZ
within the following bands: BleREmT
Number of employees
EEAE
2022 2021
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,00177T — 2,500,000/ 7T 3 4
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no RBE_Z-_—_FR-_ZT_—F+2A
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid =E+—BILFERN  FNEEHERRS
individuals, or Director, as an inducement to join or upon PIAAREE sk A AN E E B ek 1E A B
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. BHEmMRAZOEEaTMALTHES
ZAHEEME -
(b) Emoluments of senior management (b) EREEEzHE
All (2021: two) senior management whose profiles are 1= G B EREEEH

included in the section headed “Profiles of Senior Executives”
of this annual report and their emoluments have been
disclosed in the five highest paid individuals (Note 16(a)). For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the emolument of the
remaining one senior management was within the band of
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000.

218 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ’:‘ﬂ‘i#ﬁf%—%&ﬁﬁ/\%%ﬂJ
— A S IR AR F e FA
T(MsE16(@))AN - BHEZT=Z—F+
ZA=T—HALFE e IaR
ERE M EeEEA1,000001FTE
1,500,0008 7T °



17.

18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

DIVIDENDS

No final dividend for 2021
(2020: HK1 cent per share)

On 17 August 2022, the board of Directors had resolved not to
declare any interim dividend for 2022 (2021: nil).

No final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil)

has been recommended by the board of Directors.
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

17.

18.

W - T —FRERE
(ZZ=ZF : gR1UEI) -

Hﬁ /%\
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
19,076

RZE-—FNA+LtH EFEHATER
EA=E—_—FFHRE (T =—F : &) -

EEGTEBRNBE_Z__F+_/A=+
—HLEFEZREEE(CE_—F &) -

BREBFN(EER)

ARBAEBEANREZEREAREERH (B
B)TRBEATBRE -

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Earnings (loss): B (EE)
Eamnings (loss) for the purposes of basic and STHSRERNEE RN (B1E)
diluted earnings (loss) per share 2 BF (&)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to RNRRHANEIERFEE 2
owners of the Company w5 E) 1,152,235 (3,515,305)
Number of shares
R & B
2022 2021
Number of shares: BINEE -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares T ESRER NG RN (B18)
for the purposes of basic and diluted Z BRI T8
earnings (loss) per share 1,907,619,079  1,907,619,079

Diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 were the same as the basic earnings (loss) per
share as there were no potential ordinary shares of the Company in

issue during both years.

HE-_EZ--FR-_F-—F+-HA=+—H
WEFE - BRARRA R EBE LB 31T -
W iR ES E s SR s AR (BB Be Rk
ERBF(EE)ER -

—E-CFER
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RE MR

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWE

220 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Properties
Completed under
properties construction Total
R WE R E Pk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET R FAT
Fair value AFE
At 1 January 2021 R—E-_—F—H—H 13,462,283 911,000 14,373,283
Acquisition of assets through acquisition & i@ W& —FEIHI B A A
of a subsidiary (Note 38) Welg & = (B 5E38) 160,959 - 160,959
Costs incurred for construction REIFATEA Z KA - 214,409 214,409
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B EZEW¥ - BE K
(Note 20) 45 (B 5220) (42,717) - (42,717)
Transfer to properties under construction B = Sl AR 4 2 (3,266,141) 3,266,141 -
Exchange adjustments T H P (55,899) 18,742 (37,157)
Decrease in fair value recognised in WiFa 2 E KR
the consolidated statement of WME PR
comprehensive income RNEERD
— unrealised - KRB (277,134) (1,099,482) (1,376,616)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+=ZRA=+—8H 9,981,351 3,310,810 13,292,161
Additions NE 15,459 - 15,459
Costs incurred for construction BERPTE S Z KR - 305,934 305,934
Transfer to assets classified as EREIARFELE
held for sale (Note 33) 2 B E (ffEE33) (27,602) - (27,602)
Exchange adjustments PE H T % (461,478) (283,831) (745,309)
(Decrease) increase in fair value RérE 2 ERE
recognised in the consolidated HwERPERZ
statement of comprehensive income DFECED)E
— unrealised - REHR (106,781) 635,262 528,481
Carrying amounts FREE
At 31 December 2022 HR-E-—HF
+=A=+—H 9,400,949 3,968,175 13,369,124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

There was no change in valuation techniques used for the fair value
measurement of the Group’s investment properties, as compared

with those in last year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was a change in
valuation technique for a property situated in the United Kingdom
and a property situated in Hong Kong. Due to the Group's plan
for redevelopment of the property in the United Kingdom, the
carrying amount of the property was transferred from the completed
properties class of investment properties to properties under
construction class of investment properties. Consequently, the
valuation technique for the fair value measurement of the property
had been changed from a combination of direct comparison method
and investment method to residual method. The change in valuation
techniques for a property in Hong Kong was due to the then
economic conditions and pandemic outbreak, whereby the relevant
markets became less active and the market evidence became less
available and reliable. Consequently, the valuation technique for the
fair value measurement of the property had been changed from
direct comparison method to combination of direct comparison

method and investment method.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

As at 31 December 2022, valuations of investment properties of the
Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China were carried out by B.I.
Appraisals Limited (“B.l. Appraisals”) and the investment properties
in the United Kingdom were carried out by LCH (Asia-Pacific)
Surveyors Limited (“LCH (Asia-Pacific)”), both are independent
qualified professional property valuers (2021: valuations of
investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China and one of
the investment properties in the United Kingdom were carried out
by LCH (Asia-Pacific) whereas the remaining investment properties
in the United Kingdom were carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”), both are independent qualified
professional property valuers). The valuers have recent relevant
experience in the valuations of similar properties in the relevant

locations.

19. REW )

AEFRREME 2 X FEAEMFRZHER
MEEFARABNT EEE -

REBE_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIEERN
—BUREEZYER—BAREBZME L
HERMEMEE - BRANEEERZAE
MEETYHEER - AR YWEZREE
HMINEMEZ ERDESFEREREMEZ
BIERYE S - Bt - ZWERATEE
ZERNEHERELBEREE L& HE
BEFREEE ER—BUREBZWEZ
HERMTE S BN E R 2 EBERR REIEE
BB S E BB NER A R MG HE R

8> RERNA] S o Bt - SR ER AT ER
gZﬁ@&ﬁEﬁEE%F&LMEE%mﬁ
ERREEZEH -

AEBEMBRAZEBHURRESREKRIE
BrWERGDRBATEERNE - UH8
ROEREMENR

WZZE-—F+-F=+—8 KEBUNE
BRRBIARE 2R EMEHRRABERTHER
DA (MRIABIE T D #TT(EE - AR RE
ZRBEMEHRFBETAEMAR AR (TFET
BIERDETHE MENABILSEREE
MEGBEMCZEZ—F  AREARFEKR
BEZIRBMEARE P —IBUREE 2 IREY)
EAFBTRAEMETHE ML TR ER
ZEREYERRETHARA R (DRI
EITHE MEVRBLAGEREEMEMRGE
BD) o fi (B RM 3T BA IR A BT (4 AR A B KR A 2
%X
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the Group
discussed with the independent qualified professional property
valuers about the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for

Level 3 fair value measurements.

The valuation reports for the investment properties as at
31 December 2022 were signed by the respective directors of B.I.
Appraisals and LCH (Asia-Pacific) (2021: signed by the respective
directors of LCH (Asia-Pacific) and Peak Vision Appraisals), who are
members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The valuations were performed in
accordance with “The HKIS Valuation Standards 2020" published by
The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or “International Valuation
Standards” published by the International Valuation Standards Council
(2021: "The HKIS Valuation Standards 2020" published by The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or “The RICS Valuation — Global
Standards issued November 2021" published by The Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and/or “International Valuation Standards”

published by the International Valuation Standards Council).

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined
at the end of each reporting period based on its market value and
by adopting investment method, direct comparison method and/or
residual method, as appropriate. The investment method relying on
the capitalisation of rental income is based upon estimates of future
results and a set of assumptions specific to each property to reflect
its tenancy status. The fair value of each investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current term leases, term
yield rate, assumptions about rental income from future reversion
leases in light of current market conditions and reversionary yield
rate. Judgment by the valuers is required to determine the principal
valuation factors, including term yield rate and reversionary yield
rate. Such yield rates were adopted after considering the investment
sentiments and market expectations of properties of similar nature.
Direct comparison method assumes each of these properties is
capable of being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant markets. Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method takes the valuation results of the
direct comparison method and investment method when arriving
at the fair value of the properties. For investment properties under
construction at fair value, their fair values are determined by residual
method by deducting the estimated total outstanding redevelopment
costs and an allowance for developer's risk and profit from the gross

development value of the proposed redevelopment.

222 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

19. REW )

R|ERAR  AEEZERBRBUAERE
EMELEMTRBEEABZHERTRE=
MATEFEZETEEE -

RZZEZZF+-_A=+—8 REMEZK
EREHRBERFERMETHEN(=F
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REMBGMRH 2 ERAEMB T HE
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B EGRRM Z[ BB BB G HER
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MZ[EXRFFHAEMBGHE - 2RERR
TR —F+—-ARM IR REER A ER
BEGMBAM 2 BTG ER ) ETT -

BEEREMEZ AFERERERRRIEED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REY X @)
The following tables analysed the investment properties which TRARBRERRUAFEAZZREMEZ
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period ZESBH(ERRBEBUYBHME LR FE 1358
into the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value [N FER 2R3V — P ) AT ©

Measurement” which is further elaborated in Note 3.

Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
A¥E EF—R -t 11} E=H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT FHET FET
Recurring fair value REEQNFETE:
measurements:
Completed properties SERK 9,400,949 - - 9,400,949
Properties under construction SR Egesky B 3,968,175 - - 3,968,175
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_F
+=-B=+—H 13,369,124 - - 13,369,124
Completed properties -3 7ES 9,981,351 - - 9,981,351
Properties under construction HHEER Y 3,310,810 - - 3,310,810
At 31 December 2021 R-TEZ—%F
+ZA=+—8 13,292,161 - - 13,292,161
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Details of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on

investment properties which are categorised as Level 3 fair value

measurement at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Properties held for investment
in Hong Kong
URER < BERENE

Properties under construction
in Hong Kong
fIREE 2 RRNE

Properties held for investment
in the United Kingdom
REE 2 BERENE

Properties under construction
in the United Kingdom
frsEc BRhE

Properties held for investment
in Mainland China

i EAR 2 B ERENE

Total
fam

Fair value Valuation techniques
NYE BRI
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn TAL
5,443,800 5687300  Combination of direct
comparison method and
investment method
ERLEERREL 260
1,179,000 776600  Residual method
HBEEE
3,957,149 4265430  Combination of direct
comparison method and
investment method
EELBERREEZ M0
2,789,175 2534210  Residual method
NeBEE
- 28621 Direct comparison method
ERIEE
13,369,124 13,292,161
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19. REW )

RBEMROBRE-BAVEFEZREY
EZEERERZEMEEEEEZFIBW

_{

Significant unobservable inputs

EXFTBRNE

(1) Reversionary yield;
BEHE

(2) Market rent per square foot; and
BYARZmHHE R

(3) Selling price per square foot

FYIRZER

(1) Selling price per square foot; and
BYTRZEE: R

(2) Budgeted construction costs
to be incurred
REL BERENRE

(1) Reversionary yield;
REH%

(2) Market rent per square foot ; and
BYARZIEHE R

(3) Selling price per square foot
BYARZER

(1) Budgeted construction costs
to be incurred;
REL BRRERA :

(2) Market rent per square foot;
BYARZMHEE

(3) Discount rate; and
BRE R

(4) Long-term growth rate
REPERE

Selling price per square metre
BYAKZER

Range
#E

2.70% to 4.00%

(2021: 2.10% to 3.50%)
270EZ400E

(ZE-—F:210EF3508)
HK$36 to HK$220

(2021: HK$33 to HK$300)
BETE20ET

(ZE-—F : ZBETEI0057T)
HK$60 to HK$18,000

(2027: HK$58 to HK$138,300)
0BT E 180007

(ZZ=-% :588nE

138,300 7T )
HK$13,100 (2021 HK$13,000)
13,1008 (2=~ : 13,0004 7)
HK$542,686,000

(2021: HK$739,000,000)
542,686,000

(ZF Z—% : 739,000000/&7T)

3.60% to 4.20%

(20271: 2.75% to 4.75%)
360EZ4.20E

(ZE-—F ) 75ER4T75E)
(BP4 to GBP8

(2021: GBP4 to GBP10)
ARGEYRE

(CE-—% 4HEET1058)
(BP1,850 to (BP3,060
18508 823 0604 &

CBP316963000

(2021: CBP360,364,000)
316963000248

(ZE—7F : 36036400055)
(BP3 to GBPS

(2021: GBP3 to GBPS)
IRGESEE

(CE--F  3EERSEE)
449%to 5.6% (2021: 4.5% 10 5.0%)
4AEZ56E(CT=—F  45EZ50E)
2.0% (2021: 2.0%)
20E(CE=-F 208

N/A (2021: RMB96200)
TER(ZEZ—F : \R%96,200)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Reversionary yield is the rate taking into account the capitalisation
of potential rental income, nature of the property and prevailing
market conditions. Market rent per square foot is the market rent and
selling price per square foot/square metre is the market selling price
taking into account the direct comparable market transactions to the
related properties. Budgeted construction costs to be incurred are
the construction costs to be expended to complete the properties.
Discount rate applied reflects the current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the property. Long-term

growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts.

The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the
reversionary yield, the budgeted construction costs to be incurred
and the discount rate, while positively correlated to the market rent
per square foot, the selling price per square foot/square metre and

the long-term growth rate.

19. REWME

EHEHmEFREERASRAERE - W%
HERERTRAFHZEE - §FHTRZTS
Me T REENE TSI HERLELBRR S
BHzmBHEE MBFHRFHRZEE
TEt REBAMEZ TS A HEREBRR SEH
ZHGEE  BEEZAERZERNATIR/TK
MER G RERAR - FIRAZMEXRR
BRID I 5 R R EE R E 2 ER B AT
- REPERETDENMERBITR ZIBRIBA -

AFEBRERERE - BEE 2 BHRE
RARBRERRL - ARSTFHIR2 55
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RIEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REYE )
Movements of investment properties which are categorised as Level 3 PRERE-RATEAEZREMERFANZ
fair value measurement during the years are as follows: T
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1 January R—A—H 13,292,161 13,531,005
Additions NE 15,459 -
Costs incurred for construction FREARFATE A 2 KA 305,934 214,409
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale BREEIRFIEFHECEE
(Note 33) (F17E33) (27,602) -
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of FRWE—EMBATWEEE
a subsidiary (Note 38) (Ft5E38) - 160,959
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EREYE  WEREE
(Note 20) (Hi3£20) = (42,717)
Transfer from Level 2 (note) s E S A (MRE) - 725,021
Exchange adjustments M H PR (745,309) (37,957)
Increase (decrease) in fair value recognised in RiFE 2 ERERERERZ
the consolidated statement of comprehensive DFEZB MO L)
income
— unrealised - KRB 528,481 (1,258,559)
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December Rt+t=A=+—H 13,369,124 13,292,161
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain properties BsT Eéﬁf:_g:—i‘l' —A=+—HIF
were transferred from Level 2 to Level 3, which was due to the FER - ETOERE_RBBEZE=R
lack of observable market data, resulting from a decrease in TABRZ A EBR 2 MSEE - IIAER
market activities for these investment properties. The Group's ZEREME 2 TISEERL I - K
policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of Level 3 as SEZBERRNEHERZ ZHHIER
at the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused HE s AHBERE=R2EAREY -
the transfer. Other than the above mentioned, there were no BRIA BRI - RBIZE_Z__FR_F
transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurement during the T+ A=t—HILEFERN =
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. BAFEFELEBASNEL -
In estimating the fair value of the properties, their current use M MEZRATE  MEZEMREERE
equates to the highest and best use of the properties. Tm REERR -

226 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Cost

At 1 January 2021

Additions

Transfer from investment
properties (Note 19)

Disposals/written off

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2021

Additions
Disposals/written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2022

Depreciation

At 1 January 2021

Charge for the year

Elimination upon disposals/
written off

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2021
Charge for the year
Elimination upon disposals/

written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2022

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

BA

NZ_EZ—F—f—

B

BEARANE
(FizE19)
&/

P& 5

RZE-—F—f—

AERHE
&SR

A%

i —
tZA=+-H
AEEME

& /s 3

L3RG

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RE MR

20. ¥1% - BEK&RE

Leasehold/ Furniture, Yachts and
freehold Leasehold fixtures and motor
land  Buildings improvement equipment vehicles Total
BE/
KAERE HE &
tit BF MELE HBERRE BEERER okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i i FEL FAL FEL FAHL
=] 27,658 4,820 59,505 37,832 139,481 269,296
- - 22,807 3,380 2,119 28,306
36,185 6,532 - - - 42,717
- - - (246) (839) (1,085)
1,018 179 - 17 - 1214
64,861 11,531 82,312 40,983 140,761 340,448
- - 3,819 14,085 1,089 18,993
= = (17,095) (3,809) (1,128)  (22,032)
(6,324) (1,126) (81) (66) - (,557)
58,537 10,405 68,995 51,193 140,722 329,852
H 3312 731 21,929 23,801 50,261 100,034
504 150 29,244 3,378 23,079 56,355
- - - (242) (839) (1,081)
105 24 - 15 - 144
3,921 905 51,173 26,952 72,501 155,452
489 258 34,662 4,026 23,548 62,983
= = (17,095) (3.806) (1,128)  (22,029)
(359) (88) 3) (48) = (498)
4,051 1,075 68,737 27,124 94,921 195,908
54,486 9,330 258 24,069 45,801 133,944
60,940 10,626 31,139 14,031 68,260 184,996
TECFFR ZA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 21.

LIABILITIES

The Group leases assets including properties and equipment. Most
of the leases of properties are negotiated for term ranging from one
to three years while leases of equipment are negotiated for five
years. Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is

presented below:

(@) Right-of-use assets

Cost %
At 1 January 2021 WZZE-_—F—H—H
Additions NE
Written off on expiry of leases TH 49 5 HA I Hlf 88
At 31 December 2021 R —F+ZA=+—H
Additions NE
Written off on expiry of leases TH 49 5 A Bl 81
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-ZZF+=A=+—8H
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2021 WZE-Z—F—H—H
Charge for the year REFEIE
Elimination upon written off GERSEIEE S

on expiry of leases Eac|
At 31 December 2021 R-FB-_—F+-A=+—~H
Charge for the year REEHE
Elimination upon written off GERSEIEE S ES

on expiry of leases Eag:|
At 31 December 2022 REZBZZF+=A=+—H
Carrying amounts RRIE B
At 31 December 2022 REZBZZF+=A=+—H
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+_H=+—H
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EHEEERMEERR

AEEAR 2 BERBRYMERRZE - KB
EZHEOBBCENA—E=F  MREZHE
HWERZEBRESF - BREAKEEREABEA
ZHEHEEMZHMT

(a) EREEE

Properties Equipment Total
LIES BB e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT
206,862 1,232 208,094
- 1,944 1,944
(6,950) (1,232) (8,182)
199,912 1,944 201,856
89,237 - 89,237
(148,754) = (148,754)
140,395 1,944 142,339
80,955 924 81,879
67,979 438 68,417
(6,950) (1,232) (8,182)
141,984 130 142,114
56,656 389 57,045
(148,754) - (148,754)
49,886 519 50,405
90,509 1,425 91,934
57,928 1,814 59,742




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 21. EFREEEREEER®w
LIABILITIES (contd)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Lease liabilities payable within a period of: ARTIHEENEERE
Less than one year —FEUT 35,332 50,673
More than one year but within two years —F A BB 28,968 7,977
More than two years but within five years LI MRS EfaRag:S 24,276 1,060
88,576 59,710
Less: Amounts due within one year B —F AR 2 FIA (35,332) (50,673)
Amounts due after one year —F &5 2 5178 53,244 9,037
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are RERTRAEHEEZFERMT1I1R14
disclosed in Notes 11 and 14. RIKEE -
The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December HEZFT-Z_F+-_A=1+—HLFE #HE
2022 was approximately HK$64,015,000 (2021: HK$73,481,000). ZIRE ML EFEL /£64,0150008 T (Z T

—%£ 1 73,481,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

RE MR

2. B EE

Trading and
exchange
rights Trademark Total
EERESGRE EiE 4 zE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2021, R—E-_—%—HF—8-
31 December 2021 and —E-—F+ZA=+—HEK
31 December 2022 B+ _-A=+—H 2,705 14,300 17,005
Amortisation and impairment # 8 & f{E
At 1 January 2021, R—E-_—F—HF—8-
31 December 2021 and B —F+A=+—RHkK
31 December 2022 B+ -A=+—H 2,705 14,300 17,005
Carrying amounts FREE
At 31 December 2022 R=B=-=F+=A=+-—8 - - -
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+-A=+—H - - -

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such intangible

assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over five years.

23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

RO FHH -

23. LR ZEARZERE

biEPEERGRERRFEY WAL

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Interests in associates: BN EI RS
Cost of investments in associates o a= i A/NE] %N
— unlisted -3EEm 283,928 1,204,736
Share of post-acquisition profits/losses and BEERRET BB R
other comprehensive income/expenses, Hibz2mkes S
net of dividends received BB WS 1,557,031 890,360
1,840,959 2,095,096
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 December
2022 are set out in Note 48.

The Company provided corporate guarantees to secure bank
borrowings granted to its associates in prior years. The fair value of
the financial guarantee contract at initial recognition was determined
by an independent qualified professional valuer, and was recognised
as investments accounted for using the equity method and financial
guarantee liabilities in the Group'’s consolidated statement of financial

position.

As at 31 December 2022, the investment properties held by the
Group's principal associates were valued by B.l. Appraisals (2021:
LCH (Asia-Pacific)). B.l. Appraisals (2021: LCH (Asia-Pacific))
continues to adopt investment method and/or direct comparison
method as the valuation methodologies. The valuation methods
and significant assumptions applied in determining the fair values of

investment properties are detailed in Note 19.

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.

The information below reflects the amounts presented in the
unaudited financial statements of associates which were prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs adjusted for the differences arising from
accounting policies and different financial year-end dates between

the Group and the associates, if any.

23. LERZEARZEE®

AREFN - E-_—_F+-_A=+—B2FEH
ENRZFBEINHIFEAS o

ARRNBAEFELEBZERRRERFER
ERERRITEEZER - WHEERAONE
BRZATFERBLAEREXMGEMETE -
W ERANEE 2576 M BRI IRER AR B IA
R EARZIE KM HEREE -

MN-ZT-——F+-F=+—0 AEBTE8H
ERAFACRAYMEE ARBERTM®(Z
T —F  FIBITREM)ETER o RIAE
BEE(CS=—F - FIBTASMBERMR
BEER/ LEBELEEABGHERE - EAR
EEREMEATEZMETEREERERN
IS I

PRAH & R B ARRIEN AR S FEHERA
FIER -

AT &R BRI B E N R 2 RIEB R TERR
2228 REVBRRLZEBFBHREE
AN Rt AR S B R N A 2 ME S BR T E
EZZRRTRPFBERBRHINE)EHAE
m#ARH

—E-CFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 23, LERZEARZKRE®

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

Interests in associates

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

material associate, Finedale Industries Limited, is set out below:

BENTER

pull

AEBEEBERR - BHEXBERAAZ

AR ERIIT

Finedale Industries Limited EHBEEER AT
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Non-current assets EREEE 3,678,000 3,642,300
Current assets RBEE 84,479 731,318
Current liabilities EAE (74,340) (67,964)
Net assets BEFE 3,688,139 4,305,654
Revenue A 117,179 110,075
Profit for the year REE R 125,411 41,727
Total comprehensive income for the year REE2H M EE 125,411 41,727
Reconciliation of the summarised financial B AR m  FREE R
information presented to the carrying amount WIS AR E 4R -
of its interest in the associate:
Net assets at 1 January R—A—HZEEFE 4,305,654 4,263,927
Total comprehensive income for the year REEE2H =LA 125,411 41,727
Dividend declared FIRARE (742,926) -
Net assets at 31 December Rt+-_A=+—HZ2EE%RE 3,688,139 4,305,654
Interest held by the Group REEFE 2R 33.33% 33.33%
Group's interest in the associate and REBRZEERE 2
the carrying amount EmMEREE 1,229,380 1,435,218
Dividend received from the associate RAFEEE Y& A E 2R E
during the year 247,642 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 23, LERZEARZKRE®
THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

Interests in associates (Cont'd) BeEATER (@)
Aggregate financial information of associates that are not individually BRIFEE R AR IEAR A
material:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Group's share of results for the year REEBMORNFEES 3,577 (120,591)
Group's share of other comprehensive REBEBORFE
(expenses) income for the year Hi 2 (2 ) W= (160) 2,268
Group's share of total comprehensive REBEBORFE
income (expenses) for the year HERE (L) 858 3,417 (118,323)
Group's aggregate interests in these associates TEERZEHERTZ
and the carrying amounts T R FE N AR TENE 611,579 659,878
Dividend received from an associate RAFEER—EBELF 2
during the year [5:85) 51,625 -
24. ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES 24. BIHE A RIFEA
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Interest-bearing advance to an associate B — M E AR 2T BIE 39,422 46,794
Interest-free advances to associates BMBE QR 2 R EFIE 3,323 3,266
42,745 50,060
The advances to associates are unsecured. The Group will not BNEE R RFIBDEER c REBT@ER
demand for repayment within one year from the end of the reporting REE AR —FAEERE - WHEZER
period and the amounts are therefore shown as non-current. BIEIERBME - BN —HBERARIZFE
The interest-bearing advance to an associate bears interest at the IR B 2 TISEEFEER -

prevailing market rate.
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR 25. BBEBURMAFETFEZ

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS TRIEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Investments held-for-trading (note (i)) BEEE 218 E (FEG) 334,011 428,364
Bonds (note (i) &% (MHEE (i) 254,513 266,172
Structured product (note (iii)) 1R 2 o (PR Gi)) 4,005 6,840
Club and corporate debentures (note (iv)) e# R AFIESFFY)) 56,150 53,718
Derivative financial instrument (note (v)) PTESRTAEMTEV) 1,250 1,623
649,929 756,717

Analysed for reporting purpose as: ERERE 2O

Non-current FEmENIEE 87,635 156,633
Current mMENMEE 562,294 600,084
649,929 756,717

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate carrying amount of
investments held-for-trading and bonds was approximately
HK$588,524,000 (2021: HK$694,536,000), including investments
held-for-trading and bonds with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$65,054,000 (2021: HK$107,589,000) which
were available to be loaned to financial institution for earning lending
fee income and the same or substantially the same securities would
be returned to the Group, pursuant to the terms and conditions
contained in the securities pooled lending agreements, of which
approximately HK$32,502,000 (2021: HK$19,870,000) investments
held-for-trading and bonds were on loan at the end of the reporting

period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contd)

Notes:

®

(i)

(iif)

()

The investments held-for-trading comprised equity securities
listed in Hong Kong or elsewhere. As at 31 December 2022,
carrying amount of approximately HK$328,339,000 (2021:
HK$428,364,000) were traded in active markets and their fair
values are determined based on the quoted market bid prices
available on the respective stock exchanges in Hong Kong or
elsewhere. The remaining with carrying amount of approximately
HK$5,672,000 (2021: nil) was suspended trading listed equity
securities which were measured at fair value with reference to
valuation carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer, details of the fair value measurements are disclosed in
Note 5(c).

The bonds denominated in US$ carry interests at fixed rates which
range from 4.875% to 13.000% per annum, of which a bond
with notional amount of US$19,000,000 is callable. The bond
denominated in GBP with notional amount of GBP1,000,000
carries interest at fixed rate of 7.125% per annum and is callable.

The listed bonds are traded in active market and stated at fair
values at the end of the reporting period. Their fair values are
determined with reference to market bid prices quoted by financial
institutions and brokers. For unlisted bond measured at fair value,
details of the fair value measurements are disclosed in Note 5(c).

The maturity dates of the bonds denominated in US$ and GBP are
as follows:

Notional amount Maturity
US$66,000,000 Matured
US$31,050,000 2023
US$18,500,000 2024
US$19,000,000 2032
GBP1,000,000 Perpetual

The structured product represented an equity linked note with
fixed interest rate which is issued by a financial institution and
stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Details of
the fair value measurements are disclosed in Note 5(c).

The club and corporate debentures are stated at fair values at the
end of the reporting period. Details of the fair value measurements
are disclosed in Note 5(c).

25. BBBERURMRAFETEZ
EWMEE®

P& -

®

(i)

(iif)

)

BEEB 7 REBRSHRES S HtibE
MZBAFESR RZTE_—_F+=_A=+
—H  BREE%A328,339,0008 (=&
——4F 1 428,364,000 ) N RIER 2
MBES  ERFENERE BN EMibE
HEAZESRZHMZTHBE AREME
TE e BTN EREEL A5,672,0008 T (—F
T EIZEEEELIMRAETELFZA
FEFENZRERBLAEREELERM
EITZEE AFEAEZFHBERANE
5() AR o

AETTEHEZ EHEEFHEN T4.875E
£13.000F + EFHE$%/519,000,000
ERZ2EEATER - NEEFHEZES
(BFE &5 /41,000,000% ) EEFME A
7125 - RAAAEE

EHEFRRBERZTSEE  RBE
HIRARFEIER - BH2AFEDRE
TREBLREL2THEAREEE - 3t
NRFEFEZELETESTS - ATE
FERZHBE RIS (QRRKE -

IR REFENEZEFZEMANT

ZESH A
66,000,000 7T B2
31,050,000% 7T =4
18,500,000% 7T —EUF
19,000,000 7T TE=4F
1,000,000 5 KA

R E MBI E I A E T A R
R —MEmgEET - BRREBRARN
NFEYE - AFEHEZFBEE R
5(0) NI EE -

RHEHR  SREAREFARFET
IR e RTFEFBZHBESRIMES QR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(v)  The Group entered into cross currency swaps during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. The table below is
prepared based on the maturity date of the contract. The major
terms of the cross currency swap at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

US$/HKS$ cross currency swap En/BrERES

— within 1 year -—%R

At 31 December 2022 R-EB-—&
+=ZHB=+—H

At 31 December 2021 WZZ——%F
+-A=+—H

The Group used the cross currency swap to exchange US$
denominated bank borrowing of approximately US$147,387,000
(2021: US$159,024,000) into HK$ denominated bank borrowing
of HK$1,148,000,000 (2021: HK$1,238,000,000).

The cross currency swap is stated at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Details of the fair value measurements are
disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets
measured at FVTPL of approximately HK$87,635,000 (2021:
HK$156,633,000). They were included in non-current assets

according to their intended holding periods.
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25. BBBERURMRAFETEZ
EWMEE®

faE - (@)

V) AEERBE_T-_—_FR-_ZFT-_—F+
A=t HULEFERGFTLEEE -
TERDBREBEAHIHARE - RREHR
B F2HERET

Notional amount Fair value
ZESH A¥E
US$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
147,387 1,148,000 1,250
159,024 1,238,000 1,623

AEBMUEEBHEXTAHERTE
B#4147,387,000E (=2 - —F :
159,024,000% 7T) X ] & 78 et E R 1T
£E1,148,000,0008 L (=T = —F :
1,238,000,0007T) ©

RI|BERR > EEEHUARTEIER -2
FEFEBZFBERHESQRRKE -

FERBEEPRIERABIEFARMATETZ
2 & BB EX87,6350008L(Z T = —F ¢
156,633,000/ 7T) © RIRHEE 2 $E 546 Hif
FTAFERBEE ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

26. BREMEZEHKE
BB EREE

x LA BR 2 3

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Listed investment: FHRE -
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong - REBLETRAES
(note (i) (BEQ)) 109,766 364,582
Unlisted equity securities: FEETIRARE 5 -
— Incorporated in Hong Kong (note (ii)) — REBEM AL (B REN)) 235,750 1,101,599
— Incorporated elsewhere (note (i) — R E A b R AR 2
GEIO) 290,030 425,867
635,546 1,892,048
Analysed for reporting purpose as: TERERBZEZ O
Non-current FEREEDL 525,780 1,527,466
Current (note (i) mENEE (FEQ)) 109,766 364,582
635,546 1,892,048
Notes: M aE
(i)  As at 31 December 2022, the Group held certain Evergrande ) RIZE-_—_F+-A=+—8 AE@HHF

BETEARG - FEBEAZBRHER=

Shares. Trading in the shares of China Evergrande on the Stock
Exchange has been halted from 9:00 a.m. on 21 March 2022 and
will remain suspended until further notice from China Evergrande.
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
through a series of transactions disposed of certain Evergrande
Shares in the open market of the Stock Exchange. The unrealised
loss on fair value change of the remaining Evergrande Shares of
approximately HK$105,701,000, that fair value of the suspended
trading Evergrande Shares was measured with reference to
valuation carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer (details of the fair value measurements are disclosed in
Note 5(c)) (2021: unrealised loss on fair value change of the
remaining Evergrande Shares of HK$3,051,943,000, the fair
value was determined based on quoted market bid price in
active market) at the end of the reporting period, was recorded
in financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve during the year
ended 31 December 2022. The carrying amount of the remaining
Evergrande Shares held by the Group as at 31 December 2022
was approximately HK$109,766,000 (2021: HK$364,582,000).

E-_FZA-+—HEFABTERRE
RN ERIIEETRESTEEE B
ZHhEEARELE— BN REBEE-F
ZFRZE_—F+-A=+—BLHF
BAR - AEEEBA—RIRSRBRFA
FmEHEETEARG - RBEHK -
BITZEARNDEE-_ZE-_—_F+=-_A=
+—BHILEFEZAFEEZSH s KEREIE
#9/4105,701,0008 L (B E S 2 B8R
B2 iﬁﬁgﬂﬁ%mﬁi §%§%
HEMETZEE  ATFEFEZFE
R ES(OREE) (ZE=Z—F ¢ mw
MEHRNFRMBZEAREMET A
FE - BTITZ2EABROGAFEZH K
B35 K518 /53,051,943,0008 ) E R EB
Hh2EBEARBRAFENEZ SR
BEZRERNAKR RZTZ_F+=
A=+—R8 AEEFBEBEBRARNZE
E{E4)/5109,766,0000 T (=8 = —4 :
364,582,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)
@i  (Contd)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors sought
from the shareholders of the Company and were given the grant
of a disposal mandate to dispose of all or part of the remaining
Evergrande Shares (“Disposal Mandate") in one or series of
transactions from time to time during a period of twelve months
commencing from 23 September 2021, the date of approval
of the Disposal Mandate. Details of the grant of the Disposal
Mandate were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 23 September 2021 and the circular of the Company dated
24 November 2021.

Subject to resumption of trading, the Group intends to continue
selling the Evergrande Shares. The Evergrande Shares that
remained unsold have been presented as current assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position with carrying amount
of approximately HK$109,766,000 (2021: HK$364,582,000) as
at 31 December 2022 as the carrying amount will be recovered
principally through sales in the next twelve months.

(i) Asat 31 December 2022, the carrying amount mainly comprised
investment in a property development project in Hong Kong (10%
interest) of HK$127,913,000 (2021: HK$390,440,000) and the
decrease in carrying amount was due to declaration of dividend by
investee company to shareholders during the year.

(i) As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount mainly comprised
investment in an exempted limited partnership formed under
the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands (“Cayman Islands Partnership”) of approximately
HK$290,030,000 (2021: HK$425,867,000).

The Cayman Islands Partnership has a term of ten years from
the date of initial closing. The purposes of the Cayman Islands
Partnership are to achieve exceptional returns by acquiring,
holding and disposing of equity, equity-related securities, high-
yield structured financial products, independently or with others, in
companies with various operations or such other activities.

The quoted price in active market of equity securities listed in Hong
Kong represents quoted market bid price available on the Stock

Exchange.

For unlisted equity securities measured at fair value, details of the fair

value measurements are disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets
measured at FVTOCI of approximately HK$525,780,000 (2021:
HK$1,527,466,000). They were included in non-current assets

according to their intended holding periods.
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26. BREMEHEHUWE AR AFE
Bff2zemEE®w

GEE

®

(i)

(iif)

(&)
(&)

REBE_Z-_—F+-_A=t—HLFE
N BRRAARARRSRAERTHE
EE 8- —FAA-T=ZREHE
AL B HD A+ — 8 A AR TR
R—RE—RZNZHFHER AL 84
TZERBD(THERE]D - BTHER
BZHEBLHINARR AR T =~
FAAZT=ZAZRAHR B —F+—
AZt+mAZBEHA -

zrxﬁl?iif@ﬁ%tb%lﬁﬂxﬁ(\ﬁfﬁ F &1 Tk

BEE) RWZE_=—F+=-A=+—8MN
REHZ] Eﬁﬂxfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%loamaooo
BIL(ZZ = —4F : 364,582,000/ L) R
RZEMBRRBERP 2V ARBDEE -
DREEEBEEEBARTZ@ARZ
HEKE -

R-ZE-—F+-—A=+—8B HEEZE
BAREN—BANEBZWERRER
(5109 25 )127913000/%57z(f7f*
£ 1 990,440,000/ 7T) + ZBREE R

l:%%;&ﬁ@ﬂﬁéﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ

I8 e

R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H EEE=E
DARERN—MIZMSHEERRERE
BOELIEEDKR LI EREERAE
tE(HEFHEEZ1E%])4290,030,000
BT (=T ——%F : 425,867,000/ 7T) °

REREABCEMVSHIERRRET
F-HERBABLRZANRERE Y
FEHEMAREE %E&ﬁﬁ%%é%f%
ZRABZBA - BAEEESE SRS
UM BERIE M ZIEEH ARG fﬁr
EEIFR o

HERELTRAZBFNERTS 2|E - T8
B Pz M5 B ARIE -

MARFEFAEZFLTRAESTE - 2F
BFF B ZFBERMES(QANEE -

EREEEFRE %ELLﬁ'f‘Hliﬁu& S A B A

FEFTE SR E E 525,780,000 L (=&
Z—%F 1 1,527,466,000/7T) © RIEEE 2 it
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27. ADVANCE TO AN INVESTEE COMPANY

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

27. B —BHEZBREAQT

The advance to an investee company is unsecured and interest-free.

The Group will not demand for repayment within one year from the

end of the reporting period and the amount is therefore shown as

non-current.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets

recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the

current and prior reporting periods:

At 1 January 2021
Acquisition of assets through
acquisition of a subsidiary
Exchange adjustments
Charged (credited) to the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

(Note 13)

At 31 December 2021

Exchange adjustments

Charged (credited) to the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
(Note 13)

At 31 December 2022

R-ZE=-——F—A—H

FRWE-HEE AR

WHEEE
FE 3 S %
R 2EREREFR
e GEA)
(F5E13)

R —F
+—A=+—~”

[E 5 F

RERA 2 E RS HRE T
HBRGEA)
(5E13)

N-EBE-—F
t=A=+-8H

Al ;R IH

BN -HERIRERFFADEERL LR
AEBAEENRERNRES —FAEER
B BEZRBIEIERBIEE -

28. IEFEBLE
VAR A 7R S [ 0 7R i o5 A P K o8 1 i o5 HA T
BREVIEAR BE(EEZBR) REE
&) :
Accelerated
Investment tax Tax
properties  depreciation losses Total
bR R
REWE wE REER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
26,222 38,007 (19,107) 45,122
89 - (89) -
- (85) 401 316
1,178 (28) 7,732 8,882
27,489 37,894 (11,063) 54,320
34 (3,711) 328 (3,349)
12,323 (1,794) 711 11,240
39,846 32,389 (10,024) 62,211
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (contd) 28. IEZE B IE @)
For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement of BEEUBRRABER 25 HETRELEHIER
financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets have been BEREEDELHE - MU BHRSERAEZRER
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for BHEBRDITT

financial reporting purposes:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 63,045 58,240
Deferred tax assets BEERIAEE (834) (3,920)
62,211 54,320
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following major REREEIR - AN E B R B ATER R AOR R
unrecognised deferred tax assets which were not recognised due to RERA T Z T2 ARERRERIAEE -
the unpredictability of the future profit streams.
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Accelerated tax depreciation IR E (193) (86)
Tax losses HisEE (554,306) (374,095)
(554,499) (374,181)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group'’s estimated unused RIREIR - REER —ZRF R E| B ARE
tax losses not recognised of approximately HK$14,636,000 (2021: R R E AR EIEL 514,636,000/8
HK$18,621,000) will be expired in one to five years, and other TT(ZZE=—4 :18,621,000870) © MEHK
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$3,337,252,000 (2021: R 2 B IE1E43,337,252,0008 0 (ZE =
HK$2,239,028,000) may be carried forward indefinitely and subject —4F 1 2,239,028,000/% 7T) A #E R BRAEEE -
to the confirmation from the respective tax authority. B RANRG BHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@)

(b)

(©

Pledged deposits

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to secure
credit facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to
approximately HK$71,128,000 (2021: HK$273,202,000)
have been pledged to secure short-term borrowings and
are therefore classified as current assets. The remaining
deposits amounting to approximately HK$76,697,000 (2021:
HK$4,308,000) have been pledged to secure long-term
borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current assets.

The pledged deposits carry interest at prevailing market
deposit rates. The pledged deposits will be released upon the

repayment of relevant borrowings.

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Securities trading receivables and deposits are mainly amounts

due from clearing house, brokers and clients.

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

The time deposits and certain bank balances carry interest
at prevailing market deposit rates. As at 31 December 2022
and 2021, all of the time deposits and deposits have original
maturity not greater than three months. The Group does not

hold collateral over the deposit balances.

20 Hit e MEE

(@)

(b)

(©

EREX

ZEREIREIRTIRITIEAAEBER
EEBE 2T ° £971,128,0008 L (=ZF
——% : 273,202,000/ 7T) 2 F R EAE
REREEZER  WEIBEARDE
E o $2T#76,697,0008 (=T ——
% : 4,308,0008 ) 2 F REAERKH
BEZER  WEIERIERBEE -

DA B3R IR B B T 35 2 77 RN R A&
B REERERENEREEREER
By AR B

BWESTZRERER

BNEFRHEBNFREEZREWRAE
B BFRLEREPHRA -

EHEFER  RITEBRRES

THERERETRITEREZERT S 2
FRAMEHE -RZTBZZFR-_F=
—F+-A=+—8 FAEEHEZRRL
BRZBEGFHBATZR=@A - &%
B Em T SRR EA -

CECZCEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

30. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RE MR

30. RWERTE - % - HttEWR

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables

Less: Allowance for credit losses

Deposits and prepayments
Interest receivables from bonds and structured
products (net of allowance for credit losses)

Other receivables

Analysed for reporting purpose as:
Non-current

Current

8 R T ERE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHBT
EWE BRI 8,940 67,765
B EEEERE (4) 4
8,936 67,761
%e MIERFRIE 136,045 77,984
B N AE R E R 2 U B
(=B EIEEH) 2,791 5,520
E b fE BRI 122,777 144,235
270,549 295,500
ERERBRZ O
JERENIEE 84,081 34,762
mENEE 186,468 260,738
270,549 295,500

Included in debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables of approximately HK$8,936,000 (2021:
HK$67,761,000), which comprised rental and building management

fee receivables billed in advance and settlements from tenants which

are expected upon receipts of billings and receivables from property

management services and cosmetics business.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables (net of allowance for

credit losses) of the Group's major businesses are as follows:

Rental receivables from property leasing
Receivables from building and
property management services

Receivables from cosmetics business

MEME 2 RKRHEE

BFIMEEEREZ
FE W ARIA

fernmm ¥ < AR IR
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EWERTE « e - HMEUWERTE RFEM HKIE
BIERWE 5 IR1E 498,936,000 L( =T =—
1 67,761,000/8 7T) - B #ETE 5 & M 78 A
HPERKIIERES N2 EBKES REFE
BE  URKREMEEERBERMAREBLZ

YRR ©

AEETEXBREEZREMHREREER

) 2 REENT -

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAET

1,183 57,768

6,152 6,710

1,601 3,283

8,936 67,761




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

30. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER 30. EWERTE - & - HMEUWER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to
minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.
Rental and building management fee in respect of leased properties
are payable in advance by the tenants. Other trade debtors settle
their accounts according to the payment terms as stated in the

respective contracts.

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for credit losses), presented based on the respective

revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period:

0-30 days TE=+H
31-60 days =+—H=Z=XTH
61-90 days A~tT—HEATH
Over 90 days n+BRE

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables which are past

due but not impaired:

0-30 days TE=1H
31-60 days =+—HZENXTH
61-90 days At—HEATAH
Over 90 days h+BRE

BRAMKE®

AEEEHRIRABZEERER  WFHEERS
FZEREEER - AEERYERERER - B
REEREZFRVESRBARBZEER
- HEMEZHERBFTERBEARELE
XM o BB S EFAREER A L RFIHA

ZINRIEHRBRREREA ©

REBZEBEBAZEIBMET 2 BEEZRE
(R EEBEBREE RRSHMRZRE DN

T
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
4,813 28,984
2,640 2,792
637 642
846 35,343
8,936 67,761

EEMMEREIRE 2 B E 5 RE 2 Rk DT

T
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
5,336 30,099
412 796
125 1,247
671 33,691
6,544 65,833
—EooFFH EAEREE 243



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

30. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER 30. BWERIR - &< - HEWER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd) EHEENRE®
Movement in the allowance for credit losses: EEFERBE
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHETT
At 1 January R—A—H 4 2,939
Reversal of allowance for credit losses recognised BIEWE B ARER AR L
in respect of trade receivables EEBERE = (3,059)
Allowance for credit losses recognised MEWE ZRIARER Z
in respect of trade receivables EEEEREE 1 13
Exchange adjustments M 5 F - 139
Amount written off as uncollectible B B] Y [B] i 85 2 78 (1) (28)
At 31 December R+=—H=+-—H 4 4
For those past due but not impaired receivables, although the Group REBHERRE BWIREMS © AL
does not hold any collateral as security, the Group has assessed the SRV EBEEMAERRERR  FNEEEH
creditworthiness, past payment history and substantial settlement HEEE  BEERCELINRERRECEE
after the end of the reporting period, and considers that the amounts ERRIEHEHE - URRZEEEE DA - &
are still recoverable and no further credit provision is required in BEE—F (ZREEBRBE < EEEE -

excess of allowance for credit losses.

Trade receivables over 90 days comprise mainly rental and building BENTAZEKREZREFERFERKES
management fee receivables of approximately HK$582,000 (2021: MEFEEBL582,0008 T (ZE—F :
HK$32,436,000), which are sufficiently covered by rental and/or 32,436,000/ 70) (AL R AU I E B P 2 A
building management fee deposits received from the respective S R/NEFERERSARE) BEAE
tenants, and no allowance is required for these receivables under the ZEREBBRE  BER/ZZREKARIEEL#
Group's allowance policy. 1o

Trade receivables which are neither overdue nor impaired are in MESAITRERECENESRBCEERR
good quality. 4f o
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31.

32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

STOCK OF PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of the stock of properties
were completed properties and the Directors reviewed the carrying
amounts of the completed properties with reference to prevailing
market conditions and the estimated selling prices provided by B.I.
Appraisals (2021: LCH (Asia-Pacific)).

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no write-
down of completed properties was recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

INVENTORIES

Finished goods BURK
Raw materials JEER !

All inventories were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

REME

Investment property

During the year ended 31 December 2022, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party to dispose an investment property.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group received sale deposit of
approximately HK$2,235,000 and the disposal was completed

subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

31.

32.

33.

NEFE

WNZE-——ER-_E-_—F+-A=+—0 -
FIEM¥EEARENME BEE2EER
TR kERARBTGE(CEZ—F - FIBETT
BIERRE 2 AFEE  EHERMEZR
HEE o

REE_ZE-_—_FR-_FE-_—F+-A=+—
ALEFER - WEERYEZBRERGEEMA
RS MR P HER o

4
7E

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT F

3,866 2,689

776 825

4,642 3,514

T IR A R A B DR ERE R IE &
E\’EO

JIBFIFHEZEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx TET
27,602 -

REBEEZT-__F+-A=+—HLFERN
Aprlz —HEEZEEENBARIEE=F
AN —HEE-BREANEZEERE - A%
ER T —F+-B=+—HACKmIHEEE
©#%92,235,0008 7 - ZHEBER®REHRE
ST °

CECZCEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Included in creditors and accruals are trade payables of approximately
HK$2,136,000 (2021: HK$3,776,000).

The following is the aged analysis of trade payables, presented based
on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period:

34. B RERERTREA

ENEERESRERERNESEREN
2,136,000/ L (=T = —4 : 3,776,000/
o) °

REBEEZRH2T| 2 RNESRBNHRE IR
ZIREEDHTIAT ¢

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
0-90 days TENTH 1,628 2,633
Over 90 days N+BHE 508 1,143
2,136 3,776
35. BORROWINGS 35. & &
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Secured bank borrowings repayable within AR TSI HARER 2 BER
a period of (note): HRITEE M)
Less than one year —FLT 1,211,577 2,199,157
More than one year but within two years —F A H BN R R 674,221 314,955
More than two years but within five years A A 1B R BE R F 1,531,560 1,497,582
3,417,358 4,011,694
Secured bank borrowings that contain repayment MR B SKEE (552 KA
on demand clause (shown as current liabilities) wITEBEGHERBIAE) -
but repayable within a period of (note): MEZER T 5 BRI EE (B ED) -
Less than one year —FEUT 202,524 665,820
More than one year but within two years —F A LB B MRE 586,524 12,000
More than two years but within five years RGPS RS 31,571 766,000
More than five years RERE 648,955 B
1,469,574 1,443,820
Total secured bank borrowings BIRFRITEELTE 4,886,932 5,455,514
Less: Amounts due within one year B —FAE 2 RIE (2,681,151) (3,642,977)
Amounts due after one year —F1& 5B 2 kI8 2,205,781 1,812,537
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as set M. ZEINHz2HERERMRPEHI2E
out in the loan agreements. FIEBHEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

35. BORROWINGS (contd)

The bank borrowings denominated in HK$ are variable-rate
borrowings which carry interest ranging from HIBOR plus 0.75%
to 1.20% (2021: ranging from HIBOR plus 0.75% to 1.20%) per

annum.

The borrowings denominated in US$ and GBP from banks and a
financial institution are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest
at cost of funds of a bank plus 0.90% or cost of funds of a financial
institution plus 1.25% or ranging from compounded reference rate
plus 1.40% to 1.62% (2021: cost of funds of a bank plus 0.90% or
LIBOR plus 1.50% or ranging from compounded reference rate plus
1.08% to 1.62%) per annum.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other

than HK$ are set out below:

Us$ E
GBP g

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all borrowings were guaranteed

by the Company and/or a subsidiary of the Company.

In respect of bank borrowings with carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,608,002,000 (2021: HK$2,087,468,000) as at 31 December
2022, the Group is required to comply with respective financial
covenants in relation to the Group's consolidated tangible net worth
shall not be less than certain threshold throughout the continuance
of the relevant borrowings and/or as long as the borrowings
are outstanding. The Group has complied with these covenants

throughout the reporting period.

35. BEw®

LB TTHEZBITEEAZEMEE  FH XK
EBRITREREMO.75EE120B(ZF =
— & BBRTRAEFREMO.7SEE1.20E)
HE -

UETRREHEZRITR —HemEEEs
REBBE  FREE-BERITESKAM
0.90E sk —H & BB E S KA IN1.25E 8
ALEBFEINA0BE1GE(ZT = —4F ¢
—FIRITE S RCANO.90E sk i FIRIT R %
FEIMI50EHEELEFEIN.08EE.62
E)tHE -

REBLEBTANESHEZEEHINDT ¢

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEx TAT
1,149,356 1,240,226
2,245,576 2,741,288
3,394,932 3,981,514

RZBZZFR_F-_—F+=A=+—H"
ARB R/ FARB—HHBAGERAEE
BEHER -

RZEZZF+ZA=+—H KHEME
#/1,608,002,0008 (=T =—F :
2,087,468,000/#70) 2 $R1TEE - TEEEMHH
BENFEEREL SRR BEEHAREE K
SEBETERASRSRE B EEFENS
DRETFTREBZVBEE - AEEEERERS
MM —HETREH -

“ECCFF®R O EA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_A=+—HILtFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. B
Movement in the share capital of the Company during the years is as RARZBRARAFEZLEINT -
follows:
Number of shares Share capital
ROBHE [RE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Ordinary shares of FREE010E T2
HK$0.10 each Gl
Authorised: EERA
At 1 January and R—HA—B%
31 December +=A=+—H 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R
At 1 January and R—A—BX&
31 December +=A=+—H 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 190,762 190,762
37. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES, 37. REBMERT - EZREQVT
INVESTEE COMPANIES AND R IR IR IR R FKIE

NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to associates, investee companies and
non-controlling shareholders are unsecured and interest-free. The
associates, investee companies and non-controlling shareholders
will not demand for repayment within one year from the end of
the reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as non-

current.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

Acquisition of Pinwheel

On 23 December 2021, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement in relation
to acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Pinwheel and the
sale loan ("Pinwheel Acquisition”). The Group acquired a property
located in Hong Kong and its related assets and liabilities as a result
of the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Pinwheel. The
Pinwheel Acquisition was completed on 23 December 2021 at a

total cash consideration of approximately HK$160,155,000.

Under HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”, the Pinwheel
Acquisition was accounted for as an acquisition of assets and
liabilities as Pinwheel being acquired by the Group did not constitute
an acquisition of business. The Group identified and recognised
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
The cost of the Pinwheel Acquisition was allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values as at the date of acquisition. Such a transaction did not give

rise to goodwill.

38. ZBWE BB LT WE

'E
B AR 2L

RZBZ—F+-A=Z+=H AR7Az—M
HE2EAREMBARGI L —HERHE - N
AEBWRER LA 2 EBITRARBEES
ARARBAIEEIE]) - REBREWEKLZZ
BEFITRAKE —BURES 2WEUR
HiEAEERAB - HKOAWBEFENR T
—F+ZA-t+t=H%K BRENEHNAE
160,155,0005% 7T ©

RBEBMBREENEIR@EEBE
BF) - BRAR BB SAY TR — AR
WiE - BRCAVRBERAKRBEEREBEA
R o AEEER R AERE R AT B 2 WEEE
FoAERE o BOARBEIR 2 A B ZE & 5
AHEAEERAE  RENEERBRAEAF
BERAEE - WMEAXSUWBELEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_A=+—HILtFE

38. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (contd)

Acquisition of Pinwheel (Cont'd)

The net assets of Pinwheel acquired as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

Investment properties (Note 19)

Deposits and prepayments

Accruals

Shareholder’s loan

Net assets acquired

Assignment of a shareholder's loan

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration

Expenses incurred for acquisition

Net cash outflow arising from acquisition:
Cash consideration paid

Expenses incurred for acquisition

38. ZBWE—BHRBRRWE

BE @

Wit B8 A B4 (48)
2021
HK$'000
FHET
PRUREE B ER IR SA 2
BESFEWNT :
LEME(HFE19) 160,959
Ee MFERFRIE 158
FERTFUE 3)
RRERK (91,713)
WA EFE 69,401
EERRER 91,713
161,114
LATRE RS
ReENRE 160,155
WESFTEE 2R 959
161,114
W EE 2 IRE R F58
BENREERE 160,155
WHEFTEA 2 X 959
161,114

39. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, dividend income from
investee companies and associates of HK$1,014,750,000 (2021:
nil) and approximately HK$299,267,000 (2021: nil) respectively
have been settled through the current accounts with investee

companies and associates.
Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements, the Group did not have major non-cash

transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified as cash flows from

financing activities in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows.

At 1 January 2021
Financing cash flows
Exchange adjustments
Dividend declared
Increase in lease liabilities
from entering into new
lease during the year
Total interest (Note 11)

At 31 December 2021

Financing cash flows
Exchange adjustments
Increase in lease liabilities
from entering into new
leases during the year
Total interest (Note 11)

At 31 December 2022

RZE-—%—-HA—H
BERSRE

BN Az

EREE
WARFEET L
LML m
ZHEEE
FlegmfiE)

B R

WARFEETL
mALmEMm
ZHERRE

FegEfE )

R-Z-=f%
+=A=t+-H

40. MEXRBELE BB YK
TREI A EEREEBMEL AEEBF
B BERCRIFRCED - MEEXBESL
ZEENEEReREGRRKACRERS
RAEEZFERERERNDBEAREER
EFrzReREZAE -
Amounts
due to non-
controlling Lease Dividend Interest
Borrowings shareholders liabilities payable payable Total
REFER
BE RERIE HEEE EARE A HIE k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR FER FET FET FET
7,263,832 275 125,190 - 7,760 7,397,057
(1,803,873) - (69258)  (19076)  (91,505) (1,983,712)
(4,445) - - - 37 (4,408)
- - - 19,076 - 19,076
- - 1,944 - - 1,944
- - 1,834 - 91,323 93,157
5,455,514 275 59,710 - 7,615 5,523,114
(289,067) - (57,436) - (119,390)  (465,893)
(279,515) = = = (653)  (280,168)
- - 85,129 - - 85,129
- - 1,173 - 129,788 130,961
4,886,932 275 88,576 - 17,360 4,993,143
—EooFFR gAEx£E 251



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41. EEEKHE

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the assets REEBRR  NEBRANEBER 2 —MRIRTT
pledged by the Group to secure general banking facilities granted to EXmEMmMBERZ EEREESTNAT ¢

the Group, are analysed as follows:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Investment properties "EY 8,869,009 11,334,940
Properties L7ES 38,203 42,922
Non-current pledged deposits FEMENEIRETK 76,697 4,308
Current pledged deposits mEN IR F R 71,128 273,202
9,055,037 11,655,372
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, interests in certain subsidiaries R-B-_—_FR-_FT-_—F+-_A=+—8 -
of the Company have been pledged as part of the security to secure RRARETHERARz RREEMERLEE
certain bank borrowings granted to the Group. BERETHRITEE D EMS -
42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. ERELE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised and contracted for: BEHRUERBEL
Capital investment in limited partnership BREBLEZERKEAE
(note) (B 3E) 51,866 60,700
Redevelopment expenditure of properties MEERFL 638,180 172,688
Purchases of equipment and leasehold BERBLEEMEERE
improvement 14,399 72,587
Refurbishment of properties B 2,396 1,455
706,841 307,430
Note: The Group had committed to make a capital contribution of Mzt AEEBHSHESEBEEAREL
US$100,000,000 (equivalent to HK$779,820,000) in the 100,000,000 7T (1% #779,820,000
Cayman Islands Partnership. Up to the end of the reporting period, BIL)ZEAKRTE - BERSHRILE -
approximately US$93,349,000 (equivalent to approximately AEEBTEH93,349,000F L (HHE
HK$724,064,000) (2021: US$92,217,000 (equivalent to MR#I724,064,000/8 L) (=T = —4F
approximately HK$715,235,000)) among the contribution 92,217,000 7t (8 & 74 49715,235,000
has been paid by the Group. The outstanding amount was BILBEREESE - KEIEZEBY
approximately US$6,651,000 (equivalent to approximately 46,651,000 7T (FHE 7 4951,866,000
HK$51,866,000, after exchange adjustment) (2021: BT ERARR))(ZTE=_—F
US$7,783,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$60,700,000, after 7,783,000 7T (16 & $ £960,700,0007%
exchange adjustment)). 7T (KSFE X F 8 1%))) »
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44,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of banking
facilities in lieu of the cash public utility deposit

jointly utilised by subsidiaries

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of a banking
facility utilised by an investee company/indemnity
given to a third party in relation to an investee

company

No provision for financial guarantee contracts and/or deed of
indemnity have been made as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 as

the Directors considered the default risk is low.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
HK$293,650,000 (2021: HK$327,346,000) less outgoings of
approximately HK$28,056,000 (2021: HK$35,816,000).

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
amounted to approximately HK$540,000 (2021: HK$652,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Most of the investment properties of the Group held in Hong Kong
have committed tenants with lease terms which ranged from two to
three years and in the United Kingdom have committed tenants with

lease terms of over five years.

44,

43, HFAREE

RE R RER LR ZRT
EERURBEREAAEE
BemE—FRTREZER

R—AEXRERRHAZRT
EERMm A —BRITREZ
ERE-FEIKRERNT
BERAE=7TRTZRMERE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT
15,000 15,000
613,830 613,830
628,830 628,830

HAREERRENERE SR _Z__FK
TECF+ A=t HAERPBERSE
W/ RBERBRBEEHBE -

ERMEL
BB A

RAFERBDzZWERSKRADNA
293,650,000 7L(ZEF = —% : 327,346,000
7 70) IR B 49528,056,000/8 L (ZF = —
£ : 35,816,000/ 7T) °

BE_Z_—_F+_-_A=+—HBIFEIIEM
SRR B ek FI R 2 A B A0 & (< 30 4) A 540,000
BIL(ZEZ—F : 652,000/87T) ©

REBABAOUNBBREYME 2 BFEER
AEMAME=F MURNRERENEZEP
EEARFREERE -

—TooEEH  EAEKEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

44, OPERATING LEASES (contd) 44, EXMEN @)
The Group as lessor (Cont'd) AEBEERHAAGE)
The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments, IATERDEENRZBEBE D - BRA®R
showing the undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable SHHRBEATRE 2 EEHE T HE W
operating leases to be received after the reporting date. ZARBEBAE RN o
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within one year —F R 237,820 284,799
More than one year but within two years —FALETBRRE 156,680 210,911
More than two years but within three years MEL BT B =F 65,778 141,411
More than three years but within four years =FA BN EENE 30,576 64,564
More than four years but within five years PU4F LA _E{B s R 30,573 34,218
More than five years s F 223,893 284,803
745,320 1,020,706
45. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 45. R KEF 5T
The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in REBMBEFERKRREHAGTE B SBE
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO RRGHEI(TRZEORIRGT B D Mg wl it R E 2 5T
Scheme”) and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Sl([@ERFE]) - REBRBERKGTEIE
Scheme"). Contributions to the ORSO Scheme made by the Group HiEBH M 2 5%E 100 R (R FE B RIS
are based on a percentage of employees’ salaries ranging from 5% B) A-TTTFE+ A —HEMAREE
to 10%, depending upon the length of service of the employees. ZHEEHERMSMAEESTE - BERE
From 1 December 2000, newly joined employees are compulsorily BYARRTE S ER AN IR 2 & EH 4t
required to join the MPF Scheme. The employer and its employees Koo
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of RiEE2EBREREIBR I BRABAENAR

oo

comprehensive income of approximately HK$8,615,000 (2021: 615,000 L(=—ZF = —4 : 8,507,000/&
)

HK$8,507,000) represented contributions payable to these schemes IR ERAREE R Z S EER 2 H®

o

@A

by the Group for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

46. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

Transactions:

In prior years, the Group entered into lease agreements (“Leases”)
in respect of leases of certain leasehold properties (“Properties”)
held by a company controlled by a Director and the Trustee of
Substantial Shareholders as headquarters of the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, one of the Leases was expired
(“Expired Lease") and another has been renewed for a term of three
years commencing from 1 November 2022 to 31 October 2025.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered into
a new lease agreement (“New Lease”) in respect of lease of certain
Properties as premises intended to be used in connection with the

sale of a property redevelopment project of the Group.

Under the Leases and the New Lease, the aggregate amount of
the current rent and building management fee payable per month
(excluding the Expired Lease) are HK$3,929,000 and approximately
HK$537,000 respectively; and the aggregate amount of security
deposit paid as at 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$13,986,000. At the commencement date of the respective
Leases and New Lease, the Group recognised the present value of
the lease payments over the lease term as lease liability and the
aggregate amount of lease liability and estimated costs to be incurred
by the Group for restoration of the property as right-of-use asset.
As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate carrying amount of the
lease liability and the right-of-use asset of the Leases and the New
Lease were approximately HK$87,132,000 (2021: HK$57,890,000)
and approximately HK$90,509,000 (2021: HK$57,928,000)
respectively. Rent and building management fee of the Leases and
the New Lease for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately HK$63,617,000 (2021: HK$74,878,000) in
aggregate. The transactions of the Leases and the New Lease
constituted connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Leases and the New Lease were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 28 February 2019, 12 June
2020 and 28 March 2022 and the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” in the section headed “Directors’ Report” of this annual

report.

46. EXBAEALRS

t

s

2

%)

RBEEE  AEEFTVHAERZ ((ZEHE
B AABRER M MNEEREER
RZERARS AR AzETHEDE
(MMEDERTEB 2B - REE-T -
F+ZA=T—BHIFEAN ZEHEZHF
—HERM(ESHEED RS —NEER - F
HE -2 -+ —A—HBEZE=-Z_1F+
A=+—BIEAH=F HNEBE-T=_=F+
ZA=+—RILFEAN  AEEFZ—HEHHE
EnH(HEE]) - RRERARE TR
AREE—TEASEYESEIEE 25 o

REZSHERHAE  BTEARMESE
BEREFERBLACTREIBESE) AR
3,929,000/8 7T % 49537,0008 7T : MR ZZ
T oE+ A=+ HENRBRSEED
13,986,000 7T - RZEHERHHEEZEZ
s AE - ASEESRAPREEN R ZRER
RAMEAE UERKBHEEEERNEEER
MEMELZEFTRAZ G2 ERRBER
BEE RZTZ-__F+-A=+—80 %%
HERFHE HEABGREAEEEZRE
E#EE D BI487,132,000/8 L (=T = —4F :
57,890,000 7T) & £790,509,000/8 L (ZF =
—% :57,928,000%7T) - REEZE-T -

TZA=T—BIEFEARN  ZEHERHAE
EZHeREFERES H463,617,000%8 7T
(ZZT = —4% : 74,878,000/87T) ° RIE LHIR
BIE14AE - ZEHERMEERIBERALR
Rl ER S RISERERS -

ZEHERTHEZHBRAARIARAA=E
—hWF-A=-+N\B  —Z2-_ZFFA+=H
MZZEZZF=RAZ+N\BAZAMUARRAEEF
HEFGWREE]I—HPIBAERH | —BRAK
E‘g °

“ECCFF®R O EA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

46. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 46.
TRANSACTIONS (contd)

EXBEALRZ®

Transactions: (Cont'd) x5 (#)
Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these consolidated B XX R ARGRE MRk B % D PTHREE A
financial statements, the Group had the following material N REBRARFEHEBEATEITUTER
transactions with related parties during the year: R
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Income received from associates: Bl e ATz A
Interest income FLEMA 1,921 2,029
Accountancy fee B E 120 120
Management fee ERE 48 48
Income received from Directors and/or BRERR REEREZ
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders, EFA - HEER I
close family members of Directors and/or FERRZEFLXABRT 2
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders and KEEKE A RES R
companies controlled by Directors and/or FERRZEFTEAESZ
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders: NAZHA -
Rental services HER® 3,353 3,250
Property management services, MEETR R -
leasing administration services and EFB1TEARTS K
property administration services YEITH RS 30,603 28,736
Advisory and consultancy services EEEEE 38 32
Other ordinary services H A — MRS 941 999
Licence fee paid to companies controlled by EN—UBEEREERRZ
a Director and the Trustee of EREABEHZ RBZFTAIE
Substantial Shareholders 147 7
Rent and building management fee paid to EfBERTZEE R
associates BFERE 4,282 4,305
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

46. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Interest income was charged at the prevailing market rates based
on outstanding balances during the year. Accountancy fee was
charged based on an appropriate allocation of costs incurred by
central administrative departments of the Group. Management fee,
licence fee, rent, building management fee and security deposit
paid were determined based on terms similar to those applicable to

transactions with unrelated parties.

Income from services fees of rental services, property management
services, leasing administration services, property administration
services, advisory and consultancy services and other ordinary
services (details were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 14 August 2020 and the circular of the Company
dated 7 October 2020) were charged at the terms agreed by both
parties. These related party transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Details of these continuing connected transactions are
disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in the

section headed “Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into
a facility agreement with a Director. At the request of the Group,
the Director has agreed to make available to the Group a revolving
loan facility of up to HK$2,000,000,000. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the loan facility was not utilised (2021: an
aggregate amount equivalent to approximately HK$420,218,000
was drawn and the loan had been fully repaid pursuant to the
facility agreement and the former facility agreement entered into
between the Group and the Director with the same revolving
loan facility amount). As at 31 December 2022, there was no
outstanding balance of loan from the Director (2021: nil). The facility
is unsecured and interest-free. The transaction was fully exempted
from reporting, announcement, independent shareholders’ approval
and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

46.

EXBEALRZ®

MBRADRBER AN FEREEBRIRERFT
BRERAE - GBI AKE 2 P RITHER
FITEA <A ZEE DBCmUE - B2 E -
FAE e BTFERBREMRBRST
RIZEIFREA LR ZEM 2 B LUER T E

F o

REHERY  WEEERY - BHITER
5 METHRY - A RERRSARE M
—BBRBZIRBEBEWRAGHERARFHERA
ZEZFEFNATNBZ AR ZEZEF+
AR ZBRANIETE) DIREYE 55T 2 &K

UCHR » 1RIE E AR R 14A% - ZFREAL
RHBRARRZFHEBER S - REHER

BRPZABRAFERIEETGRE
[BEX 5] —BAKE -

E|—g

REEZ ?:—¢+ A=1t—HI%E
N AEBEE-VEETZ—MDBEDRE -
BASEE X'%%%H BTARE LR

£2,000,000,0008 T2 BERERBME - INE
EZLEF+ZA=FT—BLEFE  %E

RRMEWKRBA(CTE=—F : BRIBZBE W

BERAEEEZESAERBRESRBEEL
MZ%M@QW: R EAEXEERD
420,218,000/ T2 ERWEBHER) - K=
T-—F+ZA=+—H UWEAEECZES
BERER(CE—F - |&) - 2B I EER
ReB o BIELMBRANE4AE - ZXHE
AW BUBREMERFERN ZRTE
ZHEEBR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B8R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

46. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 46. EXBAEA LR 5 @)

TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Balances:

Save as disclosed above, at the end of the reporting period,
the Group had balances with a Director and the Trustee of
Substantial Shareholders, companies controlled by Directors and/
or the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders and an entity of which
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders is a member of the key
management personnel of approximately HK$22,791,000 (2021:
HK$23,901,000) in aggregate which was included in debtors and

other receivables.

Details of the balances with other related parties at the end of the

reporting period are set out in Notes 24 and 37.
Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Notes
15 and 16. The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives
is recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company
for the approval of the board of Directors having regard to the
performance of individuals, their respective duties and responsibilities

in the Group and the prevailing market condition as appropriate.
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BRIAEFTIREE - MIREHIR - AEEE (1 E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fade)

ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars
of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and therefore the
following list contains only the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022

which principally affected the results or assets of the Group.

Place of Class of share/

incorporation/ registered

Name of subsidiary operation capital held
FiisRe,/

WEARERE HMAL B EME LR
Alpha Team Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary
EREARES EER

Cardin Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
RRABERAH &R el
Chase Master Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
REBERLA BB EER
Chinese Estates, Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
FAEXBRAA BE el
Chinese Estates (Harcourt House) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited BE el
Country Homes Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
Bk el

Non-voting

deferred ordinary

BRFR

BRI E R

Non-voting

deferred founder
BT
RIEEI AR

47. T EMB A BFHE

EERRINEEAMB AR ZHIBTTREAR

TR o Bt TRAFIIN

—E-_F+=-8

S AHAKECXEREEAERREL
MERRZFHE -

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
ERITRER
BA/EMESR

Us$1
B

HK$2
28T

HK$2
2B

HK$1,000
1,000 7T

HK$200
2008 7T

HK$200
2007
HK$ 164,400
164,400 7T

HK$1,000
1,000/ 7T

Proportion of
paid-up share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
FAFFMBHRRE/
AMEEZEDL
Directly  Indirectly
BE B

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

100% -

- 100%

- 100%
CEICFFR

Principal activities

TEEE

Investment holding
REER

Property trading

Securities investment

Investment holding
and provision of
management services
REERR
RUEERS

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Name of subsidiary

WELREE

Evergo China Holdings Limited

Evergo Holdings (China) Company

Limited

EXRER(TE)ERAA

Express Right Limited
AEBRARA

Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited

AEERERAA

Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited

ABEHEERAA

Fair Eagle Securities Company

Limited
REFEHERAF

Flying Ease Limited
ALERRT

Place of
incorporation/

operation

EMRY BB

Bermuda/Hong Kong
BRE/ER

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
REREREE/BE

British Virgin Islands/
United Kingdom

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
A

British Virgin Islands

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

Class of share/
registered
capital held
Fries,/
SMEREH

Ordinary

Ordinary

E

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
LER

Ordinary
ERR
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RE MR

47. T EMEB QA FFE @)

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRARAR
Bx/ZREE

HK$100,775,869.10
100,775,869.10/ 7T

US$2,509,454

2,509,454% T

US$1
ES

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000/ 7

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7T

HK$228,000,000
228,000,000/ 7

Uss1
1T

Proportion of

paid-up share capital/

registered capital
held by the Company
KARFBHRRE
aMER AR
Directly  Indirectly
HE B

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

AR

Property investment

NERE

Securities margin
financier

Broking and dealing in
futures contracts and
provision of

advisory services on
futures contracts
HESNELR
HEERREMES

ARERRY

Provision of brokerage
and advisory services

on securities

Securities investment
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Name of subsidiary

WELREE

Grade World Investment Limited
IR EBBAH

Hillsborough Holdings Limited

Knightlights Property Intemational
SA.

Landrich (HK.) Limited
BREB)RRLA

Paul Y. Holdings Company Limited

Perfect World Company Limited
BENEERERLA

Pinwheel Investments Limited

PER YN

River Court Properties Limited

Speed Win Limited
LEBRAA

Place of
incorporation/

operation

EMRY EEHE

Hong Kong
A

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
LBABRER/BE

Luxembourg/
United Kingdom
ERE/HE

Hong Kong
&

Cayman Islands/
Hong Kong
REHS/EA

Hong Kong
A

Hong Kong
A

Isle of Man/
United Kingdom
5RE/RE

Hong Kong
0

Fade)

ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Class of share/
registered
capital held
i,/
SMEREH

Ordinary

Ordinary

EE

Ordinary

Ordinary

E

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
LRk

47. T EMEB QA FFE @)

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRARAR
Ba/EREL

HK$2
2B

US$1

E

GBP33,000
33,0005 88

HK$1,000

1,000 7T

HK$70,715,005.70

70,715,005.70/ T

HK$10,000

10,000/ 7T

HK$8
8T

(GBP2

2 EE

HK$2
2ETL

Proportion of

paid-up share capital/

registered capital
held by the Company
KARFBHRRE
AMERZADL
Directly  Indirectly
HE &

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%
TEIFFR

Principal activities

TEER

Securities investment

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

VS

Property investment
ES-

Investment holding
REER

Property management

NEEE

Property investment

ESE

Property investment

Property trading
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ T —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. T EMEB QA FFE @)

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ fully paid paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital held  registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
FiisRe,/ BRARAR RAFMBEHRRE/
WEAR AR ERERY BEHE EREREH Bx/ZREE SRERZEDL TEEY
Directly  Indirectly
HE B
State Smart Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Property investment
HEBRAT United Kingdom LER 1% NERE
ABERREE/RE
The House of Kwong Sang Hong ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%  Cosmetics distribution
Limited &5 LEk 500,000% 7T and trading
BEZRRARF P ERES
Tycoon Fame Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
FRERLA EREARES EER 157 RERR
Wing Lee Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100%  Securities investment
KARRBRAT BE Epalit 2687 EHRE
BEROtRIBE PRC Registered US$500,000 - 100%  Property investment
ERERAR i AR 500,000% T NERE
(Evergo (Beijing) Corporate
Management Co, Ltd.)*
BEROLRRERER PRC Registered US$1,250,000 - 100% Property trading
BRAEA T RS 1,250,000% 70 NXEE

(Evergo Investment Counsel
(Beijing) Co,, Ltd.)*

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at

the end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting

period.

4 Wholly foreign-owned enterprise
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The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars
of all associates would be of excessive length and therefore the

following list contains only the associates as at 31 December 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fade)

ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

which principally affected the results or assets of the Group.

Name of associate

BENRER

Best Profit Limited
FEBRAR

Direct Win Development Limited
BRERARAR

Finedale Industries Limited

EHREXBRAA

Power Jade Limited
(Business name:
Power Jade Capital Limited)
(EBARE:
Power Jade Capital Limited)

The Kwong Sang Hong

International Limited

RABMAEERAR
Oriental Arts Building Co,, Ltd"

Place of Class of share/
incorporation/ registered
operation capital held
Fris it/
HMARY e TERER
Hong Kong Ordinary
Hong Kong Ordinary
Hong Kong Ordinary
&R ERR
British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary
Hong Kong LR
RBA&RRES/
0
Bermuda Ordinary
ARE el
PRC Registered
H HMER

* Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

48. T EBHE N T

S

EERARIIL2EBER
TUE o Bk TRAEID
=t REARKEZREEREERERVEL

B N RIZFIS o

Issued and Proportion of
fully paid  equity attributable
share capital/ indirectly to
registered capital the Company
ERITREAR ERRAEERES
BE /&R RAZEAL
HK$1 25%

&L
HK$900 33.33%

900/&7T
HK$9,999 33.33%

9,999/ T
Us$20 50%

0%
HK$100,000 50%

100,000/ 7
US$24,920,000 50%

24920,000% 7

T RSNEERE

— = — —

-

FEH

RIZHIBLRIRE
::%::$+—ﬂ

Principal activities

TEER

Property investment and
trading
NERERBE

Property trading

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RAER

Property investment and

hotel operation

MERERBEEZH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-ZT——

F+-A=+—BHLEE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 49. KA R B IR R iR FT B 618
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other current assets
Time deposit and bank balances

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Share capital
Capital redemption reserve
Other reserve
Retained profits

Total equity

Non-current liability
Loans from subsidiaries

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on

10 March 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Chan, Hoi-wan R el &8
Director g

Note
BI5E

FRBEE
MEARRE
(RPN =N

RBEE

B A RRE KA
HipRENEE

E IR R RTTHEER

RBRE
REMEBARIFRIE
Hib s E

RBEEFRE

EERERRBAEE

RARERARGREER

[N 36
&N B G

HAtb

1R85 F

RAEEDEE

FRBEME
MEAREE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
5,135,799 5,135,890
2,679,784 2,805,160
7,815,583 7,941,050
7,332,776 8,292,278
1,542 328
1,288,616 702,638
8,622,934 8,095,244
62,381 21,005
602 7,683
62,983 28,688
8,559,951 8,966,556
16,375,534 16,907,606
190,762 190,762
138,062 138,062
9 9
13,650,701 14,046,773
13,979,534 14,375,606
2,396,000 2,532,000
16,375,534 16,907,606

BRESEN_T=F=ATHIbERER

TE - UHTIEERREESHE

Lam, Kwong-wai

Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 49. A QBB B RIMET R EHE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (contd)

50.

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 January 2021

Loss for the year

Final dividend for 2020 paid

Unclaimed dividends forfeited
(note)

At 31 December 2021

Loss for the year

Unclaimed dividends forfeited
(note)

At 31 December 2022

RWZZEZ—F—H—H

REEEE
ENZEZTFREARE

YRR B2 BB
(PR 5E)

RZTB-_—F+=-A=+—H
KFEBE
SRR 1 B ER 2 AR B

(BR3E)

R-BZZF+=ZHA=+—H

Note: Unclaimed dividends forfeited represented dividends declared
by the Company on or before 30 August 2016 (2021: 15 June
2015) remaining unclaimed by shareholders of the Company
on 2 November 2022 (2021: 3 September 2021). During the
year ended 31 December 2022, unclaimed dividends amounted
to approximately HK$7,681,000 (2021: HK$11,605,000) were
forfeited and transferred to retained profits.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of Directors on 10 March 2023.

(%)
ARBZRERE
Capital
redemption Other Retained
reserve reserve profits
EAREE B HAit &% R A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
138,062 9 16,382,780
- - (2,328,536)
- - (19,076)
- - 11,605
138,062 9 14,046,773
_ - (403,753)
- - 7,681
138,062 9 13,650,701
MizE - RBMABERMZRETIEARTNR-E

—R"NENA=FTH(ZE=Z—%F: =F
—RAFRNATRRA)RZAERM AR
FAZBRER—_ZE-_—_F+—HF=-H(=
T-—F: T —FAAZR)Nk
BEHZRE -MEBE-_ZT-—F+—A
“t+—BLEFER - DRPERZEE
© R84 57,681,000 (- —4F :
11,605,000/ 7T) B #2 Ug 7 82 5 2= (R B8
pioll I

50. RETIBRGES W H®E

BEFECN - E=F=ATHEREET
BEAMBERE -

CECZCEER
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AEMBME

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows:

Results

Revenue (note (i)

Profit (loss) before tax

Income tax expense

Profit (loss) for the year

Profit (loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

&

WA (BEEQ))

FRBLATE M (B 18)
FIERF

AEREF (BE)

JEIEAFE
M (B R)
ARBHEEA
IR R

Eamings (loss) per share (HK$) &% 25| (&18) (BT)

Basic and diluted (note (ii))

s S ACEA0)

Total comprehensive (expenses) FEEANEFE 2 (X H)

income for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Final and interim dividends

per share (HK cents)
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Wre ko s

ARAHERA
ey o

BRAPRTFHEE
(B

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—-HLEE

AEBBRERFZES BERAGHREMT

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHT FHT FHET
1,434,990 1,299,826 3,041,464 1,309,952 2,686,910
(restated) (restated)
(&E3) (&E3)
1,179,145 (3,480,360) 692,546 948,910 1,186,854
(26,825) (33,188) (70,282) (157,258) (127,041)
1,152,320 (3,513,548) 622,264 791,652 1,059,813
1,152,235 (3,515,305) 622,233 790,167 1,015,290
85 1,757 31 1,485 44523
1,152,320 (3,513,548) 622,264 791,652 1,059,813
0.60 (1.84) 033 041 0.53
(403,753)  (14,375706)  (4,978,617) (283,605)  (2,116,980)
85 1,757 31 1,485 44,523
(403,668)  (14,373,949)  (4,978,586) (282,120)  (2,072,457)
- - 2 2 11




Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EF B BHME

AEBBEAFZERE BEHRAGHMENOT

years is as follows: (Cont'd) (48)
At 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHT FAET FHT FHT
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BELHE 19,434,515 21,597,070 37,469,379 48,311,789 48,690,703
Total liabilities BfREE (5,431,672) (7,198,240) (8,689,129)  (14,721,428)  (14,547,134)
Total equity PRt e R 14,002,843 14,398,830 28,780,250 33,590,361 34,143,569
Attributable to: FE1G
Owners of the Company VN/NSIE FEDN 13,979,534 14,375,606 28,758,783 33,568,925 34,062,368
Non-controlling interests AR 23,309 23,224 21,467 21,436 81,201
14,002,843 14,398,830 28,780,250 33,590,361 34,143,569
Net asset value per share RRAEE AL
attributable to owners of BREEFE
the Company (HK$) (&7 133 7.54 15.08 17.60 17.86
Number of shares issued BRITROEE 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079

Notes:

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group changed its
accounting policy for the presentation and classification in its consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of building management fee
income and property management services income (previously
presented in and classified as “Other Income”) and interest income
from bonds and other forms of debt securities and dividend income
from listed and unlisted equity investments (previously presented in and
classified as “Investment Income, Net"). Details of this change are set
out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements of 2020 annual
report of the Company. The amounts of revenue as previously reported
are HK$538,986,000 and HK$843,618,000 for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 respectively.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is
based on the profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company for the
years and on the weighted average number of shares in issue during the
relevant years. Diluted earnings (loss) per share was the same as the
basic earnings (loss) per share as there were no potential ordinary shares
of the Company in issue during the relevant years.

G

0

(i)

REBE-_Z-ZTF+_A=+—HILEE K&
Epr e 2 ANSREPEFEEBRIRALRYE
EERBUACBEZN RS EAIEMBALD -
BEEMEMER 2EBES ZFEWRANE EH
RIEETRAREZREWACBEZYI RS
BIRERANEREND 2R BRENHE 5K
Ko ABEEINARR —E_TEFRIGEE
PHRMEMEAIN -BHEZT—NER_ZT—N
FHZA=ZT—HIEFEBRAIRZWASED
Al £538,986,0007% 7T }2.843,618,000/8 7T °

FREAREERN (BB DIRBEEFEART
BEAEARMEN(BR MEBFECETRNZ
EFHHBFE - HRARBUEEETBRZ
BT WAMFEZEREERN (5B 28k
EARZF (ER) AR -

CECZCEER
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
EEYERM R

The following table sets forth the Group’s major properties as at 31 December 2022:
TRIJIARER -_F-_—_F+_A=+—HZIEYE:

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG BERYE
Properties held for investment RHIEREWME
Location Lot number Usage
1o B b B} 4R 5% Az
1. Harcourt House Certain parts or shares of and Commercial
(excluding 7th, 8th, 9th, 22nd, in Inland Lot No. 8573 [SES
23rd, 25th, 26th and 27th floors, P ER85735% 2
rooms 1004 and 1805) ETHHHMNEE

39 Cloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 113 car parking spaces)

ERAE
EBET
HTITE39%

(789+2223-25+
26271 ~ 1004 % 1805 E K 41)

(BB 3EER)

2. Causeway Place* Certain parts or shares of and Residential/
Various shops on ground floor, in Inland Lot No. 7742 Commercial
mezzanine floor, 1st and 2nd floors and N 7742502 =/
their respective portions of exterior walls, ATE DS

together with flats C, 1, J, K, L, N, O, P, Q
(each including a flat roof) and H on 3rd floor
Hong Kong Mansion

nos. 1-7 Paterson Street and

nos. 2-10 Creat George Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

5 888 0 1th 75

B

BEME1-THR

RLHFat2-105%

ENPNE

T B 1BRBETEHK
HEE5 2 HMEER

IEC 1)K L*N-0P-Q
(BESBEM2TAR)RH B

* Certain shops were sold

ETEHEED
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Category of
the lease
term

R

Long
£

Long
=8

Group’s
interest
S
il

100%

100%



PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location

o B

3. Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street*
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEMRLEE
EAH14Z 185

4. Nos. 86 and 88 Apliu Street
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB NEAKE
#5 R 178612 885%%

5. Various Portions of
No. 1 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(comprising 391 workshop units and
77 car parking spaces)
BB EEE
BEEIRETEN
(B39 VAT B R 77EER)

6. Olympian City 3
1 Hoi Wang Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)
BigH =
EEREMNRE
ENN A
(BREETHREEM
REEBEH)

7. Coronation Circle
1 Yau Cheung Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)
FEE
EAFENE
RABIK
(BEETRREEL
REEHE)

* Under redevelopment

By

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

EBYWEw

BEREWEGE)

Lot number Usage
ith B 4R 5 A&
Tsuen Wan Town Industrial
Lot No. 128 S
FETHER 1285

New Kowloon Inland Residential/
Lot Nos. 1702 and 1703 Commercial
MLEARER T/

1702 % 1703%%

Certain parts or shares of and

in Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 415
BN ER4155% 2
ATHORMNE

Certain parts or shares of and
in Kowloon Inland Lot

Nos. 11167 and 11168
NEAMER
1116751116852
ETHAINE

Certain parts or shares of and

in Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11073
AEAMER 1107352

ETH o

Industrial

T%

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

— = — —

-

Category of
the lease
term
HEER

Medium

]

Medium

R

Medium

R

Medium

R

Medium

P

FEH

E2YE e

Group’s
interest
£E
Frit gz

100%

100%

33.33%

25%

15%
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥ Mk

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA SlE Ak Ry ES
Properties held for investment BEREMHE
Category of
the lease
Location Usage term
It B A HEE R
1. Hilton Beijing Hotel Short*
1 Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road B 72 H*
Chaoyang District, Beijing
T REFWEEE
I RmHAE R
R - RABIR
2.  Oriental Place Office Short*
9 East Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road BFE 2 HR*
Chaoyang District, Beijing
REBEBRKE
I RmHER
R=RIEE - RITRIKOM
* Due in September 2023, application for extension of land use right is in progress.

BRZZ-=FNARE TRLMEBHOBRFLELEEIES -
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Group's
interest
-3

Frit Rz

50%

50%



PROPERTIES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

Properties held for investment

Location

b:ut

1. 120 Fleet Street*
116—129 Fleet Street
London, EC4, United Kingdom
Fleet Street 1205%*
EEfRBECS
Fleet Street 116-1295%

2. 14 St George Street
14 St George Street
London, W1, United Kingdom
St George Street 1455
EERBWI
St George Street 1455

3. 61-67 Oxford Street and
11-14 Soho Street
61-67 (odd) Oxford Street and
11-14 Soho Street
London, W1, United Kingdom
Oxford Street 61-6755 &
Soho Street 11-145%
HE W1
Oxford Street 61-675% (E257) &2
Soho Street 11-148%

4. 11 and 12 St James’s Square and
14 to 17 Ormond Yard
11 and 12 St James's Square and
14 to 17 Ormond Yard
London, SW1Y 4LB, United Kingdom
St James's Square 11 R 1255 &
Ormond Yard 142175
HEMFASWIY 4LB
St James's Square 11 1257 &
Ormond Yard 14Z 1755

* Under redevelopment

B

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

HKEY =
FEREME
Category of
the lease
Usage term
A& HEER
Commercial Freehold
BES KAFERE
Commercial Freehold
GES KA ZERE
Residential/ Freehold
Commercial KA FERE
£/
Residential/ Freehold
Commercial KA EE
E=PE

CECZCEER

EEYEME

Group'’s
interest
Frit Rz

100%

100%

100%

100%
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
VIRBBERI R

PROPERTY IN HONG KONG BEBYE
Property held for sale FEHEWE
Approximate
saleable
floor area Group's
(square feet) interest
Location Lot number BEAEEAH Usage £HE
i 24 i R 4 5% (FHR) A% Frib Rz
1. Grand Central New Kowloon 59,934* Residential 10%
33 Hip Wo Street Inland Lot No. 6514 =
Kwun Tong, Kowloon e
Hong Kong N ER65145%
SLE
Fos
NEEEE
3355
* Certain residential units were contracted for sale as at 31 December 2022.

RZEZ=F+-A=+—H BEFEEEBMEFHLE -

Note:
BaE -

1. The property development rights were granted pursuant to development agreement with the Urban Renewal Authority.

MEZEREDRBETREZRA L2 ERIPARL -
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